DIABLO CANYON
INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

(www.dcisc.org)

Committee Members: Robert J. Budnitz
Peter Lam
Per F. Peterson
*k k % k K k k Xk &k k k Kk k %k k %k %k kA k% *k * k & k A k * k k *k khkkhAhkk Rt
Zoom Webinar Meeting ID : 84324036610
Zoom Webinar Meeting Passcode: 059467
https://usO2web.zoom.us/i/84324036610?pwd=UIB6USNWaEZUMG 1 IZKNBWjOvdTZuZz09
Zoom Webinar Meeting Telephone Only Participation:
1(408)638-0968; 1(669)900-6833; 1(253)215-8782; 1(346)248-7799;
1(646)876-9923; 1(301)715-8592; and 1(312)626-6799

AGENDA
Thursday & Friday, October 22-23, 2020

In response to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N.29-20 related to the COVID-19 (coronavirus) pandemic,
public participation in the DCISC public meetings shall be electronic only and without a physical location for
public participation in compliance with California state guidelines on social distancing. This meeting is being
produced by AGP Video Inc. and webcast “live” on SLO-SPAN at http://www.slo-span.org and through
http://www.dcisc.org and will be broadcast subsequently on San Luis Obispo local government access
television, Channel 21.

PARTICIPATION
You may participate in the DCISC’s public meeting in real-time by accessing the Zoom webinar meeting via
the weblink or meeting ID and Passcode given above or by calling any of the phone number provided at the top
of this agenda. Instructions on how to access, view and participate in remote meetings are also provided by
visiting the DCISC’s home page at hitp://www.dcisc.org. Attendees can make oral comments or ask questions
of the Committee Members during the webinar meeting by using the “Raise Your Hand” feature or by pressing
*9 on your telephone keypad if joining by telephone only. If you are unable to participate in real-time, you may
email to dcsafety@dcisc.org with the subject line “Public Comment Item# __” (insert the item number relevant
to your comment) or “Public Comment — Non Agenda Item.” Comments will be reviewed and distributed
before the meeting if received by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 21, 2020. Comments received after that
will be addressed during the item and/or at the end of the meeting. All comments received will be read into and
become part of the record, subject to a time limit determined by the presiding officer. The Committee will have

the option to modify its actions on items based on comments received.

AGENDA MATERIALS
The agenda, staff reports and background information distributed to the Committee are public records and will
be available for public review on the DCISC's website (www.dcisc.org) on or before Monday, October 19,
2020, Supplemental materials received after the close of the final agenda and through noon on the days of the
scheduled meeting will be available for public review at the meeting. Materials related to an item on this
agenda submitted to the Committee after distribution of the agenda packet will be made available on the DCISC
website subject to the ability of the Committee staff to post the documents before the meeting.




I

vl

Morning Session - 10/22/2020 — 9:00 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL QK

INTRODUCTIONS

ADVISEMENT

The Committee may consider at any time requests to change the order of a listed agenda item.
Information distributed to the Committee during a public meeting becomes part of the public record of
the DCISC. A copy of written material, pictures, etc. must be provided to the Committes’s Legal
Counsel for this purpose. Correspondence received and sent by the Committee is on file with the Office
of the DCISC Legal Counsel and copies are available upon request.

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Anyone wishing to address the Committee on matters not appearing on the Agenda may do so only at
this time. The public may comment on any matter listed on the Agenda immediately following the time
the matter is considered by the Committee. There may be a time limit established by the Presiding
Officer for each speaker. No action will be taken by the Committee on matters brought up under this
item but they may be referred to staff for further study, response or action.

INFORMATION ITEMS BEFORE THE COMMITTEE

A. Informational Presentations Requested by the
Committee of PG&E Representatives:

1) State of the Plant Update including Key Events, Highlights,
Organizational Changes, Retention Tier 2 Update, COVID-19
Pandemic, Unit 1 OQutage Activities, Recent Wildfires, Recent
Human Performance in Operations and other Station Activities
Since the DCISC July 2020 Public Meeting.

2) Update on the Status of NRC Performance Indicators, Licensee
Event Reports, NRC Inspection Reports and Notices of Violation,
Issues Raised by NRC Resident Inspectors, Open Compliance
Issues, and License Amendment Requests. And Other Significant
Regulatory Issues/Requests.

3) Cause and Corrective Action for the February 2020 Unit 2
Forced Outage to Repair the Rod Control System.

ADJOURN MORNING MEETING

Afternoon Session — 10/22/2020 - 1:30 P.M.
RECONVENE FOR AFTERNOON MEETING
COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Anyone wishing to address the Committee on matters not appearing on the Agenda may do so only at
this time. The public may comment on any matter listed on the Agenda immediately following the time
the matter is considered by the Committee. There may be a time limit established by the Presiding
Officer for each speaker. No action will be taken by the Committee on matters brought up under this
item but they may be referred to siaff for further study, response or action.



IX  INFORMATION ITEMS BEFORE THE COMMITTEE (Cont’d.)
B. Informational Presentations Requested by the
Committee of PG&E Representatives:
4)  Decommissioning Planning Update, Including Status of Spent Fuel
Cask Request for Proposals.

X INFORMATIONAL DISCUSSION BY DCISC MEMBERS & TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS
A. Committee Discussion on Spent Fuel Pool Risk Evaluation
And Possible Recommendation.

X1  INFORMATION ITEMS BEFORE THE COMMITTEE (Cont’d.)
C. Informational Presentations Requested by the
Committee of PG&E Representatives:
5) Update on Emergency Preparedness Programs Including Changes
Made in Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic.

XII  ADJOURN AFTERNOON MEETING

Morning Session - 10/23/2020 - 8:30 A.M.
XIIT RECONVENE FOR MORNING MEETING

X1v.  COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

XV PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Anyone wishing to address the Committee on matters not appearing on the Agenda may do so only at
this time. The public may comment on any matter listed on the Agenda immediately following the time
the matter is considered by the Committee. There will be a time limit established by the Presiding
Officer for each speaker. No action will be taken by the Committee on matters brought up under this
item but they may be referred to staff for further study, response or action.

XVl ACTION ITEMS
A.  DCISC 30® Annual Report on
Safety of Diablo Canyon Operations;

July 1, 2019 — June 30, 2020. Discussion/Approval
B. Update on Financial Matters and

Committee Activities during 2020-2021. Discussion/Action
C. Discussion of Open Items List. Discussion/Action

XVl COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS AND DISCUSSION
A. Public Outreach, Site Visits and Other
Committee Activities; Agenda Items,
Scheduling and Confirmation of
Future Fact-findings and Public Meetings.
B. Documents Provided to the Committee.

XVIII INFORMATIONAL DISCUSSION BY REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DIABLO CANYON
DECOMMISSIONING ENGAGEMENT PANEL
A Update on the Activities of the Diablo Canyon Decommissioning
Engagement Panel.



XIX TECHNICAL CONSULTANT & LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT; RECEIVE,
APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL OF FACT-FINDING REPORT TO PG&E
A. Consultant R. Ferman Wardell.
Fact-finding Topics; Report on and Approval of
July 21-22, 2020 Fact Finding Report.
B. Robert Rathie:
Administrative, Regulatory, including CPUC Interactions,
and Legal Matters.

XX  ADJOURN MORNING MEETING

Afternoon Session - 10/23/2020 — 1:15 P.M.

XXI RECONVENE FOR AFTERNOON MEETING
XXII COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

XXIIT PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Anyone wishing to address the Committee on matters not appearing on the Agenda may do so now. The
public may comment on any matter listed on the Agenda at the time the matter is being considered by
the Committee. There will be a time limit established by the Presiding Officer for each speaker. No
action will be taken by the Committee on matters brought up under this item but they may be referred to

staff for further study, response or action.

XXIV TECHNICAL CONSULTANT REPORTS; RECEIVE, APPROVE AND
AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL OF FACT-FINDING REPORTS TO PG&E
C.  Consultant Richard D. McWhorter Jr:
Fact-finding Topics; Report on and Approval of the
August 19-20. 2020 Fact Finding Report.
D. Consultant R. Ferman Wardell.
Fact-finding Topics; Report on and Approval of
September 9-10, 2020 Fact Finding Report.

XXV APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of July 1-2, 2020, Meeting. Accept

XXVI CONCLUDING REMARKS &
DISCUSSION BY COMMITTEE MEMBERS
OF FUTURE DCISC ACTIVITIES
A. Future Actions by the Committee.
B. Further Information to Obtain/Review.
C. Scheduling of Future Site Visits,

Study Sessions and Meetings. K
A}
XXVII ADJOURNMENT OF NINETY-SEVENTH PUBLIC MEETING ™~~~

A person who needs a disability-related accommodation or modification in order to participate in the meeting may make a request by
contacting the DCISC office at (800) 439-4688 or by sending a written request to the DCISC office at 857 Cass Street, Ste. D.,
Monterey, CA 93940. Providing your request at least five business days before the meeting will help ensure availability of the
requested accommodation



DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL FORM

MEETING DATE: October 23, 2020
AGENDA ITEM: X
AGENDA TITLE: Committee Discussion and Receive

Comments Concerning a Possible
Recommendation by the DCISC
Concerning a Relative Risk Evaluation of
the Approaches Associated with Spent
Fuel Pool Storage and the Off-Loading to
Dry Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel at
Diablo Canyon Power Plant.

CONSENT [ ] ACTION [X] INFORMATION [X ]

Staff Summary: The Committee Members and Technical Consultants are expected to
discuss and to receive comments from members of the public concerning a
recommendation by the Committee concerning a relative risk evaluation of the
approaches associated with spent fuel pool storage and off-loading to dry storage of
spent nuclear fuel at DCPP.

At the DCISC’s public meeting on July 1, 2020, the Committee received a presentation
on report by the B. John Garrick Institute for Risk Sciences entitled “Probabilistic Risk
Assessment of Nuclear Power Plant Spent Fuel Handling and Storage Programs:
Methodology and Application to the Diablo Canyon Power Plant.” This report
together with reports from Committee fact-finding, information received from PG&E,
and the discussion during the July 1, 2020, public meeting are expected to inform this
discussion. A copy of the highlights of the probabilistic risk assessment report from the
July 1, 2020, public meeting is provided with this transmittal memo.

RECOMMENDED COMMITTEE ACTION: discussion and action as appropriate.




ONRIINDNIYTOHN Il

S30UIDS XS1Y 3Y1J04 SISU| POLIED UYOr gy L i)

020z ‘L Ainr
bunsay oland
Auedw o) 0L309|3 % Seo) Jlj1oed

PIRUSYEM " Pleuoq
Jouleg uyor g
Aq pajussald

Jueld 1amod uoAuen ojqeiq ay)

0} uonesijddy pue Abojopoyla|\ :sweiboud
abe.io}s pue BuljpueH jan4 juadg jue|d Jamod
1Be3|ONN JO JUBWISSASSY YSIY dlIsljigeqold,,
Hoday jo sybiybiy




DNIJ3IINIDNAI SUD g

S30UIDS Y1 3Y] 10 SNISU| PLIED UYOr g3y L

oW Ysu ajebolins

e Buisn soleuads peo|o pasodoid 1noy Jo sysil 8y} aiedwio)
(OHD) seAoslgo yyesy aaijeyuenb pue

s|eob A1ojes s, OHNSN @yl 03 s)jnsal ay) buiiedwod ajiym yjeay
olignd o3 sysii ay) Buissasse Aq ABojopoyiow sy} ajeljsuowa(]

saljiAloe abelo)s pue Buljpuey jan) Juads ajisuo jue|d Jamod
leajonu 10} Abojopoylaw Jusuwissasse ysil onsljigeqold e dojaas(

¥Se] JO Juswajels




DNIJ3IINIDNA <|—UD =]

SIDURIDS YSIY 3Y3 JOJ AINJISU| YD1IeD UYof 'gay L .

Em_n_ Jamod uoAuen o|gei( |



ONI¥3INION3 1)) I

S2UR125 Sty Y3 10} 3NYISU| YDLIED UYOr'gay L K

ajqissod se Apoinb se ubledwes
|leuly a)ojdwod 0] (SyY4S) saljquasse [anj) juads pjoo ybnous uleloy .

UMOpINYs Jojoeal Jusuewlad 0] Joud AlojusAul A|QUIBSSE [an) paonNpay

2e0z Isnbny pandwa 44s -

UMOPINYS Jojoeal Jaye sieah ; a)9|dwod pue umopinys
Jojoeal Jslje Jspulewsal pue alojaq 4NS sWwos Jajsuel] 'z

salnsodxa jeuoljedndo0o paonpay -

ubiedwes suo yum pays|dwod abeliols Aip 0] Jajsuel| .

2€0z Isnbny pandws (44S) 100d |any juadg -

sieak ; ul 919|dwoo pue
umopinys Jojoeal Jaye (4NS) [8n) Jeajonu juads |le Jajsuel| |

(Z/1) palapisuo) SolBUS2S PO JNO



DNI¥FINONI 7 HN HE

S3DUIIS YSIY Y] 0§ SINYISU] LLIED UYO[ ‘gAY L

umopInys Jojoeal jusuewlad o0} Joiud Alojuaaul 44S ul uoionpal jsabieq .
ABajelis Juswabeuew peoj jeay o1 anp Aldwae o] swi} shkejlsq -

yc0g Aenuer pandws 44S -

sabelno

L JlUN pue sjwi| uonessusb jeay DN Pullapisuod sawll 1saljies ay)
]e UMOPINYS J0]Joeal Jalje Japulewal pue al10jaq 4NS awos Jajsuel |
91042 |any} ise| Joy ubiedwes Jajsueld) alelljioe) 0} S\Y4S Pjoo ybnous uie}ay -
d4S Aildws Ajnj o} ajep isailey .

umopinys J1ojoeal o0} touud Alojuaaul AlquIasse |[an) paonpay

0£0¢ ¥snbny pandwe 445 -

"UMOpPINYS Jojoeal Jajje sieah G a19|dwod

pue UMoplINys Jojoeal Jajje Japuiewal pue alojaq 4NS dwos Jajsuel |

(Z/2) paJ1apISuo)) SolIeuadS pPeolLO JNo4




ONRIINDNI )N N

S3U315 1513 343 o) SIAsUDPIIEs UyorgayL

1PaA
SE07  ve0Z  £E0Z  Z€0Z  1€0Z  0E0Z 6207  ®LOZ  [T0T 920 STO¢  wiOZ  wg0r  l07 107
; 0
uUMOpInYS
s
zuun
002

0,01

008

d4S T WUM Ul S3(quiassy [3n4 0 1dquInN

e 00¢t

— = —  00v1

SOLIeUadS peojJO JNo JoJ Jeax
1EpuUde) SA 44S ¢ JIUM 9U1 Ul Sal[quIsssy [on4 Jo Jaquiny Juspuada awi] * | a1nbi




ONRIINIONI 7)) I

SIIUIIS YSIY IYL 10f IINISU| 3D141RD) Uyor'gay L !

'd4S 9y} ul |an} Jo Junowe Juspuadap-awl] 8y} uo paseq saouanbasuod
ay] JOJ SJUN0J2Jk JuBW SIY| 'd4S dUl Ul SI JNS 1ey] sawl} ||e JBA0 pawiwins
pue buneaylano [anj 0] anp pases|al g Aew jey] wnisao Jo Junowe ayl Aq

pajyblom Juaplooe aI1anas 44S ue Jo Alljigeqold o149\l YSIy pazijeldadsg
'saouanbas Juspiooe Juesiiubisul ¥sid JNO UdSaIDS 0] pash SI duBwW
SIYy] ‘uol}eoo| yoea je abewep |an} jo Aouanbalij ay| :ou}9|\ djelpawiaju|

(sa1e1s pua aouanbas juapiooe)
¢,89ouUanbasuo9 ay) ale Jeyp\ (Aouanbauj jo Aljigeqoud) 4 si AjoyI] MOH
‘(se@ouanbas juapiooe) ¢ Buoim 0b ued Jeypn yJoMmaluel4 JUSWISSISSY YSIY

abe.ols

Ap 10) 1S4SI1 ddDA 94l 01 Sd4S 2yl woll 4NS 8y} Buliajsuel) 10} SOLIBUSIS
peojyo 1IN0} Jo yyeay aljgnd o1 sysk aAiesedwod ay) Jo uonesyiueny) (jeos

OLIIOIN MSIY/MIoMBWEBIH YSIM/|B0D




DNIJ3INIDNA <|—UD HE

SIDURIIS 3SIY Y3 404 3INISU| YI1IED UYO[ gy L m,.

9ouanbasuoo Joj ajebolins e se pasn
S| pasesjal WNIsad JO Junowe ay} pajndwod Jou alam suole|nojed asop yjesy olgnd [enoy .

yijeay aijgnd Bunoeduwi jo ajgqededs sases|al a)Isyo
ab.e| 0] pea| Aew jey] sjuanas olwsias Ajjeloadsa ‘sjuans siseq ubisap puokaq, JO UOlIBISPISUOD -

OlIeUSDS PEOJHO Yoes Ul swes
oY) ale yoiym sysu Bunos|bau ‘solieusss peojo usamiaq sysil aaijeledwod JO JUSWISSOSSY

saAlloalgo yijeay aaneluenb s OYNSN YlIM Sy Sl Juaplode a1aAas Jo uosiiedwo) .

dds
2y} YIM pajeloosse saouanbas jueaiiubis ysiu sy} Ajliuenb pue ‘sjusplooe ysil moj jo Bulusalog .

JUSPIOOR 2J9ASS B Ul pases|al sapljonuolpel
JO JUNOWE UO S]09YJ8 3y} pue palo)s sjunowe 4NS Juspuadap awi} Jo AJIjIgeIUN0DDY

siseydw3g jo sealy
a|geol|dde ataym uoijewsojul sisAjeue Alojes pue ‘ubisap ‘sainpaocoid oyloads 44D o s -

(seouaisjal $9) I4dd pue DHYNSN
Aq patedalid asoy) Ajjeroadsa ‘sysi [any Juads Jo salpnis YA [e21dAl Uo aoueljal SAISUdIXT

yoeouddy

siseydw3 Jo sealy/yoeolddy



ONI¥3INIONI 71 I

$92U31S YSIY Y1 10} AANUISU| ILIeD LYo 'gay L El

'SOlIBUdS
PEO|JO JUaJalIp ay]) usamiag SHSII Ul Saoualayip ajgeadlijou
aq 0} alay) Joj} |ood [an} Juads ay) Buisuadl| 1o siseq ubisap ay} ul
paJapisuod asoy} puoAaq sjealy) azisayjodAy o] Aiesseoau sem ]| .
‘Buljloq 0]} anp Jue|009 JO SSO| B Ul }jNSaJ 0S| P|NOM Jawio) ay |
"JUB|00D JO SSO| B (¢ Jo ‘Buljooo jood [an) Juads aAljoe Jo SSO| B Ul
Bunnsal syuapiooe (| aie A1oAooun [an) Jo salloboled |[esouab om|
‘sjonpoud uoissly
9Al}oeoIpel Jisy] Jo ases|al sy} pue Bunesaytano [ony ul }jnsal
ued |ood ayj ul palo)s |an} Juads ayj JoA0 Jajem Jo BullsAodun ay|

d4S 8y DUIAJOAU| SJUBPIDDY 818A8S



Ol

S20UBIDS FSIY Y1 JOJ ANYISU LIED UYO ‘gAY L

SOHD s.|eob Alajes ay) mojaq ||eam 8g 0} puno}

alem uoneltado 44S dd90 1o Jeah yoea sysu yjjeay aljqnd ay |
sieah 000‘ /¢ Alona

92U0 JNOge JO [BAIB]UI 82UB1INDJ8l B dABY O] PaSSasSe sem ases|al
wnisad abie| e g|geus pue |0od |an) Juads ayj ul [N} JaA0OUN

0] |enusajod ay) Buiney Juans o1WSISS siseq ubisap puokaq y
SaIpn}s YsK |an} Juads DYNSN

UlIM JUS]SISU0D ale s)insal ysi ajeipawaul [an) uads 4400 84l
s|eob A)1ajes HDYNSN 2yl Jo saAnoalqo

yijesy aaijelnuenb ay) uo paseq si aouejdaooe ysu yjjeay algnd

saullaping aoue1daddy YSIY

ONI¥33NION3 1)) Il

B



L

DNIJIINIDONA <-—U: ..

SIDUIDS YSIY AU} ) IMISUL POLIED UYO[ g3y L =

(L90°) PEOIYO JedsA-/ UMOPINYS 1SOd =
(G90°) PEeoO JedA-/ UMOPINYS-2id =
(9G0') PEeOHO JESA-G UMOPINYS-Did =
(9€0°) PeojyQ Isdllieq umopinys-ald =

SOlJeuads
PeojO Jno4 8y} Jo Bujuey sy sy




DNI¥IINIONI 779 I

cl
S32UIDS YSIY 3U] 0 SNUISU| YILLED UYOr'gay L )

SJUSAS
olwsies abie| 10) uans ‘ysngod si 44S ay) Jo Alloeded olwsias

lewsS aJe suoljeoo| yog e sysiu ybnoy)
'd4S 8y} woJj jey) jo uoioed) e sl (d4S ay) uey) saljquiasse
|]an} 810w Auew suiejuod yoiym) abelols Alp wodj uonngljuod YSIy
SJay]o 8y} uey) Jemo| Ajjennuelsgns Jou Ing }Sid Ul uolonpal
1sabie| ay) sepinoid (sul| abiaq ‘p#) olleuadS PeO|YO I1SaljJeD BY |
1saybiy ay) ueyj Joamo|
%9% ISn[ SI ¥SiJ OlIeUadS PEO|LO 1SOMO| 8| "SOIIBUSIS PEOJO
Inoj ay} buledw oo soudBW ¥SIJ 8Y] Ul UoljBIIBA PaliWl| S1 8Jay |
s|eob A)ajes
S, O48NSN 9y} Jo saAjdalgqo yieay aanejuenb ayy uiyum [jem
PUE |[ewsS S| SOLIeUads Peojyo ay} JO Yyoea Jo ysu yjjeay alignd ay|

(Z/1) shemeaye| Aoy



ol DNI¥3INION3 1)) M

S3UBIDS YSIY BY3 10§ ANISU| HPLIED UYOr g3y L 3

d4S 8yj 8sojous
yoiym sbuipjing Aseljixne pue buljpuey [an} ay} jo saljoeded
OIWSIBaS aY] pue ‘A1aAooun |an) UsAIb asesjal wnisao

JO JudIXe ‘@ouewlopad uewny ale saljuleuasun Alewld .

SOlIBUS2S PEOo||o Jnoj ay) jo Aue 10} Alenooun [an) Buimo||o)
188YJBA0 PINOM (Sal|quasse |an) 00~ 8°l) saljquiasse |an)
JO sjusjeAlnba 8109 J0joeal OM] uey] aiow Jey) Aj@yIjun si )| .
)Slh 44S 8Y] JO 9%,Gp Juasaidal siseq ubisep ay) uey)
Jabie| yonw sjuaas olwsias AQ pajelniul seousnbas Juspiody .

(z/2) shemeaye| Asy




DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL FORM

MEETING DATE: October 23, 2020
AGENDA ITEM: XVI-A
AGENDA TITLE: DCISC 30th Annual Report on Safety of

Diablo Canyon Operations;
July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

CONSENT [ | ACTION [XX] INFORMATION [ |

The Settlement Agreement creating the DCISC provided that “The
Committee shall prepare an annual report and such interim reports as it
deems appropriate, which reports shall include any recommendations of
the Committee.” A draft report covering Fiscal Year 2019-2020 has now
been prepared by Committee Members Budnitz, Lam and Peterson, with
contributions from the Technical Consultants and Legal Counsel, and is
presented at this meeting for consideration and adoption. This is the
Committee’s thirtieth annual report.

Upon adoption, the Settlement Agreement directs that the Report shall be
provided first to PG&E, and that PG&E will respond in writing within 45
days. PG&E’s response shall be made a part of the Report, which will
then be submitted to the California Public Utilities Commission, the
Governor, the Attorney General and the California Energy Commission.
The Committee’s annual reports are available to members of the public
on the Committee’s website (www.dcisc.org) and through the California
Polytechnic University Library and local public libraries.

RECOMMENDED COMMITTEE ACTION: Motion to approve the DCISC 2019-
2020 Thirtieth Annual Report on Safety of Diablo Canyon Operations and to forward
same to PG&E for its response, and upon receipt of that response, submit and file the
completed report as provided by the Settlement Agreement.




AGENDA PACKET

Diablo Canyon Independent Safety Committee

THIRTIETH ANNUAL REPORT ON THE SAFETY OF

DIABLO CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT OPERATIONS

Section

Preface

July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020

Executive Summary and Conclusions and Recommendations

Table of Contents

1.0 Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Formation of the Independent Safety Committee
Appointment of Committee Members
DCISC Public Meetings and Plant Tours

Committee Member Site Inspection Tours and
Fact-finding Meetings

1.4.1 [Inspections and Visits by Robert J. Budnitz

1.4.2 Inspections and Visits by Peter Lam

1.4.3 Inspections and Visits by Per F. Peterson

1.4.4 Tours of DCPP by DCISC Members and
Members of the Public during the Period July 1,
2018 — June 30, 2019

Visits by DCISC Members to California

State Agencies

Retirement of Diablo Canyon Power Plant at Expiration of its Current Operating
Licenses

1.6.1 Background of CPUC Decision 18-01-022 Approving Retirement of Diablo
Canyon by 2025 and the 2018 Nuclear Decommissioning Cost Triennial Proceeding

1.6.2 30" Annual Report Period

Coronavirus Pandemic



AGENDA PACKET

2.0

3.0

4.0

1.8  Documents Provided to the DCISC
1.9  Documentation of DCISC Activities
Public Meetings
2.1 Public Meetings
NRC Assessments and Issues
3.1 Summary of Licensee Event Reports
3.1.1 Discussion and Required LERs
3.1.2 Special Report LERs
3.1.3 Voluntary LERs
3.1.4 Reactor Trips Reported in LERs
3.1.5 Other Reports to NRC
3.1.6 LER Trends
3.1.7 DCISC Evaluation and Conclusions
3.2 NRC Inspection Reports and Enforcement Actions
3.2.1 Discussion

3.2.2 DCISC Review of Trends of Violations
And NRC-Identified [ssues

3.2.3 DCISC Evaluation and Conclusions
3.3 NRC Performance Evaluations
3.4  DCISC Meetings with NRC Resident Inspector

3.5 DCISC Conclusions and Recommendations

Summary of Major DCISC Review Topics

4.1 Conduct of Operations

ii



AGENDA PACKET

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.1.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.1.2 Current Period Activities

4.1.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
Conduct of Maintenance

4.2.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.2.2 Current Period Activities

4.2.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
Engineering Program

4.3.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.3.2 Current Period Activities

4.3.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
Human Performance

4.4.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.4.2 Current Period Activities

4.4.3 Conclusions and Recommendations

Nuclear Safety Culture and Safety Conscious Work Environment
4.5.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.5.2 Current Period Activities

4.5.3 Conclusions and Recommendations

Performance Improvement Processes

4.6.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.6.2 Current Period Activities

4.6.3 Conclusions and Recommendations

iii



AGENDA PACKET

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

Emergency Preparedness

4.7.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.7.2 Current Period Activities

4.7.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
Risk Assessment and Management

4.8.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.8.2 Current Period Activities

4.8.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
Nuclear Safety Oversight and Review

4.9.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.9.2 Current Period Activities

4.9.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
Radiation Protection

4.10.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.10.2 Current Period Activities

4.10.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
Quality Programs

4.11.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.11.2 Current Period Activities

4.11.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
Nuclear Fuel Performance/Fuel Cycles/Storage
4.12.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.12.2 Current Period Activities

4.12.3 Conclusions and Recommendations

iv



AGENDA PACKET

4.13  Equipment Reliability

4.13.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.13.2 Current Period Activities

4.13.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.14  Organizational Effectiveness & Organizational Development

4.14.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.14.2 Current Period Activities

4.14.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.15 System and Equipment Performance/Problems

4.15.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.15.2 Current Period Activities

4.15.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.16  Steam Generator Performance

4.16.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.16.2 Current Period Activities

4.16.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.17 Outage Management

4.17.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.17.2 Current Period Activities

4.17.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.18 Safety/Security Interface

4.18.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.18.2 Current Period Activities



AGENDA PACKET

4.18.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.19 Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation

4.19.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.19.2 Current Period Activities

4.19.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
420  Seismic, Tsunami and Other External Events

4.20.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.20.2 Current Period Activities

4.20.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.21 Fire Protection

4.21.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.21.2 Current Period Activities

4.21.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
422 Learning and Development Programs

4.22.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.22.2 Current Period Activities

4.22.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.23  Nuclear Regulatory Commission Items

4.23.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.23.2 Current Period Activities

4.23.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.24  Beyond Design Basis Accidents/Fukushima Lessons

4.24.1 Overview and Previous Activities

4.24.2 Current Period Activities

vi



AGENDA PACKET

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

4.24.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
4.26  Joint Proposal & Decommissioning
4.26.1 Overview and Previous Activities
4.26.2 Current Period Activities
4.26.3 Conclusions and Recommendations
DCISC Performance Indicators
DCISC Open Items List
PG&E Actions on Previous DCISC Report Recommendations
Public Outreach
8.1 Telephone Calls and E-mails Received by the DCISC
8.2  DCISC Internet — Worldwide Web Activity
8.3 Comments Received at DCISC Public Meetings
8.4  DCISC Public Tours of DCPP
8.5  DCISC Evaluation

PG&E Response to DCISC Recommendations

vii



AGENDA PACKET

Volume [ - EXHIBITS

Exhibits
A. Documents Received By the DCISC
B. DCISC Public Meeting Notices, Agendas and Reports
B.1  Notice of October 23-24, 2019 Public Meeting
B.2  Agenda for October 23-24, 2019 Public Meeting
B.3 Minutes of October 23-24, 2019 Public Meeting
B.4  Notice of February 12-13, 2020 Public Meetings
B.5  Agenda for February 12-13, 2020 Public Meetings
B.6  Minutes of February 12-13, 2020 Public Meetings
B.7  Notice of July 1-2, 2020 Public Meetings
B.8  Agenda for July 1-2, 2020 Public Meetings
B.9  Minutes of July 1-2, 2020 Public Meetings
B.10 DCISC Service Mailing List
C. Diablo Canyon Operations
1.0  PG&E/DCPP Organization
2.0  Summary of Diablo Canyon Operations
2.0.1 Capacity Factor
2.0.2 Refueling Outages
2.0.3 Collective Radiation Dose Equivalent Exposure
2.0.4 Unplanned Reactor Trips
2.0.5 Unplanned Safety System Actuations

2.0.6 Chemistry Effectiveness Indicator (CEI)

viii



AGENDA PACKET

2.0.7 Fuel Reliability

D. DCISC Reports on Fact-finding Meetings

D.1

D.2

D3

Report on Fact Finding Meeting at DCPP on July 23-24, 2019
1.0 Summary
2.0  Introduction
3.0  Discussion
3.1. Refueling Outage 1R21 Issues
3.2. Annual Radiological Release Report and Annual
Radiological Environmental Monitoring Report
3.3. Training Program for Temporary Outage Workers
3.4. Individual Radiation Exposures During Outages
3.5. Meet with DCPP Officer
3.6. Recent Modifications to Reactor Coolant Pump
Vibration Monitoring Systems
3.7. Safety/Security Interface Program
3.8. Meet with Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC)
Resident Inspector
3.9. Buried Tanks and Piping Program
3.10. Systems Engineering Department Update
4.0 Conclusions
5.0  Recommendations
6.0  References

Report on Fact Finding Meeting at DCPP on August 21-22, 2019
1.0 Summary
2.0 Introduction
3.0  Discussion
3.1. Meet with Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) Senior
Resident Inspector
3.2. Operational Decision Making
3.3. Quality Verification Assessment of Abnormal Operations
Procedures
3.4. Spent Fuel Management
3.5. Containment Spray System
3.6. Safety Systems Functional Failures
3.7. Refueling Outage 2R21 Preview
3.8. Meet with DCPP Site Vice-President Paula Gerfen
3.9. Nuclear Safety Culture
3.10. 2019 World Association of Nuclear Operators Evaluation Results
3.11. Meet with San Luis Obispo County Director of Emergency Services
4.0  Conclusions
5.0  Recommendations
6.0  References

Report on Fact Finding Meeting at DCPP on September 11-12, 2019

ix



AGENDA PACKET

1.0 Summary
2.0 Introduction
3.0  Discussion
3.1.Operations Shift Turnover Briefing
3.2.As Low As Reasonably Achievable (ALARA) Review Committee
Meeting
3.3.FLEX Program
3.4.Safety Fair Observation
3.5.Crane Program
3.6.Reactor Coolant Pump Turning Vane Bolt Cracking
3.7.Probabilistic Risk Assessment Programs
3.8.Condensate System
3.9.Meet with Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) Senior Resident
Inspector
3.10. Refueling Outage 2R21 Safety Plan
3.11. Single Point Vulnerabilities Program
3.12. Employee Retention Program
3.13. Meet with DCPP Officer
4.0 Conclusions
5.0  Recommendations
6.0  References

D.4  Report on Fact-finding Meeting at DCPP November 6-7, 2019
1.0 Summary
2.0 Introduction
3.0  Discussion

3.1. Meet with NRC Senior Resident Inspector

3.2. Meet with DCPP Officer

3.3. Reactivity Management (last reviewed April 2018)

3.4. System Review: Containment Structure (last reviewed September 2016)

3.5. Plant Health Committee meeting

3.6. Engineering Excellence Plan (last reviewed December 2018)

3.7. August 2019 WANO evaluation report

3.8. Plant Tour: 2R21 outage activities and observe work in progress

3.9. View Recorded September 3, 2019 Listening and Learning with Jim

Welsch, Paula Gerfen, and CEO Andy Vesey - perhaps during lunch.

3.10. Discuss the following for appropriateness:

3.11. DCPP experienced two significant avoidable issues during Refueling
Outage 1R21 which were caused or exacerbated due to ineffective
implementation of its Corrective Action Program. These issues were
Reactor Coolant Pump seal leakage and Polar Crane Trip Reset.
Although neither issue was a major safety concern, each increased the
risk of an accident. The DCISC believes it prudent for DCPP to
examine its Corrective Action Program, including corrective action
effectiveness reviews, for ineffective implementation extent of
condition.

3.12. Update on the results of the following:



AGENDA PACKET

3.13. QV Assessment 191420002, OP AP-34 Series Fire Protection
Abnormal Operating Procedures - results of Operations Procedure Group
review of the 91 P-34 Series fire protection procedures.

4.0  Conclusions
5.0  Recommendations
6.0  References

D.5  Report on Fact-Finding Meeting at DCPP on December 11-12, 2019
1.0 Summary
2.0 Introduction
3.0 Discussion
3.1. Meet with Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) Senior Resident
Inspector
3.2. Cause Evaluation and Corrective Actions for Inadvertent Unit 2 ‘F’ Bus
Transfer
3.3. Intake Structure General Condition and Walkdown
3.4. Meet with DCPP Officer
3.5. Future Spent Fuel Management
3.6. Residual Heat Removal Systems
3.7. Transmission System and Unit 2 Reactor Trip Corrective Actions
3.8. Control Room Observation During Startup
3.9. ‘T+1’ Critique Meetings
3.10. Refueling Outage 2R21 Performance
4.0  Conclusions
5.0  Recommendations
6.0  References

D.6  Report on Fact Finding Meeting at DCPP on January 29-30, 2020
1.0 Summary
2.0 Introduction
3.0  Discussion
3.1. Attend Plant Health Committee Meeting
3.2. Maintenance Department Update and Pls
3.3. Troubleshooting
3.4. Maintenance Work Package
3.5. Generator Stator Refurbishment Video
3.6. Observe Training Session
3.7. Meet with NRC Senior Resident [nspector
3.8. Unexpected Energy Release
3.9. 4kV Relay Replacements
3.10. Meet with DCPP Officer
3.11. PRA Calculation: “Transition from Mode 5 to Mode 4 with Main Bank
500kV Unavailable.”
4.0 Conclusions
5.0 Recommendations
6.0  References

X1



AGENDA PACKET

D.7  Report on Fact Finding Meeting at DCPP on March 17-18, 2020

1.0 Summary

2.0 Introduction

3.0  Discussion
3.1. Meet with Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) Senior Resident

Inspector

3.2. Human Performance
3.3. Attend Notification Review Team Meeting
3.4. Auxiliary Saltwater System
3.5. Environmental Qualification Program
3.6. Auxiliary Feedwater System
3.7. Unit 2 Forced Outage
3.8. Special Protection System
3.9. Steam Generator System
3.10. Pandemic Response Planning for the COVID-19 Coronavirus Threat
3.11. Future Spent Fuel Management
3.12. Mode Change Sequence Following Refueling Outage 2R21
3.13. Meet with DCPP Officer

4.0  Conclusions

5.0  Recommendations

6.0  References

D.8  Report on Fact Finding Meeting at DCPP on April 15-16, 2020

1.0 Summary

2.0 Introduction

3.0  Discussion
3.1. Meet with NRC Senior Resident Inspector
3.2. Unit 2 Forced Outage
3.3. Quality Performance Assessment Report
3.4. Quality Verification Audits and Nuclear Industry Evaluation Program
3.5. Final Spent Fuel Risk Analysis
3.6. Component Cooling Water System
3.7. DCISC Member meet with DCPP Chief Nuclear Officer Jim Welsch
3.8. Online Maintenance Update
3.9. Integrated Risk Assessment Update
3.10. Operations Department Update
3.11. Observe Licensed Operator Training
3.12. DCPP Coronavirus Update

4.0 Conclusions

5.0  Recommendations

6.0  References

D.9  Report on Fact Finding Meeting at DCPP on May 12-13, 2020
1.0 Summary
2.0  Introduction
3.0  Discussion
3.1. Meet with NRC Senior Resident Inspector

xii



AGENDA PACKET

3.2. Variable Frequency Drive Motor
3.3. Non-Licensed Training

3.4. Health of EDGs

3.5. PCS

3.6. Meet with Station Director

3.7. Attend Plant Health Committee
3.8. Margin Management Program

3.9. ABVS
3.10. COVID-19 Update
4.0 Conclusions
5.0 Recommendations
6.0 References
E. Record of DCISC Tours of DCPP
F. DCISC Open Items List
G. DCISC Public Contacts
G.1  DCISC Telephone/Correspondence Log
G.2  DCISC Correspondence

G.3 Comments Received at Public Meetings

H. Proposed Second Restatement Charter (approved at February 2020 public meeting &
Changes from Present Restated Charter

I Past DCISC Recommendations and PG&E Responses
J. DCISC Informational Brochure

K. Glossary of Terms

xiii



DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL FORM

MEETING DATE: October 23, 2020

AGENDA ITEM: XVI-B

AGENDA TITLE: Update on Financial Matters and DCISC
Activities During 2020-2021

CONSENT [ ] ACTION [ ] INFORMATION [X]

Staff Summary: It is expected that the Committee Members will hold a discussion
regarding Committee financial matters and DCISC planned activities
during the 2020 and 2021.

The Actual and Proposed DCISC Fact-Finding and Public Meceting
Items, with Key Dates, prepared by Committee Technical Consultant
Ferman Wardell is provided for your use in reviewing and planning
Committee activities.

RECOMMENDED COMMITTEE ACTION: As appropriate




DCISC Fact-Finding and Public Meeting Agenda Items for 2020-2021

July 21-22, 2020 Fact-finding Meeting (PFP, RFW) (AR Exhibit D.1)

Meet with NRC Senior Resident Inspector

Compressed Air System Review with System Engineer

Observe Plant Health Committee Meeting

2019 Radioactive Effluent Release Report & Radiological Environmental Operating Report

Containment Concrete Inspection with Camera Drone

Equipment Reliability Process Update

Operations Issue on Misposition Errors (Equipment Control Status)

DCPP Use of Social Media in Context of Emergency Response

Buried Piping and Tanks Program

0. Slight Rise in Unit 1 Power Operation Just Prior to its Curtailment to 89% Power Operation to
Address an Issue with Supplemental Grid Protection

11. Update on INPO Evaluation Actions

12. Meet with DCPP Officer

=R e B Sl i e

August 19-20, 2020 Fact-finding Meeting (PL, RDM) (AR Exhibit D.2)

Meet with Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) Senior Resident Inspector
License Amendment Request to Facilitate Auxiliary Feedwater Inspections
Unit 2 Forced Outage

Fire Protection and Detection Systems

Attend Corrective Action Review Board Meeting

Evaluation for Extending the Unit 1 Steam Generators Secondary Side Inspections
Containment Ventilation and Hydrogen Mitigation Systems

DCISC Member Meet with DCPP Officer

Employee Concerns Program

10. NRC Inspection Finding on Emergency Siren Maintenance

11. Status of Responding to the COVID-19 Pandemic

12. Self-Assessment Program

13. Attend Plan of the Weekend Review Meeting

RN E WD =

September 9-10, 2020 Fact-finding Meeting (RJB, RFW) (AR Exhibit D.3)
NRC Licensing Issues Status

Outage Safety Training

Meet with DCPP Site Vice-President Paula Gerfen
Auxiliary Feedwater System License Amendment Request
[R22 Refueling Outage Safety Plan

Meet with NRC Senior Resident Inspector

Control Rod Issues

Postponed/Cancelled Projects

Nuclear Instrumentation Systems

10 Overall Probabilistic Risk Assessment Program Update
11. Operational Decision-Making Program

12. Employee Retention Participation Update

D100 1 Ol B 2 IS, =

October 22-23, 2020 Public Meeting (AR Exhibit B.3)

November 10 & 12, 2020 Fact-finding Meeting (RJB, RDM) (AR Exhibit D.4)

10/13/2020 1 October 2020 Public Meeting



December 8-9, 2020 Fact-finding Meeting (PFP, RFW) (AR Exhibit D.5)

January 27-28, 2021 Fact-finding Meeting (PL, RDM) (AR Exhibit D.6)

February 16-17. 2021 Public Meeting (AR Exhibit B.6)

March 17-18, 2021 Fact-finding Meeting (RJB, RFW) (AR Exhibit D.7)

April 20-21, 2021 Facl-finding Meeting (PL, RDM) (AR Exhibit D.8)

May |1-12. 2021Fact-finding Meeting (PFP, RFW) (AR Exhibit D.9)

June 23-24, 2021 Public Meeting (AR Exhibit B.9)

July 14-15, 2021 Fact-finding Meeting (PFP, RDM) (AR Exhibit D.1)

August 18-19, 2021 Fact-finding Meeting (PL, REW) (AR Exhibit D.2)

September 222-3, 2021 Fact-finding Meeting (RJB, RDM) (AR Exhibit D.3)

October 19-20. 2021 Public Meeting

‘DCPP 2020-2021 Key Dates

NSOC Meetings (DCISC invited only to the 2-hour exit meeting on the final day, Thursday)
November 16, 2020 (final day 11/190

March 1, 2021 (final day 3/4)

July 12,2021 (final day 7/15)

November 1, 2021 (final day 11/4)

Refueling Outages
1R22 October 4 — November 11, 2020
2R22  April 25 — May 28, 2021

Emergency Preparedness
12/2/2020 — Charlie Team Full Scope Drill

10/13/2020 2 October 2020 Public Meeting



DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL FORM

MEETING DATE: October 23, 2020

AGENDA ITEM: XVI-C

AGENDA TITLE: Consideration of Issues on the
Open [tems List

CONSENT [ ] ACTION [X] INFORMATION [X]

Staff Summary: It is anticipated that the Committee will hold discussion concerning
the items appearing on its Open Items List prepared by Committee
Technical Consultant R. Ferman Wardell, P.E.

RECOMMENDED COMMITTEE ACTION: As appropriate, review and provide
direction.




0c/EL/6 Heiq puodsg

J|suenp=0D Bunesiy a11and = Nd Bunas|y Buipuy-1oed = 44 Buiesy land 0202 ‘€2-2Z 4290100
+H-02/6 AI0jOBJSIIES — 4-H0Z/6 UB|d UOIJUB)aY [|BioA0 pamairsy ‘RICJoBisies — 4461 /] sue|d sse|D asuaol
446176 1o1e1od( pamainey] |esauab ul uoijels syl se ||om pue sJo)elado pasuadl| 0} aouaJtaal yum A|8solo anss) siy)
440C0v 4461/L | MO||o} plnoys aaliwwod ) ing pabeuew AleAnoagye aq o} Joafoid uonuslal Jojesado ay) punoj wes) 9Si0d ayL E| ¥1-00
['weJbold Joinus 1amod Ajojes alland buipnjoul '4461/z1 pamairey] [ Aiojoejsies
— 4461/G 1B pamalnay] "uoneziuebio uoissiwsuel) 3994 dYl Wol saAljeuasaldal spnjoul pnoys yoiym
Buipuiy-1oe) DS10Q 21niny e 1o} o1do} s|gelns e aq Wbiw siy} pasibe uosisled Iq PUB %08d I ‘Suosea. palejal
-pub 10 uononpoud jo asnesaq Indino Jamod [leunod o} saAljusdul Buisealoul 0} enp d40Q Joj $80inos Jamod
3)Is Jo ajewia) e 4o Ajjige|ieAe ay) 10aye 1ybiw sabejno 1o swajqoid uoISSILISURI) JO ¥SU 8Y) Ul 9SBaloul Uk jey)
= [enuajod s| 818y} paAISSAO U0SISldd "I sanssi Alljigels abejjoa AM0EZ apnjou| uonelado Jo sieak |euly s Buunp
LzZovioc | 4461721 ‘suonenion|y ABiaua sjgemaual 0) anp BuiMo||0) PEOj SB YoNs ‘SapoW JUaJalip Ul dd0d 81elado 0] saAleijiul
4461/G Aue mainay “sjusisuel) 4ddOa ul ynsal jey; Aoljod Buimojjos peo] OSIYD Ul 10 suonejuswajdwi Aue maiAsy n €1-0D
[ Aojoeysies — 440z/f @ouewlouad suonelad( pamalray] ‘siseq Jenbal
440z/v e uo souewIopad Juswpedsq suoljeladQ MatAal 0} anuUOd pINoYs DSIDd 2yl pue Juswuedsq suoneladO
4481/Z1 | ay: utuawaroidwi oy payuap! seale ssaippe o} ade|d ul aie sueld [NdgL /2] pepniouos wes) 9s|10d ault [1es -
441202 | d4d/b/el | 4421/2) sduewsopad jdag sdO pamainay] [Aiojoejsies — 4491/ Ueld @0ua|[@ox3 SAQ '® SOUBULIOLSH UBWINKH
4491/8 sdO pamaIray] 'Sanss| pue sulaouod Jojelado Jo sniejs ay) A||edipouad maIAs) — SBNSSI PUB SUJSOUOD JojesadQ 1] LL-0D
4402/2 [s44 1e dn-mojjo} spaau — 440Z/F Pamalrey] ['uonnjosas uo dn mojjo4
4402/ 'sanss| Buluoiisodsiw awog ‘9beINo OZHZ JO JUBWISSISSE AD PamaInay] ['Aiojoeysies — 4461/ | 1B pomaIrsy]
440201 4481// "9A|0Sa! 0} suoljoe pue siole Buluosodsiw Jo sniels ay) Jojuow — (snjels Juawdinbg) sioug Buiuonisodsipyy n 0L-0D
446L/L1
jle]
44120¢ J0 pus [‘Aioyoejsnes — 4461/L1
Aleinbey Jeisn pue ‘4481 /¥ ‘4491/G Juswabeuepy AiAloesy pamainay] ‘syuow g| Aiana malaal — Juswabeuely AiAjoesy 4 6-0D
SINd 440¢/8
CEE 4402/ [ Aooeysiies — 440z/v ® 4402/ @6eIno paoioy Z nun pamainay]
durisod | INd6BL/ZL (sbunasw o1jgnd 1e sy37 duy mainal) “sabejno paoloy pue — |enuew pue ojewoine — sdij J0joeal (|B JOJUO N 8-00
Kessaoau 4471/6 ‘UOSEAS WIOIS JJUIM
sy 44S1Lp [enuue Jaye Jo Buunp [Aiessadau se o] sieak omy A1ans ABajess pue sousiadxe asuodsal WIoIs ddDa MaIASY N /-0
(09) suopesadQ jo Jonpuod 09
uonoy | suonoy ‘ON
J1XaN jseq NOILJINOSIA/AH09ILYI INTLI NIdO | 3dAL | W3LI

PasIAS) 10 MU aJe SIIe}| Pay Ul SWway|

anss| = | dn-mojjo4 = 4§ 10)IUON =i\

1202-0202 —1SI7 swa)j uado sepiwwog Ajayes Juspuadepu| uokues ojqelq

:adA] way uadp




d
0¢/EL/01 Hela puodss

Jauenp =0 Bunesiy dliand = d Bunasy Bulpuy-joe = 44 Bunss 211and 0Z0Z ‘€2-2Z 1890100
_ (d3) ssaupaiedaiq Aousbiawz d3
Jeah 110 [‘Aso)oeisnes — 440¢/8 94V
Jad souo | Jo pua e [papusyy] [1s17 sway usdQ ayi Jo pus ayl 1e sajep Yjim pajs)| ale pamainal swelbold 018 ‘Buniewysuag [30 jo asn
1ses| 1sl| @85 [sulj pue] asuauadxg Bunelad( ‘UBLWISSESSY-9S ‘UONDY BAI081I0D) swelbold juswanosdw| asuewiopsd dd0d L-1d
suresboid Juswanoiduwi| asuewiopad id
4402/8 [oioessies — 440z/8 403 pemeiray] (sweiboid uoiuidQ [euoissejoid
4461/8 Bunaghig % suseouo) askoidw3 Buipniour pue ‘jaued Buuoluopy ainyn) A1sjes Buipnjoul ‘JuswuosAug
44120 | INd8L/O0L JIOAA SNO1osU0D) AJajes Jasqns syl pue) ainynd Ayejes sy Bulaoldwi/Buiysijgeiss ul ssaiboid 4d40Qg mojied 4 9-SH
JUSWUOIIAUT YJOAL SNOI9SUO)) Ajojes pue Ajajes JedjonpN ‘yjjeaH SH
4410z | d446Lp ['Mooeysies — 4461/ pamalray]
io| 442172 | '0S1Da Ag pamainal aq pinoys welboid uonealasq uswabeuey ay; Ul sjuswaaoidwi pue SUOIEAISSJO JBYLINS ] GZ-dH
snooy Jojesado o} saAjuadul g Juswabeuell SSalis JUBWSdUBYUS UoHUS)E ‘Sanss| 0|0s ou, ‘ssaully |eaisAyd
4402/¢ ‘Buibe Jojesado Ajjeiuuaig mainay] (juswdojaaaq ‘BIO ‘@ous|@ox] JO SIBIUSD ‘WWo2gNS ¥ asRIWwo)) bulsalg
Nd6L/0L oUBWIONSd uBWNH ‘Ao110d A)jIgEIUNODOY [BUUOSIad ‘swelboid uononpal ssals ‘g44 ‘Sonsijels Joiaeyaq
44020¢ 4481/6 juessqge 's|d dH ‘sweiboid uononpal Jous Buipniour) sway Joiaeyaq uewny g aouewliopad UeWINY MaIASY n L-dH
aouBWIOMAd Jueld JO Aouaidi] @ Ajajes Buiroidwi| pue S101J3 UBWINH :90UBLLIONSd UBWINH dH
44020 | d446L/L1L ‘ue|d 8y} JO SJUSLLDID PAJO3ISS JO MIIADI PI|IBIOP SJOW B Y)IM ainjny
4481/21 83 ul dn moj|o} pinoys pue ueyd [aous|@ox3 Buisauibug] sy} JO MBIAISAO UB PaAISoal Wed) Bulpul-joey ay | 4 L€-NJ
110
Jo puaie ‘'sbuneaw seinbail Jayjo pue ‘Bunosiy AJoeEND MaIASY DoUBLLIONS ‘pieog MaIAey
Aueinbay 1sl| 995 UONOY SAI09L0D 'WES | MBIASY UOHEDLNON ‘98)ILUWOD YIEsH JuB|d 9AI9SJO 10 MSIASI PINOYS Jaquialy yoeg 4 02-N3
110 [1s17 sway uadQ siy1 Jo pua alf} 1e Salep Yum palsl| ale pamairal swelboid
jopuaie | :ooN] e ‘Buyers Juswsbeue uibiey ‘Buisa] anep ‘(sueld wial-buo) g yyeay waisks) Bussuibug wa)sis
Aeinbay 181| 998 ‘uswabeuep ‘swsbeuepy uoieinbiyuon Buipniour ‘sweibold Buussuibug Jofew syiuow g |-z | A1oAs malnay | 61-N3
10 ['¥s17 sway| uadQ siy} Jo
Jopudie [ pua aylle salep Yum paisi| SJe pamalaal sWaISAS 9JON] 'S4 e Jaaulbu] WaIsAS YIM umopyem g aouewlopad
Keinbay 1sl| @8S | 8Iny soueusiuely ‘ueld wis)-buol ‘yyesy waisAs ‘(Jusuodwod Jo aInons 10) WalsAs B malAdl — SWaSAS ddOd 4 91-N3
(N3) sweiboig Bunesuibug N3
441201 [‘Aiojoeysiies — 440z/1
440271 pamainay] "Alenuue Ajglewixoidde -0)e ‘Bulyels ‘sainseaw aouewload Juswpeda SoUBUSIUIBI MOIASY W €1L-ND
‘WEes| MaIASY Ysiy pajesbaju| ue Jo uonippe oyl yum papeibdn Ajjenueisqns
110 Ua3ag aABY S8iNPad0ld XSy S80UBUSIUIBIY SUIT-UQ PUB MSIY SOUBUSIUIEI JO JUBWSSISSY ddDd "@2uBuUalUIEW
Jopusie BUII-UO JO JUNOWE JO pual} MalAay sl Bunoedwi g Bunjom sI 1 j|om moy Inoge ajnpayos aoueusiulepy Builjjoy
Aeinbay 181} 995 %8dMm-Z | 8y} Buipnjour ‘Ajjlenuue-1g sdueUSUIBW SUI-UOC JO UohEIUSWa|dWI BY} MBIAS) :80UBUSIUIR SUIl-UQ N 0L-IND
441¢0¢ | 446L/11 "suojoadsul
sO4Y Jo 44/21/8 | piom Jaul| 1aa1s 1o} sjuswalinbas 9pod JINSY (g) pue (uoiepelBap) sainjonuis JUSWUIBIUOD JO [S] JO) Sluswaiinbal
lled yoeg EE4Yi 9y} sepiroJd yoIym ‘GG 0GH 4001 O3 Juswipuswe ay) (1) yim Buikidwoo u sseiboid s, 3994 Malnay L-ND
(WD) adueuajuiey Jo }onpuod WD




3
0¢/€1/01 Yelq puodsg

Buenp =0 Bunaay ol1and = Nd Bunesy Burpuy-joeq = 44 Bunssn 211Gnd 0202 ‘€2-2Z 1990190
(¥3) Juswabeuey 81943 aj17 pue Ajjiqeley juswdinb3y 3
440¢/cl | 4461721
04y yoe3g 44817/ (SO4Y Joye malAal) SaNsS| 9 S0UBWIOLSY (9N JBS|onN n 6-4N
(dN) 9ouewOMad [on4 JB3jONN 4N
110
Jo pus e
Keinbay 181| 988 ["Ai010BISIIES — 44 810Z UDIBIN 1B pamainay] - weibold v aiemyos 4 6-d0O
440¢/v ‘synsa. Aleak yum Yy 4o Jsuenb i apnjoul — Aj[enuue MaiASy SUONOE aAI1081100 JO SSauljown
441¢0¢ | 4461711 Buipnjoul ‘sipne [ejuusiq apisino $,399d SE [|aMm SE SIPNE AD JO S)nsal pue uoneziuebio 'seRIAloe ay) MoIADY N €-d0
(d0) sweibouag Ayjenp dD
4402// [Alojoeysies — 44g1// suodai ases|al

—44L2/02 4461L/2 uoielpel U®>>®_>®N_”_ 'S4 J|led JO JSWWING 1B M3INSY Jeak yoes yodal asegjal >H_>_HUNO_UN._ ddOd lenuue malnsy N cl-dy

440¢/2L | d461L/¢l

0O4¥ yoeg 4461/¢ [ Aojoeysies — souewiopad abeINO L ZYZ PUE |L2Y| pamairay] "aouewiouad 4y abeino mainsl Aenbay N £-dy

(d¥) uonoajosd uoneipey d

4402// [‘Ai0j0BiSNES — H402//
444202 | 4461711 pamainas] 110)eulpiood ddoa Yim meiasy ‘Juswanoidu| Joy sealy OdN| ¥oei 0) welboid s,ddDa JONUoN N 6-SN
02/6L/L1L
Bunssw 4421/€

XoN | 44SL/LL 'saNss| A)8)es Jes|onu JO MalAsl JIay) pue S9sS900.d JISY} 8AI8Sq0 0} A|leoipouad sBunssw DOSN JONUOR N G-SN

(SN) maiaay pue yBisianQ Ajejes JeajonN SN

['lexwans 810z [udy
ard 447116 | Vd dlwsies dd0a melnay] ['Alojoesies — 4491/8 Ve d OIWSISS pamainay] “Allenuue yid diWsIas mainay ['DYN

¢44020% 4491/8 | 0} [BRIWQNS 1xaU Ja)je malnay] ['Auojoeysiies — 44 /|/6 1e pamairay] "ssaiboid sishleuy Apibesq owsios Joyuopy 4 9-vy
4402/6 ‘Aouanbaly abewep 8100 U0 AASY JO SSO| JO APNIS ddDd MaIney JNd8L/Z] (9-0S 99s) 3su
ary 4461/6 | Iweuns) pue Buipooy |euss)xa apnjou| Buipooyy [eussiul (Jasuspuo) g AADD) Bpig suiqin] ssnijiqedes/sasinosas
44 4481/6 | dnoio vyd mainey ‘(sisAleue xsu umopinys ouoads jued Buipnpoul) Aemispun spom  Yonpy "M3IADI
LZopiog d44/1/6 | IxdU Ul sishleuy umopinys ® spesbdn vyd a4 apnjpul ‘Ajlenuue weiboid yyd [dlwsiss-uou] (jeiano M3INDY N G-vy
(vy) Juswabeuepy pue Juassassy Ysiy v
8S0/0 Wdoz/e ['Wd 020z Aienigaq1e OSIDQ Uim passnasip J010a1Ig “4461/8 Se0IMBS Aousblew] 0TS
¥-030 4461/8 J0J03.IQ Mau ypm Ja] "sasead uoijesado Jsye paonpal aq pinom J99d Woly saiuow J1ay) 18y Aiunod O1s Aq
0} P3SO[D | INd8}/0L | UJeduod sem aiayy Alojoeysiies — 4481/6 STO OIS Yim 1oy] "Buluoissiuwossp Buinp ssaupaiedaid Aousbiawg N e-d3
(Nd4d) ['ljup 8dods |iny = 0z/z/Z  8sioiaxa JxaN] DT 8 SLIN 9SI01axa J1oaq O} S|[lIp JO UOISUSIXD
asioiaxa | 448L/L1L pue ‘unod OS UlM 8SE3JS) UOHEWIOUI JO UOHEUIPJOOD ‘BIPaW |BIS0S JO 3sn ‘Oliqnd 8y} 0} SUOHEDIUNWLLOD
pajenjens 4481/8 asesjal uoneipes Buipnjou; ‘olignd pue elpaw sy} 0} SUOEDIUNWIWIOD D 0) uonuaye [epads Buiked

XN WNdZL/Z __“wmw_o._wxm_ paseg uoljoy 9jl1soH mC_UJ_OC__ >__m3CCm SISI2JoX3 pue s||up fouabiawa ddOd aAI8sqo pue puany N ¢-d3




L4
0¢/€1/01 Yeiq puodss

JBuenp =0 Buneay olland = Wd Bunaay Bulpuy-joe4 = 44 Bunsa 211Gnd 0202 ‘€z-zT 1890100
(93s) Aundag o3s
4402/21 710 | [buiurely pax.om abejno [ejuswa(ddns uo dn mo||0} 0} PaaU — 4461/ pamainay] "Aloloejsies — 44/ /6 pamainay]
jopusie ['1s17 sway uadQ 2yl Jo pua au] je salep malaal welboid J4 BION] ‘wes) DSIDA 8yl 01 Aloyoejsies paleadde
04y yoe3g Isl| @38 uonjosa. siy} pue (JN4) uoisn|oxa |elayew ubiaioy jo qol Ja}ag e op 0} SPadU } ey} paulwuIalep sey ddod E| S-NO
4402/6
Wdie/e | d46L/Cl ) [‘Aoyoeysies — 440z/6°9 4461/6 '8 4461/1 1e pPomaINSY] SN PuE S44
04dY yoeg 446L/6 | 12 9beno yoes Buimol|oy ‘'saoueseslo Buipnioul ‘synsal abejno ‘spuali uiblew Ajajes ‘ue|d Alajes abeino mainay N ¥-WO
440¢/11 440¢/€
Od4d yoe3 | d461/L1L [ Aojoeysnes — abeino padiog Z Jun pamalnay]
4461/ | "synsas uondadsul pue soLIBW 9ouBWIOUSd JOJBIBUAS) WESIS MIIADY yiom auligin) abeino mainay “(ebejno jo
4481/ | pus) uonoadsul/umopyEM JUSWIUIEIUCD PUE ‘WO0Y [0J3UOD ‘JISJUS7 UoeuIpIoo)) abeing Jojuow ‘sabeino 6uung W -NO
(WO) Juswabeuep abeing WO
uonoadsul | J402/8
DS Uim 440¢/€
04¥-180d | Nd8L/0lL 'LgYz pue | z2y| sabeino ul 6uinooo sise) pue suonosdsul JO s)nsey W L-9S
(98) asuewIouad 10JBIBUIS) Wed)S 513
110
Jo pus je
Aleinbay 1Sl 988 ['usaio N 'usal9) LN :4402/S 18 pamainay] — (sH@3l) siolelsuan) [asalq Aouasbiawg 4 6%-3S
4461/8 [uswanoldwi yonw — 44/1/9 pue 44/1/zz/c pemairey][ jojuow
44020v NdZL/9 0} 8NUIJUOD — JusWwBAcIdWI Yonw — 4461 /6 1 pamalnay] “A[lenuue mainal — salnjie [euonoun 4 walsAg A1ajes 4 Zv-3as
110
JO pua 1e ['ploy uo peoe|d 108loid JoLueg] Jaluleq
Aleinbay 181| 995 uo108)0Jd JBLUIOJSUBY) JO SNIEIS MOJ|04 'SUOIIOB DAI}0S1I00 ‘sain|ie) ‘abeyes| 3 siawioysuel] Jo Sne)s ay) JOIUO 4 0v-3S
441¢0¢
446L/¢1L [Aioyoejsies — 4461/2L PUe ‘44/1/6 ‘d4¥L/LL ‘44 €1/9 ‘44 60/ 1B pamalrey]
rAASTA "sabejno Buienyal pajos|as Buimoljo) SaINjoNNS SXEJU| 81210U00 JO sliedal pue suoloadsul ay) IN0) pue MaIASY 4 6¢-3S
446L/v
Zede | ddlLe [‘Aoioeysiies — 4471/ pamainay] ‘pajepdn aie suonosfoid swijey| [9ssan
2241 4491/€ | @Anoays pue pazAjeue s| sa|dwes 9oUE||IaAINS JO }3S 1XaU JaYe Snje)s 9ouel|dwod [9SSaA ainssald J010Ba1 MOIADY W 9z-3S
(38) swajqoid/eduewiopuad Juswdinbg pue waysis 38
Wdoz/e
WdliLz/e 4481L/¢ [ Aio1oysies ~ NJ0Z/Z pamalnay] Juswdolanap Jeye Alenuer yoes ueld bunesado ddDq moirey E| L-30
(30) Juawdojanaqg B ssauaanoayg jeuoneziuebio 30
alfe) ‘2INjny 8} Ul WisYl SIY} JO
10 pus Je | M3IASI S} BNUIILOD pInoys DSIDA 8ul pue Juswaroidwi Buipasu se pajel spunole-yIop) leuoiiesado pue Bopioeg
Alenuuy 1sl| 993 | sjusuodwo) jeonD Juslole(Q Joj sioledipul 8y | Ajlenuue Ajsjewixoidde sseooid Aljigelay Juswdinbg ay) Jonuop N G-y3




¢
0¢/€1/0l Yelq puodes

13Lenp =0 Bunesiy aliand = Nd Buneapy Buipuy-1oe = 44 Bunss dl1and 0202 '£2-2Z 1990100

(YN) swa)y| uoissiwwon Aioje|nbay JesajonN N
4402/6 ['Aioroejsies — 550z/6 » 4402/t Buluiel} J0je1ado pasuadl| pamairsy]
4402/ [1es — 44/1/1 | Buiuien X374 pomalray] [walsAg somod D@ "Bu3 g Bututen voO L sdo paniesqQ] [Buluies)
440207 440Z/1 Joye|nwis pasueyug apnjou| ‘sbunssw 44 ul Ajjeaipoliad sasselo ‘uoneoljiienb-al ‘3sUS0I| Jojeiado aARsSqO 4 o-a1
440¢/S ['Asoroessies — 4402/G 61-QIANOD Buunp
44020+ 446172 Buiuiel] pamairay] “Alenuue jsea) je swelboid Buluien pajipaldde g suoiesado |eoiuyoa) SSUS0I-UOU MBIASY W a1
(g1) sweiboug juswdojaaaq g buiuiea] a’l
4461/€ [Aio10essiies — 4461/1 uonoadsu| d4 [eluusil DYN pamainey] [ Aiooeysies - 4461/¢
4461L/1 2 44/ 1/1 1 POMSIASY SI00p 3.14] suawiedw JO UoI110a.1109 o} (Ueld Juawabeuey 8|0AD ay 100 1ue|d) SIo0p
441201 4471711 341} Joyuoy syluow xis Auans swiayshs papeibap Jo uoioaII0D pue Y)eay syl MSIASY "suonoadsul [eluusiy DYN
KR pue sypne AD Buipnioul ‘sieak asiyj-omy A1aas swiaisAg pue welbold uonosiold ail4 Paseq-G08-Yd4N MaIASY N S-d4
(dd) uonndayoud adig dd
[‘uapum suoieolynoN ‘s1euIged
I8} paindasun Jo sajdwexa om] INq — AICJOBJSIIES [|BIOAO — 4461/G Pamalray] ‘piepuels uanum e pey jueid ay)
ybnouyje ‘sianouiny jsuuosiad seo1A9S Bulpiing Buunp Jajsues) abpajmous syenbapeur Aq pasnes asam (ainpuiny
ddd d4461/Z) | peoeiqun 6'8) spiepuels olwsies aoejdyiom ul salouedasosiq] “Algels eo yselo, sainpsoosd Wooy [04jUo)
4402/2) 4461/G | pue uonnjosal uo dn mojjo) — swajqoid dWos — 4481/G Je pamalray] “Ajlenuue mairal — Ajajes olwsias aoe|d)yIop 4 Z1-0S
4461/€ "Aojoejsies — 4461/¢ 1 pamainal dS11
4491/8 | 'lned sulaioys Byl Ulim S)USAS pue Sal)IAIlOB MOJ|0) — }Ne sullaloys ‘NdSL/9 1B ddDa Ag pejussald ag 0} %9 44
ary 44GL/LL Gl/e pamadinal Apnis J1WSIBS dd0qa [1onuow o) snunuog “Aiojoejsnes ssaiboid — 44 01/¢ pamalray] “Nd 60/9
441201 NdSL/9 e pamalney 1n200 Aoy} se sjuans olws|as Juedyiubis mainay “Ajjesipoliad mainal Wwelboid owsies wus | -buo n £-9S
SJusAz |eusd)xg 19Yj0 pue l[Weuns| “Jlusias 7] 7S
ary | IdeL/ol
44zzo¢ Ndg8L/9 'SISA|BUB DILUSISS 1S31E| S "UOISUSIX3 asUd2l| SH Ul [S4S] J0 Aoenbape oiwsias ay) mainsy n ¢-48
S|BJ2W JO UOIS0JII0D
44020% | 446l/¢L | apnjou| ‘sueid Jaysuel) [any Juads Aeg IpjoquinH 3 SONOS JONUO ‘[8n} Joadsul 0} sysed Buiuado 10) Spaau JOHUO
4461/ | 910 siauoissILWOD pue Apnis yeis DN 2beio)s [00d pue YSeo JO SHSK SAIEIRI JO SEOUBADPE [EDIUYIS) MO|[0 N Z2-41s
4461/8 ["Aioroeysnes — 4461 /¢ [9ny Juads Jo JuaWwaAoW 81NN} PaMaIASY [ AIOJoBjSIES
44020% 4461/ | — 4-481/2 ISSI pamalray] ‘ubledwes jxau Buimojjo) meiney ‘Jajsues) sed Buipnjoul ‘suonelado |S4S| JojUoN 1-4S
(:1S) 1S4S1 — uone|esu| abeio)g [ong Juads juspuadapuj 48
4461/¢ ["Asoyoesnes — 4461 /¢ Allinoas 18qko |013u00 [eybip pamairay] ['sieak saly;
ary INdB1/Z | 01 omi Aueas weibold AnossiagAD ayy maiAal 0 8nNUUOD pihoys DS dYL :4481/6] @1e|dwoo uoneusws|dwi|
441201 Nd8L/9 | "aInpayds OYN yum doueljdwod ul welbosd Aunoss saqho siayy Bunuswaeiduwn ur ssaiboid 4dqoQd MIINDY N #-03S
4461/¢1L ‘uonelado
44617/ | ueld uo joedwi Jo 1xJU0d 3y} Ul AJUO pamsiAdl Ing PamalAal Jou 8s Jad Aundss jueldq A1ajes Jesjonu uo SLETIEY
44020V d4481/G | 40} ssaupaiedaid Aousbiowg pue ‘soueusjuiepy ‘Buussuibul ‘suonesadp pue Aninoeg JO UOl1oBISBJUI JOHUOW N £-03S




9
0¢/€1/01 Yelq puodeg
Is3penp =0 Bunespy oland = Nd Bunea Buipuy-1oe4 = 44 Bunesiy slland 0Z0z ‘cz-zz 1200100

"020Z 21€| Ul uiebe yuswypedaq Bulissuibug waisAg syl mainal DS1DQ 8l
PaPUSWIWO023. JSUOYADIA "IN pue sabueyd [euoneziuebio uesyiubis BuioBiapun sijuslupedaqg syl INq swalsAs

44020V | INd61/0L Jueld jo yyeay ay) buibeuew ui aAnosys aq 0) Juswedsq Buussuibug waeisAs ey punoj wes) DS10A dYL E| €
c
‘as0j0 — Aiojoejsiies — 4-0z// pamainay 'ue|d Juswabeuey 19ssy Nd
+H-0z// M3U 3y] 4O S)INsal 8yl SSOSSE 0} 0Z0Z 4O By ISJ1 8Y} Ul swiswos welboid mau sy} MaIAal PINoYS 83jlILuWo) 6102
8S0/D | INdBL/0L | 8yl ing pajuswsajdwi Aj9Alosye aq 0} sieadde weibold Buidid pue s)ue] paung ay) papn|oucd wes) 9S10d YL 4 100
(sabed sajnujy Bunasiy 211qnd :99usiayay) (Wd) sway bunasy 21qnd
4402/8
440¢/S
441201 440¢/v sassed Jealy) |jun Nd pue 44 Yoes je mainay ‘sadijoeld/saaneniuiasuodsal 6L-GIAOD E| 0

[‘AIojoeysiies - 4461/21 $old Janouiny

Hlys suonesadQ pamssqQ] ‘010 ‘saiAnoe abejno !sissulbus walsAs Yum SUMOP Yjem Wa)SAS ‘suoneslipow
wajshs ‘@ouBUSIUIEW SAI)OSII0D PUE BAJUSASId ‘S)S8) SOUEB|IIDAINS ‘JBAOUIN] PIYS WOOY [0U07) ‘Spunol Jojesado
440z/1 se (yons ‘Ajsjes Jesjonu o] Juenoduwil s9ss990.d YoM Jued By} Ul BAIBSgQ SUONEAIaSqO $So201d IO “Allenuue

+440z/2L | 4461721 Inoge asay} Yyym anunuo) “Ajjeoipouad jueld ay) ulyim (S9ss9001d %I0M) SUOINIOAS JO SUOIIBAISSJO WIOUSY 4 L-O
(0) sway| 18Y10 [¢]
wWdiese Ndoc/e ['Nd 0z0z Kienige Je 9S10Q M passnosIp 10198110 “446 /8 SAOIAIBS Aousbiowg 0TS
10 4461/8 JOj081IQ M3U UM J9IN] 's8sead uoljelado Jsyle pasnpal aq pinom 395 d WoJ saluow Jisyy 1y Auno) OS Aq
INdOZ/0L | INd8L/0L | uiedouod sem aiay) Alojoejsnes — 4481/6 STO 0TS uim 19N ‘Buluoissiwwoosp Buunp sssupaiedsid Aousbiawg | ¥-030
Wdoz/e
Nd61/01 ‘umopinys-jsod ajo1 e Aejd pinoys OS1DQ S} JaUldyMm Inoge UOHEOYLIEID %33S ||IM pue uonelado jued

Ndoz/ol Nd6L/9 je pouad ay) Buunp sjoedwi [enusjod ayy 03 snp Buluoissiwwooap ul pajsassiul Allediound swn siyl 1e si 9S00 4 ¢-03d

‘uoien|eAs ey} 4o 1N0 SeW0d yalym podal ay) yojem pue Jiem (im DS1Dq oul

papodal Zjiupng "I “MOPUIM JESA-USASS B SASIYDE 0} MOPUIM JeaA-us) a8y} 1sed anow Ued ddod Moy aulwIsap
0] M3IA8J 10 JyBIp PUODSS S} Ul MoU sI Jey) Apnis [any) e Jo uoia|dwod ayl sl DNdD 8yl woly abieyd ay) 198w 0}
suoya Buluueldaid ay; Jo 1ed psuodau [sauor ] oH [Joyuow o} anunuo) ‘AIoyoeisies — 4481/ 1 1e pamaInay]
Nd61/01 ddOQ 40§ sue|d BUIUOISSILILLIODSP S, 399 d JO MBIASI B Ul 866U ||IM }1 JUBIXS JeyMm O) PUB JSUISUM SIIIUS
Wd6L/Z | Bunuiodde sy yym ssnosip pue msiaal 0} paau [IM DSIDQ Y3 pue Buin pue sjel o swia) ul BUILOISSILILIOD3P O}
3448L/L1L uexe} sayoeosdde s|diynw Usaq SABY I8 PIAISSIO UOSIS)Rd IQ '[ony Juads Buibeuew o) 0adsas yim suondo

WdSL/0L 8.njnj pue Buigels uo yoedwi |eruajod auy) Jo asnesaq ddDqd J0) sueld BuluoISSILUWOoap au) MaIASI A]9AROE
4481/¢ PINOYs DS10Q uonvadsul o4 sis)siued asodindinw usdo oy Ajjiqeded ayy asoj |jm Jueld syl PaUOISSILLWIOIP
WdZL/0L a.e sjood [any Juads sy} usym pue abeio)s Aup o} }om Woly Jgysuel) |any Juads Jo Buiwin sy MaIASY ‘G202
NdozZ/0l EEYA ul umopinys juejd paoioy [esodold JUlor 8y} Jo Ynsal e se Ajjesipouad sueld BuIuoISSILWDSP ddDd MaIASY 4 L-03a
Bujuoissiwwodaq 4 93a
(3uaa3 ewysnyng ‘B°a) sjusA] siseg ublisag puokeg | aag
Aeinbay | s441sow ‘Auenbal s10j0adsu| Juspisay DYN UM 193y 4 ¥-dN
Wd uoeg leake 'sbunssy 0lland qa4/uer au} Je Ajlenuue Weibold Buipuai] g BUBOEI] UONE|OIA PAYID-UON ayj Jojiuo N -4N




L
0Z/€1/01 Yeid puooss
18UeNnY = D Bunesy alland = Nd Bunss Buipuy-1oed = 44 Bunes 2l1and 0202 ‘€2-2Z 4990100

"sabeyoed Juawnoop Ajyjuows ayj jo ued se papiaoid Apealie Jou sem )i Ji Mairad SiI 10§ DSIDJ

8] 0] papinoid aq [IM JO Sem UORIPUOD PBIIM-SILW 8] JOf UOIIBNIBAT 8SNBY J00Y By} Jey] 8insus pue %ooyo
0] pasiwo.d eioies) Jyy pue suoneiadQ oL303]|F Ylim Paeys SBM UOIIBNIBAS 8SNeD J00J 8Y] PBLLLIJLOD BIoJEL)
ddod U "Uodses uonIpuog Jo Jualxs Bulim-situ ayj ojul pejueliem aq jybiw Ainbul ue peaissqo zjupng I PUE WwajsAs
Bungiemy |  wdoz// UOISSIWISURI) BY] Ul 819Ymas|a Josys Aue 1oj uoieziuebio UoISSILISUBL| 3954 9yl AQ PoMaIAGl SeM anssI Il | < €

['8s0j ‘A10]0BSI}BS SUOIIOR 8119581100 PUE 8SNED JOOJ —
4402/6 | H4402/6 1B PamaInay] 'SuOOR 8AIJ08.LI0D By} SSISSE 0] pue SWajqo.id [04JU0D POJ B8Y} JO 8SNED 8Y] PUlj O] JUBAS 8]

8s0/D) Wd0zZ// | Mmeinal 0] snunuod pinoys HS1Od dyj 1nq psjpuey Agjeudoidde sem abejno paalo) z jiun ayj papnjouod |+ ayj o b
3
‘Buipuiy Joey aininy e Bulnp meaiasl 0} DSINd Wd
8ly] 10J BlIYUMYLIOM SI YIIym Jo8dSe yons auo S Siy} pue sapnjouod diwepued 8y Ja)je anuijuod o} Ajayij aie Jeyj 0202
4402/2 1L Wd0z// | seonoesd urepso Buipnjoul ojwapued ayj 0} 8sU0dsal ay) WOl PauIed) G 0] Yoni Si 81ay] payiewal U0sia)od id 4 Ainr

"880J0 — Ai0joBySieS — 4402// e Pemairsy "palojuow Ajasojo aq pjnoys
4402// ey} Bale ue s| SIY} Jng UISSUOD JUeDdlIUBIS B SABY O} 99)IWIWOY 8U)} 10} UOSEAI B USa( Jou sey asay) A|Buipioooe

880/ Nd0Z/c pue 3|qejs pahe}s sey 4400 Joj 1e6png ay) pouad Aoydnnjueq 3:99d auyy Buunp jey) papodal uosisiad Iq k| 9l
9s0[) ‘pouad asuewlopad Juaiind sy} Joy sjoadse Bumnoa-ssouo
usy | paynuap! jo snjels Juasald ay) syoe4 teyl xulew e sbunsaw oygnd s,051DQ 8y} 18 malAal o) sapiroid Apeinbal

Wd02/01 WdO0gZ/Z | 99yszweH "IN s|eusiew sy ul spnjoul 0} pasibe asyazweH “J|\ ‘1sanbal s JBLOUADIN JUBYNSUOD 0] asuodsal u| 4 €l

['INd 0202 ‘2-1 Ainr 1e puodsey] -Buipuejsiapun 18y} 0} Se UOIBW.IIUOD 10}
99)IWWOY 3y} payse ay pue }sallies sy} Je GE0Z-2S0g BJID ISES) JE [jUNn palinbal 8q 01 8NURUOD PINOM S3SUB0IT
Wdoz// 0S Hed a3y} pue |S4S]| 8y} Je palo)s sem |any Jes|onu juads ||e swi} 8y} Je pajeuluwla) ag JoU PINOM Sasuaol
9s0/0 Nd0Z/C 0S Hed ayj Jey} Buipuelsiapun s NFY YIM JUSISISUOD SEM UOIIBWINSS S,UIMpleg “J\ POIEIS UBLWISIAA JN B 6

"S3N)IAIIOE uoIeIauab AJo1308I9 si saso)o pue saledaid g40Q se
Aessaoau aq |im jeY) uomisuel; sy} ebeuew o) padojaaap Buiaq suonesedaid ay) pue sueid .30 senbes||0o siy
440¢/\ 1 WdO0Z/Z | Pue Ipjezzng JIN Yim ssnasip o} s)isia Bujpuy-}oey ainny 8jnpayos o} spusiul 9S19d 84} pajuswwod zyupng “ig E| 8

‘Sorousbiowe oiwapued Joj eipaul [BID0S
18pisuoy) Buiajoas aq Aew sanigeded asay) moy maiaal Jayuny 0} Buipul-1oe) sinjny e Buiinpayos pajsabbns
4027/ uosiajed g "Aousbiaws ue Buunp sjeoluNWWO 0F Aem JuL||90X3 UE SE BIPSW |BID0S PaqLOSap 8y pue
8s0/) ndoz/z asuodsal Aouablaws JO 1X3)U0d Ul BIPSW [EIO0S JO 8SN S} PIMSIASI SBY 2a)ILUWI0T) 8Y) paxJews) uosislad "Ig 4 /

'9S0/0 "8Si Jomod Ou J01I18 UOKEJUBWINISUI — {H40Z/] PeMaIAsY Bulpul-1oe)
aimny e bunp 610z Jequiadaq ul L-)un Joj s Jamod Jyblis aul DSIDA Byl Yim maias) o} pasibe JoqueH I\
PuE W awes ay) Je uonesado Jamod ||y 0y Buiwinial z-n 0} payull Jo pajejas sem Jjemod |-n Ul 9SI By} aAaIjaq

44027/ lou pip 8y pajess JoqieH “J uoiosjoid pub [elusws|ddns yum anss ue ssalppe o} uonesado Jamod 9,68 0}
8s0[) d0Z/¢ | 1uswijieund sy o} Joud jsnf uonesado Jemod L-n ui asu 1ybiis e Bujuiaouod uonsanb s,uosis}ad “i1Q 0) asuodsal uj 4 9
9s0]0 AI0joBJSNES — J40Z// PemaIAay "uonsanb Jey} uo dn Moj(0) PIN0d DS|1DQ o4l parodal |ISpIep I
JN pue saiijigeded uonezijensia 01doosoais)s sey eJaWed ay} Jayiaym palinbul uosiajed Iq ‘suonoedsul Nd
4402// | ©say) Jo} eiawed uopnjosal-ybiy A1an e yum suosp e Buisn mou si jueid sy pue sieak any Alons soBUNS 81810U0D 0202

8S0[D) Wdo0Z/c Sl JO mC_UD_OC_ 91NjoNJ}s JusiuIRlUO 8] JO pajonpuod ale suoljoadsul 10 Jequinu e papodal |[ISPJEAA JIN | ga4




8
0Z/EL/0} Wi puoosg
1HEND =0 bunsa auand = Wd Bunssiy Buipuy-joes = 34 Bunssn 21iand 0Z0Z ‘€Z-2Z 499010

'Sd4S 8y}

wouj NS buipeoj-jjo ay) sbeuew o) pasn aq Jybiw Jey) seyoeoidde ayj 0} se saiULLIos) Y] Aq UOEPUSLLILLIOIS)
B J0 UOISNjou09 e 0] peasj pinod Uoissnosip oy} pue ejeudoidde aq pinom 2idoj siy) jo Bungasw aiignd jxau

8y} buunp uoissnosip e ‘epusbe pue dojarap o] sjueynsuoy) ay) o uonebajap ay) yum ‘jey; pesibe sisquiay oy
‘ONdD ey} woly jwad sj pue esipsdxe $.08100 ayj uiyim ALesio st Siy) peaiasqo ay pue AioLosie bBunesrsushb
pue buyeisado si jueid ayy usym ¥su ay} 0} pasedwod ApnIS 8y} Ul PaqLIOSaP SaIJIAIOE 8Y] JO YSLI BAIBIa] 8y} Jnoge
SNsuasuoo e 0} awoo o} buikiy Aq pejs Jybiw sapiwiwion ey} paxewsas zyupng g ‘Siefedsjel ay) 0} }S09 jo
X800 Ui Aejes ul seousIsyIp 8y} Jo sourdYIUBIS B} 0] yeads pinoys DSIDA 3y} Paje)s Uosisled Id pue d4od
nNdo0z/0! Wdoz/. buiuoissiwiwoosp o) Aed jim siefedajes ejuiofjes junowe ayj aq Jybiw UOLBILIO YoNS sUO PaJe}s uosialed Iq 4 0}

'sBuneswu aignd aininy pue sy}
Joj epuabe sy} uo S| Jejjew sy} pue PaASIYIE S| UOINIOSaI & [jun JisiA Buuy-joe) Buipsadons A1aAs Je eanssi Siy}

01-09 MOjjO} O] @apiiwio) 8y} 0) uoepudWLIDa] SIY] Saxeww poday BulpuiH joeH ay} pue o} pajjed si dn-mojjoy aiow
0} 8s0[D Wd0Z/. pue pauinba. aie suonoe Jusbulys ejow pue soueuliopad ajqejdosoeun sajeopur suoyesad( 1o Builes MOJaA v 4 6
01-02 "8nssI Siy) JojuowW 0} 8nuURUod pinoys DSIDJ eyl pue Buisiwoud siesdde ueld siy)
0} 8s0[D wdoz// pajejs ay pue pajusaldwil Usaq sey Snjejs usai9) o] suoheladQ winjas o} ueld uonoe ue payodal [JapIEA N ] 8
[eroqe

Wd 0202 AienigaH ui g4 weyj 88S] Syy7 einny [erusjod jo jsij e souewioped Aiojeinbes uo suonejussasd ainn;
40} apinod o] pasibe osfe '1Sanbai S JeLIOYMIY JUBHNSUOY 0] 8SUOMSS) Ul ‘BoijuBld N AIAoe uonosdsul HYN

Wd02Z/01L feuoiippe 48661y pinom yoiym uibrew ayy buiyoeoidde o uado aue jey) siaquinu ay) Buipnjoui sjoadse Buipno
loye -§S0.10 payiuap! Jo snjejs Juesaid ay) syoeu jey; pajusasaid aq jim xujew e soueusopsd Aiojeinbes 44HQg uo
8so|D wdoz/z suofejuasasd ainjny Joj Jey) pejejs eloIes) Iy pue aoiusid Iy }Sanbai S oLI0YMOW JUBNSUOD 0] asuodsal uj o /
‘ao
Wd0Z/0L wWdoe// Yoes $3juedw0d0. YdIyYm JY8] JOA0D ay) Ul g2 8y} Jo Aumn ay; o} se Ainbuy ue Bupnjour pajsebbns zjupng g 4 9
"S8NnuUIjuod
olwapued ayj se esuodsal s juejd ayj JOJUOW O} dNURUOD DSIDJ dY) Jey] PePUSLILIOS] B puE ajeldoidde
Z-0 8q 0j diwspued SNIABU0IOD 8Yy] 0] 8SUOCASaI S.ddDd PUNOY Buipul-joe) 0202 Y2Jew 8y Buunp | - 8yj pales
0] 8S0[D Wd0zZ// 8y pue diwapued ayj 0} 8sU0dsal S,d4DQ PeIepISU0D aaey SBuUIpul-1oe) 8injny jey) papodal JBLIOYMON N - g

Psebueyd aiem [eAIB}uUI UOROAdSUI Y] JI | JIUf) 10j powopad aq JijS pinom Duioue] abpnjs joyjoym

MBIABI 0S[e PINOYS B3RIWIIOD By} PBJEJS JOLOYMOW N Ainbul S,u0sI8}8 Iq 0] 8suodsal uj payayduwoo
uonenjeas SI }1 usym uonenjeAs ayj Jo MaiA8l Bulpul-1oe) e Jonpuod DSIDJ dY} PEPUBLLILICOaS | - 8y ‘AIeSSa08u oq
ddoag pinom s9S | jiun 8y Joj uoyosdsu; apis A1epuooas seyuny ou ‘pajueib Ji ‘pue SajoAd Xis 0} sauy] wol) uoyoSdsul
buremy | wdoz// 9pIS A1epuodss 8y} 1oj [eAIBjul uopdadsul ay) abueyo 0} Buiyess JepISUD 0} uofenjeAs ue Bulousd si ddod o b




0Z0Z das — UOBJUBLLINASU| 2J02-U[ 9 UOIIBJUSWINISU| JESIONN

6

0¢/€1/01 Helq puodss

Buenp =0 Bunesi o11and = Nd Bunesy butpuy-10e4 = 44 Bunes 211Gnd 0202 ‘€2-2¢2 1990100
810¢ 92@ — wawdinb3g Bulaniay 020z bny —abind ZH pue uolje|ljuaA JusLuuIBu0

0202 Aey — walsAS [0U0D) $S9001d SOY 610¢ bny — Aeuds swuleyuon

810¢ bny — sdwnd B waisAS U007 JojoRaY 6102 AON — 3Injdonung jJusluIBu0D)
2102 Bny — Buissaoold aysempey 6102 dag — Jajempas g a1esuapuo)

810¢ uer — buuoyuopy uoneipey 020z |nr — Iy passaidwo)

1102 AON — wlsAg uonosjold Jueid 0¢0z Jdy — Jajepn buijoon jusuodwo)

0202 Bny — swalsAg uopoa}eq 3 UONDS)0.d ali4

1102 Jey — uonoalu| ainssald YBIH pue walsAg [0JjuU0D SWN|OA 9 [eDIWByD
(120z-piw 1xau MaIAR)) 0202 AelN — uoneluaA Bpig xny

0zoz Aeln — ©a3 020¢ Je — Jejemyjes xny
610¢ Jdy — Jamod 2Q 0202 Je — Jajempas 4 xny
810z dag — swaysAg jenbig 6102 980 — A 00S ' AM 0€2

810Z dy — UONE|NUSA WOOoY |01U0D

0c0Cc Uer— A\ ¥

810z dos — Joje|nwig Wooy [0J3u0) AJEdIpoIad pemainay SjUSUOALLIO)/SWSISAS ddJd

J4-4120¢

Wdoe/L

Jeaf 8uo Jnoqe Ui SUOIJOR BAIJ08.1I00 SSISSE 0] POMBIASI 8q PINOYS PUB Yj[esy J1ef ul Sem WaJSAS

uoneuaA bulpjing Alelixny 8y} papnjouod | - 8y 'SUOHOR SAI8.I0D 8S8Y) JO SSOUBAIIB)S aY] SSESSE 0}
1202 buunp urebe wejsAS uonemusp buiping Aielixny sy} meiras DSIDA 8Y) PEPUSWILLIODS] | 4 8y} pue SNJe)S
Burioyuow u1 sy wajsAs syj pue peja|duiod usaq Mou sARY SUOIOR ay] JO JSow papodal [JSUOUMIW IIN] 84

= vl

s
whbd 710
0} 8s0[D

Wdoc/L

08100 8yj Aq pamainai Alieinbai aq oj weuboud e se siy) papuswiwiosal SeAlejussaidal DSI0d
8y} pap0dal JBLOUMOW JN PUB BAIJOBYS SBM SS800id juswabeueyy uibieyy ayj papnjouod | - oy} Jeieusb uj

= £l

44020%

Wdoc/Z

0202 49queydas ur Ajqissod buipuy-joe; ainjnj e 1oj 2idoj e aq JybI 8say) Paje)s japiep| N pue
0202 3Snbny ui pajs|dwoo aq pinoys SjuswWSSasse Jiy-yoinb juswiyedaq uoneisdp omj paxyIeLLId] Uasialod IN

=l 43

Nd02/0L

Wdoc//

['siehedajes s, eluioyen

Wwol} 8uiod osje jjim spunj awWos jey) joijeq siy pajels ay ‘siofedxe] (e1opsj WO U0 [im BUILOISSILILIOISD

40§ Spunj 8y} Jo sWoOs jey) uoeAI8sqo zjiupng i pabpsimouxoe 8y 8jiym pue SUOIRISPISUOD [eidueul)

pue Aj9jes usamiaq SNxau e SI 8iay] Jey) UOBAISS]O S,U0SI8}8d I POULILOD UBWSISM IN 0202 18Q0j00

Ul UOISSNISIP S.99RILIWIOY 8y} wuojul 0} djay Ajjealb pinom sixajuod asoy) ul pedojoAap UOIBULIOJUI Y] O] SS820.
buiney DS10@ 8yj jey; pariesqo sy pue spiq Joj sjsenbei Aq pPBamojjoj eq 0} ‘0zZ0z 1equieldss Aq pejsjdiios

8q 0] pajoadxa sfesodosd JOPUSA JO LORENIBAS 8Y} POSSNOSIP UBWSISM IN] “Bunssw syqnd DSING 0202 1840320
8] Je 3|qejiene aq pjnom uoneuwliojul 8y} jey) os uoljeunojur Aiejsudoud Joy uonosjold sjeudoidde ‘Aiessasou

41 "yum uewsisp JN Aq payo uoleuLIOjUl Sy} MBIASI 0} play 8q Buipulj-joe] e Jey] pajoalip U0sislad Id

= Ll




JouenD = D Bunesy 2l1qnd = Nd

6102 Inf — Bunonuopy uoneIqIA

/10¢ dog — sisAjeuy plezeH lweuns|

020z uer — bunooysajgnos |

710z uer — sisAjeuy Buipuas |

810z Aepy — abie ‘siswilojsuel |

6102 Inr — Bussuibug wejsAg

020z 1dy B Jep —juawabeuepy [on4 juadg

810¢ UdJe -- YO alemyjos

(Areluusig mainal) 44/ /G — suondeIaiu| walsAg paonpu| Ajjeoiwsiag
L102 dog — vyd olwsies

6107 dag — sanyigesau|nA julod s|buig

020z bny — JUBWISSISSY-}[0S

6L0Z INf — 8oeusju| Aundes-Alajes

6102 AON — Juawabeuely AlAnoeay

(¢020Z Inr) 020z ABIN — @9pIWWO) y)esH jueld
610z Aewy — Bunssyy Auapenp mainey aouewlopay
6102 Jdy — Juswanoidw| eouewIOUSY

/102 das — (oiwsies-uou) swelibold vyd

01

Buneapy Buipuy-10e4 = 44

0¢/c1/0} Yelg puodss
Bunesy o11and 0202 ‘€2-22 1800100

44020z das — Buiyely uoisioa |euoneiadO

/102 Jey — weibold uswssassy Ajjiqeladp
(Alletuusiq mainal) g0z Bny — aoualadxy Bunesado
020z Jdy — aoueUBjUIB SUIT-UO

020z Inr — weibold j19n4 JesjonN

020C JBIN — WeS | MIIASY UOIEDIION

agl — saAeA pajelad( Jojop

0202 ey — weiboid Juswabeuepy uibiey

810z bny — svain

910z 299Q — ssa20l1d buiuueld jeude) wis ] -6uo
6102 uer — sJojo| abie

0202 Jdy — weiboid uswissassy ysiy pajeiboul
6102 1dy — weiboid uonoadsu| aoinles-u|

6102 290 — uoisn|ox3 |eua)ely ubialoy

6102 Jdy — uoIS01100) pajeIaje00y MOl

6102 Jdy — weiboid X314

8102 Bnv - (508-VddN) weiboid uonosjold a4
6102 JelN — ue|d JWB 894D 8417 JooQ R s100Q a4
810¢ YdJEN — UB|d 90US||80X]

0z0z Inr — Rgelay yuswdinb3

0202 Jel\ — uonesyiend |ejuswuoliaug Juswdinbg
020z bny —weiboid sulaouos aafojdwg

810 AON — sas10Jax3 ssaupalsedaid Aouabiawg
0202 Bny — gyyD — UOIOY 9AI}03110D)

6102 Aepy — Juswabeuepy uoneinbyuo)

610¢ dag — sauel)

810z bny — Ansiway)

020z Inr — syue] g buidid paung

(Alreiuusiq mainal) 810z Jdy — [0JJUOD UOISOLIOD) PIdY 210G

810¢ AON — Bupiewyouag

810Z KB — saAleA pajesadQ Iy

610¢ d3s — VYV 1V

Al|edipoliad pamainay SWeibold dd0d

ad.l — Jojeisusoy/auiging

0202 1e|N — WajsAg uonosjold [eloadg

0202 bny — s10jeJoU9) Wes)g

8102 AN — DVAH 8 Buijood ood |en4 uads
8102 AON sdwnd uonosfu) Ayajes

020z das — uoledlpu| g |04U0D POY

610C 980 — YHY



DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL FORM

MEETING DATE: October 23, 2020

AGENDA ITEM: XVII-B

AGENDA TITLE: Documents Provided to the Committee
CONSENT [ ] ACTION [ ] INFORMATION [X]

Staff Summary: Attached for your information are copies of the transmittal
memoranda which list the various documents provided to
the Committee by PG&E since your last public meeting in

July 2020.

RECOMMENDED COMMITTEE ACTION: None, information item only.




June
List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

A. Licensing Basis Impact Evaluations

Date LBIE No. Title
6/4/2020 2020-013 | PRA 19-05 Rev1 (TMRE)
6/22/2020 2020-014 | (OUO) Physical Security Plan
B. NRC Outgoing Correspondence (incl. LERs, LARs, etc.)
Date Letter No. Title
6/16/2020 | DCL-20-047 | 10 CFR Part 21 Notification: Inadequate Dedication of
Replacement Thermocouples
6/17/2020 | DCL-20-048 | (OUO) Request for Exemption from Specific Requirements
of 10 CFR 73, Force-on-Force Requirements

C. NRC Incoming Correspondence (including Inspection Reports)

Date Title

6/2/2020 DIABLO CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2 — APPROVAL
OF EXEMPTION FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF 10 CFR 50.71(e)(4) (EPID
L-2020-LLE-0059 [COVID-19])

6/12/2020 | NUCLEAR PROCUREMENT ISSUES CORPORATION STRATEGIC ALLIANCE
FOR FLEX EMERGENCY RESPONSE COMMITMENT TO NRC ORDER EA-
12-049

6/23/2020 | DIABLO CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2 - PROJECT
MANAGER ASSIGNMENT

6/24/2020 | Exemption Request from Certain Requirements of 10 CFR PART 73, Appendix

B, General Criteria for Security Personnel (EPID L-2020-LLE-0101 [COVID-19])

D. PSRC Documents (PSRC Minutes)

Date Doc. No. Title

6/2/2020 2020-008 | Tornado Missile Risk Evaluator, PRA Analysis
Inservice Testing Program, 4™ 10-Year Interval

2/15/2020 | 2020-002 | Readiness for Restart

3/24/2020 | 2020-004 | Application Plant Staff Review Committee Sub-Committee Diablo
Canyon Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation License
Renewal

4/21/2020 | 2020-006 | Physical Security Plan

4/6/2020 2020-005 | E-Plan Section 7, “Emergency Facilities and Equipment”
E-Plan Section 8, “Maintaining Emergency Preparedness”
E-Plan Appendix F, “ERO On-Shift Staffing Analysis Report”

5/26/2020 | 2020-007 | E-Plan Section 1

6/16/2020 | 2020-009 | Physical Security Plan

E. CAP Documents (RCEs, WGEs, CAP Effectiveness Evaluations)

Type Doc. No.
2 WGE SAPN DA-Unit 2 Maintenance Rule PL3 Goal Sett
51071318
2 WGE SAPN DA-Unit 1 BU104 found propped open
51074203
2 WGE SAPN DA-Processing Procedure Violation

1

https://spe.utility.pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/June Transmittal.doc




June

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

51075607
2 WGE SAPN DA-Security Delay Gate/Barrier found uns
51076261
Eff Eval SAPN IERL2-13-53: LOOP Analys Effct Rvw
50627559
6/30/2020 List of DN 5 Priority 5.1 and 5.2 Created 6-1-20 and 6-30-20
6/2/2020 20 Oldest Non-LTCA DA Notifications as of 6/2/2020
6/2/2020 CAP Summary
6/22/2020 DCPP CAP Station Index
6/22/2020 Open LTCA DA Notifications Station Significance 1 & 2 As
of 6/22/2020
6/22/2020 Open RCEs as of 6/22/2020
5/6/2020 Performance Improvement Status Summary
6/3/2020 Performance Improvement Status Summary

F. QV Documents (QPAR, Audit Reports, Audit Schedule, Assessments)

Date Doc. No. Title
6/2/2020 Quality Digest; Information You Can Use; June Edition
6/29/2020 | #2020-IA- | 2020 Operations and Technical Specifications Audit
06
G. Nuclear Safety Culture Monitoring Panel Reports
Date Doc. No. Title
6/30/2020 NUCLEAR SAFETY CULTURE REVIEW REPORT 2ND

PERIOD, 2020
SCLT MEETING: JUNE 11, 2020 FINAL REPORT: JUNE
30, 2020

H. Self Assessment/Benchmarking (SA/BM Reports/Schedules)

Date

Doc. No.

Title

Performance Information (PPIR, Operating Plan, Station Initiatives, IPMs)

Date

Doc. No.

Title

1/7/2020

Generation Operating Plan 2020 — 2024, No new updates
this month.

2

https://spe.utility.pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/June Transmittal.doc




June

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

PPIR There is no PPIR for this month.
Station There are no new Station Initiatives for this month.
Initiative
6/16/2020 June 2020 Engineering Services Performance Improvement
Dashboard
1Q20 Industrial Safety Performance Improvement
Dashboard ]
6/16/2020 June 2020 Security & Emergency Services Performance
Improvement Dashboard
6/16/2020 June 2020 Operations Services Performance Improvement
Dashboard
6/16/2020 June 2020 Maintenance Pl Dash Board
J. INPO
Date Doc. No. Title

There are no INPO documents for this month.

K. Operational Documents (ODM Minutes, POAs)

Date Doc. No. Title
ODMs 6/17/2020 Control Rod Bank D Position
POA There are no new POAs for this month.

L. Safety Limit Violation

Report

Date

Doc. No.

Title

There are no Safety Limit Violation Reports for this month.

M. Significance Determination Process Calculations

Date

Doc. No.

Title

There are no Significance Determination Process
Calculations

N. Miscellaneous

Date

Title

There are no miscellaneous documents for this month.

O. Functional Area Documents

Subcommittee Date/Doc Title
Maintenance Week 2022 | T+1 Performance Critique
Week 2023 | T+1 Performance Critique
Week 2024 | T+1 Performance Critique
Week 2025 | T+1 Performance Critique
2019-2022 | T+1 Performance Critique 2019-2022

https://spe.utility.pge.com/sites/regulatoryservicess/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/June Transmittal.doc

3



July

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

A. Licensing Basis Impact Evaluations

Date

LBIE No.

Title

There are no LBIEs for this month.

B. NRC Outgoing Correspondence (incl. LERs, LARs, etc.)

FROM CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS OF 10 CFR PART 73, APPENDIX B,
“GENERAL CRITERIA FOR SECURITY PERSONNEL,” SECTION VI (EPID L-
2020-LLE-0117 [COVID-19])

Date Letter No. Title
7/1/2020 DCL-20-053, | Emergency Plan Update
DIL-20-007
7/9/2020 DCL-20-058 | Temporary Exemption Request from 10 CFR 50 Appendix E
Biennial Emergency Preparedness Exercise Requirements
due to COVID-19 Pandemic
7/21/2020 | DCL-20-061 | Request for Exemption from Specific Requirements of 10 CFR
73, Firearms Requalification (2.390)
7/30/2020 | DCL-20-064 | Revision 15 of the Physical Security Plan (2.390)
DIL-20-008
C. NRC Incoming Correspondence (including Inspection Reports)
Date Title
7/302020 | DIABLO CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2 — EXEMPTION

D. PSRC Documents (PSRC Minutes)

Date Doc. No. Title

6/16/20 2020-009 Physical Security Plan

7/14/20 2020-010 E-Plan, Section 4

7/20/20 2020-011 Review FDOR on 2Y22 Scope Decision for Unit 2 RCP Seals and

Make Recommendation to Station Director
7/29/20 PSRC Members/Alternates
E. CAP Documents (RCAs, WGEs, CAP Effectiveness Evaluations)
Type Doc. No. Title

2 WGE SAPN DA-QDEF - Shielding inspection not perfo
51017810

2 WGE SAPN DA-Declining Human Performance Trend
51036900

2 WGE SAPN DA-U2 SFP crane contact w/ swing gate
51042617

2 WGE SAPN DA-TVA-21 Radiator Old vs. New fitup
51049177

2 WGE SAPN DA-RHR 2-1 recirc flow above Action High
51054432

2 WGE SAPN DA-U1 - PC 98 - Fire Protective Barriers
51065019

2 WGE SAPN DA-QAAF-5 Examples of Pkg Protection Def
51070277

1

S:A\RS\CLERICAL\Hartwig\Transmitta\2020\July\July Transmittal.doc




July

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

2 WGE SAPN DA-QAAF: Procurement Self-Assessments
51070292
2 WGE SAPN DA-assessment of comp measure
51070568
2 WGE SAPN DA-Security Negative HU Trend
51071819
2 WGE SAPN DA-Eval Continued Increased Siren Failur
51074279
2 WGE SAPN DA-Comp measure released w/ inactive zon
51077760
2 WGE SAPN DA-Control Band D, Group 1 is 9 steps of R
51078462
2 WGE SAPN DA-Ammunition Discovered During Search
51078534
2 WGE SAPN DA-QAAF: SDS sheet program deficient
51070291
Eff. Eval SAPN IER L2-17-9 Weakness in MA Fundamentals
50939622
7/31/2020 List of DN 5.1 and 5.2 Created 7-1-20 — 7-31-20
7/31/2020 DCPP 1 WGE and 2 WGE Notifications Completed 7/1/20
—7/31/20
7/1/2020 DN-DA Initiation Rate
7/27/2020 DCPP CAP Station Index
7/6/2020 CAP Summary
712712020 Open LTCA DA Notifs Station Significance 1 & 2 as of
7127/2020
7/6/2020 20 Oldest Non-LTCA DA Notifications as of 7/6/2020
7/27/2020 Open RCEs As of 7/27/2020
7/6/2020 Performance Improvement Status Summary

F. QV Documents (QPAR, Audit Reports, Audit Schedule, Assessments)

Date Doc. No. Title
7/7/2020 Quality Digest Information You Can Use, July Edition 2020
71212020 # Quality Performance Assessment Report (QPAR) — First
2020-QP- | Period 2020 — December 2, 2019 through June 1, 2020
01
7/9/2020 QVA# 1R22 Nuclear Fuel Receipt Inspection
2020-AS-
05
7/28/2020 # 2020 Cyber and Physical Security Audit

2

S:\RS\CLERICAL\Hartwig\Transmittal\2020\July\July Transmittal.doc




July

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

| | 2020-1A-03

G. Nuclear Safety Culture

Monitoring Panel Reports

Date Doc. No.

Title

There is no Nuclear Safety Culture Monitoring Panel Report
for this month.

H. Self Assessment/Ben

chmarking (SA/BM Reports/Schedules)

Date Doc. No. Title

7/29/2020 SAPN Benchmark LTDN sys Demin/Fltr performanc
51042025

3/23/2020 SAPN Region 4 RPM/NRC meeting benchmark
51070563

8/4/2020 SAPN Benchmark - Site Std Handbook
51073764

7129/2020 SAPN QHSA for OP1.1D3 reactivity management
51061519

6/30/2020 SAPN QHSA - Tactical Proficiency
51068603

7/14/2020 SAPN QHSA of WHSE Packaging/Storage practices
51080124

7/14/2020 SAPN QHSA of Procurement RMS practices
51081322

7/15/2020 SAPN Quick Hit Self Assessment - Crit Spares
51081501

I. Performance Information (PPIR, Operating Plan, Station Initiatives)
Date Doc. No. Title
1/7/2020 Generation Operating Plan 2020 — 2024, No new updates

this month.

6/25/2020 PPIR

Diablo Canyon Power Plant; Plant Performance
Improvement Report; Achieving Results; Data: May 2020

7/27/2020 PPIR

Diablo Canyon Power Plant, Plant Performance
Improvement Report; Achieving Results; Data: June 2020

Station There are no new Station Initiatives for this month.

Initiative

7/9/2020 July 2020 Security & Emergency Services Performance
Improvement Dashboard

7/16/2020 July 2020 Engineering Services Performance Improvement
Dashboard

7/15/2020 July 2020 Maintenance Pl Dashboard

3

S:\RS\CLERICAL\Hartwig\Transmittal\2020\July\July Transmittal.doc




July

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

7/16/2020 July 2020 Operations Services Performance Improvement
Dashboard
7/15/2020 2Q20 Industrial Safety Performance Improvement
Dashboard
J. INPO
Date Doc. No. Title

There are no INPO documents for this month.

K. Operational Documents (ODM Minutes, POAs)

Date Doc. No. Title
ODMs There are no ODMs for this month.
POA There are no new POAs for this month.
8/4/2020 Diablo Canyon Power Plant Daily Load Profile; Daily

Capacity Factor Power History Curves

L. Safety Limit Violation

Report

Date Doc.

No.

Title

There are no Safety Limit Violation Reports for this month.

M. Significance Determination Process Calculations

Date Doc.

No.

Title

Battery 1-1 Debris Risk Assessment

N. Miscellaneous

Date

Title

There are no miscellaneous documents for this month.

0. Functional Area Documents

Subcommittee Date/Doc Title
Maintenance Week 2026 | T+1 Performance Critique
Week 2027 | T+1 Performance Critique
Week 2028 | T+1 Performance Critique
Week 2029 | T+1 Performance Critique
Week 2030 [ T+1 Performance Critique
Week 2023- | T+1 Monthly Performance Critique 2023-2027
2027

4

SARS\CLERICAL\Hartwig\Transmittal\2020\July\July Transmittal.doc




August

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

A. Licensing Basis Impact Evaluations

Date LBIE No. Title
There are no LBIEs for this month.
B. NRC Outgoing Correspondence (incl. LERs, LARs, etc.)
Date Letter No. Title
8/12/2020 | DCL-20-066 | License Amendment Request 20-01
| | i Exigent Request for Revision to Technical Specification
i -_ | 375 "Auxiliary Feedwater System” ]
871372020 | DCL-20-067 | Revision 16 of the Physical Security Plan {2.390)
| | DIL-20-009 | N j
8/16/2020 | DCL-20-068 | Response to NRC Request for Additional Information '
Regarding “License Amendment Request 20-01, Exigent
Request for Revision to Technical Specification 3.7.5,
‘Auxiliary Feedwater System”
8/18/2020 | DCL-20-069 | Response to NRC Request for Additional Information
Regarding “License Amendment Request 20-01, Exigent
Request for Revision to Technical Specification 3.7.5,
‘Auxiliary Feedwater System”
8/20/2020 | DCL-20-072 | Response to Additional NRC Request for Additional
Information Regarding “License Amendment Request 20-
01, Exigent Request for Revision to Technical
Specification 3.7.9, ‘Auxiliary Feedwater System”
8/25/2020 | DCL-20-070, | Emergency Plan Update
DIL-20-010
8/31/2020 | DCL-20-063 | License Amendment Request 20-02,
Non-Voluntary License Amendment Request to Revise
Technical Specifications 3.2.1, Fa(Z), to Implement
Methodology from WCAP-17661, Revision 1, “Improved
RAOC and CAOC Fq Surveillance Technical Specifications”

C. NRC Incoming Correspondence (including Inspection Reports)

Date

Title

8/31/2020

DIABLO CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2 — ISSUANCE
OF AMENDMENT NOS. 236 AND 238 RE: REVISION TO TECHNICAL
SPECIFICATION 3.7.5, AUXILIARY FEEDWATER
CIRCUMSTANCES) (EPID L-2020-LLA-0176)

(AFW) SYSTEM" (EXIGENT

D. PSRC Documents (PSRC Minutes)

1

https://spe utility_pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/August Transmittal.doc

Date Doc. No. Title
PSRC
Minutes
8/18/2020 | 2020-016 Response to Request for Additional Information Regarding Ljcense An
Emergency Risk-Informed License Amendment Request to Revise Tex
“Auxiliary Feedwater System”



August

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

8/20/2002 | 2020-017 Response to Request for Additional Information Regarding Liicense Am:
Emergency Risk-Informed License Amendment Request to Revise Tecl
‘Auxiliary Feedwater System”

8/25/2020 | 2020-018 License Amendment Request 20-02,

Non-Voluntary License Amendment Request to Revise Technical Speci
Implement Methodology from WCAP-17661, Revision 1, “Improved RA(

Surveillance Technical Specifications’

E. CAP Documents (RCAs, WGEs, CAP Effectiveness Evaluations)

[ Type [ DocNo. | e 0 Ein |

ACE SAPN DA-Permit Required Confined Space Entere ‘
51078484

ACE SAPN DA-Debris found in Batt 1-1, Cell 47
51080669

1 WGE There are no 1 WGEs for this month.

2 WGE SAPN DA-OPS trend in N/As and partial proc
51068044

2 WGE SAPN DA-Fan S-33 Low Flow trip
51068066

2 WGE SAPN DA-Improper storage of pistol
51071850

2 WGE SAPN DA-QAAF: Do Not Repair Process
51074953

2 WGE SAPN DA-QDEF AD3.1D6 not desig Form as record
51078547

2 WGE SAPN DA-QDEF Problem not reported in CAP
51078549

2 WGE SAPN DA-QDEF Inef Mgmt of SGI combo changes
51078670

2 WGE SAPN DA-QAAF: Security Lighting #2020-1A-03
51079554 '

2 WGE SAPN DA-PI-5001 1SO valve 1-23P-13C found CLO
51079929

2 WGE SAPN DA-VA Door 163 Found Unsecure
51080599

2 WGE SAPN DA-Potential Trend OPS procedure review
51083325

2 WGE SAPN DA-Incorrect circuit breaker cycled
51083332

2 WGE SAPN DA-STP R-19 not performed per STP |-1b
51082264

2 WGE SAPN DA-Late Fire Rove Zone 8-B-2
51082319

2

https://spe.utility. pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/August Transmittal.doc



August

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

Eff. Eval SAPN Eff Eval SAPN 51035842 (Bus F Transfer)
i 51041900
8/31/2020 List of DN 5.1 and 5.2 Created 5-1-20 — 5-31-20
8/31/2020 DCPP 1 WGE and 2 WGE Notifications Completed 8/1/20
- 8/31/20
| 8/24/12020 | | DCPP CAP Station Index |
' 8/3/2020 | CAP Summary ]
1'8/3/2020 " DN - DA Initiation Rate |
| 8/24/2020 | Open LTCA DA Notifs Station Significance 1 & 2 as of
8/24/2020
8/3/2020 20 Oldest Non-LTCA DA Notifications as of 8/3/2020
8/24/2020 Open RCEs As of 8/24/2020
8/3/2020 Performance Improvement Status Summary

F. QV Documents (QPAR, Audit Reports, Audit Schedule, Assessments)

Date Doc. No. Title
8/4/2020 Quality Digest Information You Can Use, August Edition
2020
8/10/2020 QVA # Geosciences Quality Related Work
2020-AS-
06
8/19/2020 | #2020-IA- | 2020 Training and Qualifications Program Audit
08

G. Nuclear Safety Culture

Monitoring Panel Reports

Date

Poc. No.

Title

for this month.

There is no Nuclear Safety Culture Monitoring Panel Report

H. Self Assessment/Benchmarking (SA/BM Reports/Schedules)

Date Doc. No. Title

9/2/2020 SAPN Operability Program Simplific. Benchmrk
50989761

9/2/2020 SAPN Informal Benchmark - FPP Palo Verde
51029324

9/2/2020 SAPN Conduct Access/FFD benchmarking
51061648

9/2/2020 SAPN QHSA - Documentation
51011244

9/2/2020 SAPN QHSA: 2018 Engineering Reorg Efficacy
51035987

3

https://spe.utility. pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices’NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/August Transmittal.doc



August
List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

9/2/2020 SAPN 2019 WANO Feedback - OWA/OB/Alarms
51041906
9/2/2020 SAPN QHSA For NRC IP 71124.05
51058478
9/2/2020 SAPN QHSA: Perf. Monitor. Prog. Effectiveness
! | 51065233 | j
| 9/2/2020 I SAPN [ Perform QHSA against NRC IP 71124.08 _]
| | 51065500 | J
19/2/2020 | SAPN | Quick Hit SA- Access Control 2020 '
| 51068613
9/2/2020 | SAPN Pre-Fire Protection Team Inspection SA
| 51077470
. Performance Information (PPIR, Operating Plan, Station Initiatives)
Date Doc. No. Title
17712020 Generation Operating Plan 2020 — 2024, No new updates
this month.
8/27/2020 PPIR Diablo Canyon Power Plant; Plant Performance
Improvement Report; Achieving Results; Data: July 2020
Station There are no new Station Initiatives for this month,
[nitiative
8/5/2020 August 2020 Security & Emergency Services Performance
Improvement Dashboard
8/13/2020 August 2020 Engineering Services Performance
Improvement Dashboard
8/11/2020 August 2020 Maintenance Pl Dashboard
8/16/2020 August 2020 Operations Services Performance

Improvement Dashboard

J. INPO (NSOC Only)

Date Doc. No. Title
8/30/2020 Diablo Canyon Station IPSR
8/21/2020 PG&E Corporate IPSR

K. Operational Documents (ODM Minutes, POASs)
Date Doc. No. Title
ODMs There are no ODMs for this month.
POA There are no new POAs for this month.

4

https://spe.utility.pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/August Transmittal.doc



L. Safety

August
List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

Limit Violation Report

Date

Doc. No. Title

There are no Safety Limit Violation Reports for this month.

M. Significance Determination Process Calculations

Date Doc. No. Title
There are no Significance Determination Process
Calculations for this month.
N. Miscellaneous
Date Title

There are no miscellaneous documents for this month.

O. Functional Area Documents

Subcommittee Date/Doc Title

Maintenance Week 2031 | T+1 Performance Critique

Week 2032 | T+1 Performance Critique

Week 2033 | T+1 Performance Critique

Week 2034 | T+1 Performance Critique

Week 2035 | T+1 Performance Critique

T+1 Monthly Performance Critique 2028-2031

5

https://spe.utility.pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/August Transmittal.doc




September
List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

A. Licensin% Basis Impact Evaluations -
Date LBIE No. Title
There are no LBIEs for this month.

B. NRC Outgoing Correspondence (incl. LERs, LARSs, etc.)

Date Letter No. Title

9/10/2020 | DCL-20-075 | Submittal of Updated Final Safety Analysis Report, Revision

25
1 9/10/20 | DCL-20-076 | Technical Specification Bases, Revision 12 __"
9/15/2020 | DCL-20-077 | Unit 2 Licensee Event Report 2020-002-00, Unit 2 Manual |
Reactor Trip Due to Increased Main Generator Hydrogen
Usage

9/24/2020 | DCL-20-081, | Annual Review of the Emergency Action Levels
DIL-20-011

9/24/2020 | DCL-20-082, | Annual Review of the Emergency Action Levels
DIL-20-012

C. NRC Incoming Correspondence (including Inspection Reports)
Date Title

7/22/2020 | DIABLO CANYON POWER PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2 — INTEGRATED
INSPECTION REPORT 05000275/2020002 AND 05000323/2020002

8/13/2020 | Teleconference with Pacific Gas and Electric Company Regarding an
Exigent Amendment Request to Modify Diablo Canyon Power Plant, Units
1 and 2, Technical Specification 3.7.5, "Auxiliary Feedwater (AFW)
System" (EPID L-2020-LLA-0176)

8/13/2020 | Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Piant, Units 1 and 2 — Public Notice of
Application for Amendments to Facility Operating Licenses (EPID L-2020-
LLA-0176)

8/14/2020 | Diablo Canyon request for additional information: Exigent License
Amendment Request for Application to provide a new Technical
Specification 3.7.5, “Auxiliary Feedwater System,” Condition G (EPID: L-
2020-LLA-0176)

8/17/2020 | Diablo Canyon additional request for additional information: Exigent
License Amendment Request for application to provide a new Technical
Specification 3.7.5, “Auxiliary Feedwater System,” Condition G (EPID: L-
2020-LLA-01786)

8/20/2020 | Diablo Canyon additional request for additional information: Exigent
License Amendment Request for application to provide a new Technical
Specification 3.7.5, “Auxiliary Feedwater System,” Condition G (EPID: L-
2020-LLA-0176)

8/24/2020 | SUMMARY OF AUGUST 14, 2020, TELECONFERENCE WITH PACIFIC
GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY REGARDING AN EXIGENT LICENSE
AMENDMENT REQUEST TO MODIFY TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION
3.7.5, “AUXILIARY FEEDWATER (AFW) SYSTEM,” FOR DIABLO
CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2 (EPID L-2020-
LLA-0176)

1

https://spe_utility pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/September Transmittal. doc



September
List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

9/1/2020

UPDATED INSPECTION PLAN FOR DIABLO CANYON POWER PLANT,
UNITS 1 AND 2 (REPORT 05000275/2020005 AND 05000323/2020005)

9/3/2020

DIABLO CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2 -
INDIVIDUAL NOTICE OF CONSIDERATION OF ISSUANCE OF
AMENDMENTS TO FACILITY OPERATING LICENSES AND
OPPORTUNITY FOR A HEARING (EPID L-2020-LLA-0176)

9/11/2020

DIABLO CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT, UNITS 1 AND 2 -
(SSUANCE OF AMENDMENT NOS. 237 AND 239 TO RELOCATE
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION 5.3, “UNIT STAFF QUALIFICATIONS,” TO
THE UPDATED FINAL SAFETY ANALYSIS REPORT (EPID L-2019-LLA-
0268)

9/18/2020

DIABLO CANYON NUCLEAR POWER PLANT - TEMPORARY
EXEMPTION FROM BIENNIAL EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS
EXERCISE FREQUENCY REQUIREMENTS OF 10 CFR PART 50,
APPENDIX E, “EMERGENCY PLANNING AND PREPAREDNESS FOR
PRODUCTION AND UTILIZATION FACILITIES,” SECTIONS IV.F.2.b
AND IV.F.2.c (EPID L-2020-LLE-0111 [COVID-19])

9/21/2020

Request for additional information: Diablo Canyon Unit 2 Fall 2019 Steam
Generator Tube Inspection Report (EPID: L-2020-LRO-0026)

D. PSRC Documents (PSRC Minutes)

Date Doc. No. Title
PSRC There are no PSRC minutes for this month.
Minutes
E. CAP Documents (RCAs, WGEs, CAP Effectiveness Evaluations)
Type Doc. No. Title
1 WGE SAPN DA-24 hr telephone report to the NRC
51084931
2 WGE SAPN DA-Unit 1 acid storage tank leak
51034258
2 WGE SAPN DA-Missing SGI usb drive
51065105
2 WGE SAPN DA-Neg Trend for MW-12
51071395
2 WGE SAPN DA-Pot Adv Trend-Dirty Intake Motor Wind
51072524
2 WGE SAPN DA-QAAF-Incomplete Signatures
51075604
2 WGE SAPN DA-QAAF - SP 501 Forms not in use
51079924
2 WGE SAPN DA-QAAF-SGI program ownership
51079927

2

https://spe utility pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/September Transmittal.doc




September

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

2 WGE SAPN DA-Untimely reporting of JP Gate 1 failu
51085695
Eff. Eval SAPN Line of Sight to the Reactor Core Effectiveness Evaluation
B 51071817
9/30/2020 List of DN 5.1 and 5.2 Created 9-1-20 — 9-30-20
9/30/2020 DCPP 1 WGE and 2 WGE Notifications Completed 9/1/20
—9/30/20 ) -
9/28/2020 DCPP CAP Station Index
8/31/2020 CAP Summary
9/28/2020 Open LTCA DA Notifs Station Significance 1 & 2 as of
9/28/2020
8/31/2020 20 Oldest Non-LTCA DA Noatifications as of 8/31/2020
9/28/2020 Open RCEs As of 9/28/2020
8/31/2020 Performance Improvement Status Summary

F. QV Documents (QPAR, Audit Reports, Audit Schedule, Assessments)

Date Doc. No. Title

9/1/2020 Quality Digest Information You Can Use, September
Edition 2020

9/15/2020 Quality Digest Information You Can Use, September
Edition Second Edition 2020

9/9/2020 | 2020-1A-07 | 2020 Maintenance Services Audit

9/15/2020 | 2020-AS-07 [ Radioactive Waste Shipments

9/15/2020 | 2020-EL-01 | Second Escalation of Untimely Resolution of Security
Intrusion Detection Equipment Issues

9/21/2020 [ 2020-AS-08 | Review of Security Shift Orders (SO) from 2015-2020

9/21/2020 [ 2020-Al-09 | 2020 Quality Assurance Program Audit

G. Nuclear Safety Culture Monitoring Panel Reports

Date

Doc. No.

Title

There is no Nuclear Safety Culture Monitoring Panel Report
for this month.

H. Self Assessment/Ben

chmarking (SA/BM Reports/Schedules)

Date Doc. No. Title
9/21/2020 SAPN 2017 Fall Holtec Users Group Trip Report
50955391
9/24/2020 SAPN Engineering Org Benchmark
51022268
9/29/2020 SAPN NANTeL Industry Mtg Action Items
51039233

3

https.//spe.utility pge.com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/September Transmittal.doc




September

List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

4/9/2020 SAPN FAC Program - Jan 2020 CHUG Trip Report
51071823
9/10/2020 SAPN Trend Evaluation Timeliness Benchmarking
51084193
9/16/2020 SAPN Benchmark EPRI Rigging Group
51087571
9/17/2020 SAPN 2020 Self-Assessment - SPA
! 50983506 !
9/2/2020 | SAPN | 2020 DCPP Mid Cycle AF| Review
51064372
10/13/2020 SAPN EQ: Tracking 2020 Self-Assessment
51067430
9/28/2020 SAPN Perform a QHSA against NRC IP 71124.03
51086757
I. Performance Information (PPIR, Operating Plan, Station Initiatives)
Date Doc. No. Title
1/7/2020 Generation Operating Plan 2020 — 2024, No new updates
this month.
PPIR There is no PPIR for this month,
Station There are no new Station Initiatives for this month.
Initiative
9/14/2020 Diablo Canyon Department Performance Improvement
Dashboards - September 2020
J. INPO
Date Doc. No. Title

There are no INPO documents for this month.

K. Operational Documents (ODM Minutes, POAs)

Date Doc. No. Title
ODMs There are no ODMs for this month.
POA There are no new POAs for this month.

L. Safety Limit Violation Report

Date

Doc. No.

Title

There are no Safety Limit Violation Reports for this month.

4

https:i/spe.utility. pge .com/sites/regulatoryservices/NSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/September Transmittal,doc




September
List of Documents Transmitted Electronically

M. Significance Determination Process Calculations

Date Doc. No. Title
9/2020 SDP20-03 | Unit 2 AFW Pipe Leak
Rev. 0

N. Miscellaneous

Date Title

There are no miscellaneous documents for this month

0. Functional Area Documents

Subcommiftee Date/Doc Title

Maintenance Week 2036 | T+1 Performance Critique

Week 2037 | T+1 Performance Critique

Week 2038 | T+1 Performance Critique

Week 2039 | T+1 Performance Critique

August T+1 | T+1 Monthly Performance Critique 2032-2035

5

https://spe.utility. pge.com/sites/reguiatoryservicessfNSOC DCISC/Monthly Transmittals/2020/September Transmittal.doc



DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL FORM

MEETING DATE: October 23, 2020

AGENDA ITEM: XVII

AGENDA TITLE: Update on the Activities of the Diablo
Canyon Decommissioning Engagement
Panel.

CONSENT [ ] ACTION [ ] INFORMATION [X]

Staff Summary: Dr. Lauren Brown, a Member of the Diablo Canyon Decommissioning
Engagement Panel, created by PG&E in 2018, will provide an update
on the Panel’s recent and planned activities.

RECOMMENDED COMMITTEE ACTION: Information item with any action as
appropriate.




U] siyd Buimoyjos Aq punoy aq ued s3jyoud 333[dLOI S, JaqUIBLW JuaLINd 3Y|

Jaueyd 43ada 3y

YU 21SISU0D 35394 pue d3gI3d 3yl JO siaquiaw Ajunwiwiod ay) jo Ayuofew e Aq [eacidde ySnouyy pajjyal SIIUBIRA JO Pamaual aq [jim diysiaqusy "ss3001d
pajen|pey e ysnosyy Bunsaw siy su Ie diysioquiaw 3y Aq pauBisse se suua) pasaddes sey pue gT0Z AW Ul pawdoy sem [ued jesnSneu; ay) (swud)
§0 Bupasders jeqiur 3yl SUIMO||0)) WII) JBIA-0M] B SBAISS d3ADQ YL JO JAqUIBW YB3 AYUNWIWIOD [BIO] I} WIOY S3ALNEIUDSaUdal JOo pasudwiod st d3AD4a YL
*55220.4d BuluOISSILILLICIIP Je3A-Ninw 3Y) Buunp dgnd ay) wioly andul JdH0S

pue 433000 3yY3 yum 38e8ua 03 3NUNUOI 0] SPUAUI 3804 "saUBBe Auoreindas eudosdde sy yum uonsuNfuol Uy 3394 AQ apew aq |IiMm SuINoISSIWWOI3P ddIa
BuppJeBal suoisPIP jeuly ‘suonepudawWwolal Suisodindas pue asn pue| aininy Suipnjpu; sued SuuoISSILIWIOIAP IYPdS-3NS 5,33Dd WIojuI daY |IM d3QDQ UL

‘BuluoiIssILwWdap gdda

inoge 3jgnd Y1 pue jSued 3y 01 UopeuLIoju] apiAosd 03 spadxe Janew PGS pue ‘Jo4d 03 INdul PP 3pircid 0} SIBqUISW AYUNWIWOD [B30] MO d3QIA

31 Aq pjay sdoysyiom pue s3unaaw ayj ‘Ayoedes AJOSIADE pue |euoewtiojul ue ut Aj3|10s suondun} 43aJd 2y L ‘BuiuoIssiuwonap dd3qg 01 pRiejdl sianeul uo
sanuade A101en83a pue 3394 01 Indul I98.41p IpIAcad 03 AUNLWILIOD [BI0] JY3 JO) WINIOCY B SR dAIDS 03 PIpUUI SI 3| ‘saniaRde pue suejd SUuILoISSIWILIODaP dd)Q uo
UOLEINPS PUE JUIWSA|0AUY dijgnd “Uonediunwiwod uado 38eJNoJUD Pue 13S0} 0} PaleLd Apoq AL01ejRB3J-UOU 193UNIOA € Se JR9d AQ PIUIAUOI SeM d33D3d YL

ouey Sebuz Suuog s8q) )l!
NOANYS GEyg ;



wod-abdp)jsuediuawsbebua :sauInbul easuag

W02 )1UPI63)eNSP)SIapUEd 1B SI9pUy }oNYyJ :10)E1IDE jaued uawabebu]
UWiJo4 JUaWiios }uaWwwod 211gng

SN }2EJUO0Y

odsiqQ SINT] UES 'HNIPOOp) BIEY e

(3%99d) uoje)dwiaj "Yasjom Wif e

s50s() SO A9)93G epuIT e

yoeag ejiay ‘Aanep.0 AouEN e

odsigQ sin ues ‘dodyie] 31035 e

buipying pue buiuueyyd 40 1030841 0dsiqQ SINT UBS Jo AJUNOY PUE J13QUIBJN 012140 XJ ‘YHSY Jorsl| e
ods|qQ SIN UES ‘UIlJeY X3y

yoeag ejiay ‘Joueq 11Isys e

odsigQ SIN UES *Umolg UsIneT e

apuedg oAolly ‘uew))eg euaqg e

0J9peISE)Y ‘UIMpled ‘W PIARQ e

(8 227 '3ad) Sanijoid sTaquiaul jaued MatAal
05)e AW NoA pue M0)3q Pa)Si} aJe SIaqaLL |3UBd "sSa304d U01133)as jaued ayy Ul 3Rgd PaIsISSe AJunwiwod
1820 3y} Woly SaAfejuasaldal papniaul Jey) 99)3IWULIO0D UOIIBUIIO) Y ‘dda 03 Awixosd uj syuiodmaln Japioyayels

Ajunwiwos asJaAlp 3y} 129)31 Ajpeodq oym Ajunwiwiod 1e20) 8y] woly saaejuasaldad jo pasudwod sijaued ay|

sJaquaw jaueyd



Dr. Lauren Brown

Dr. Brown served in the American Peace Corps in India and obtained a Ph.D. in Organic
Chemistry from the University of California, Riverside, when he returned. He co-founded JBL
Scientific, a specialty biochemical company and moved to San Luis Obispo in 1973. In 1999 JBL
Scientific was acquired by biotech company, Promega, and Lauren served as President of
renamed Promega Biosciences until 2006, and subsequently served as President of another
Promega subsidiary until 2008. In the community, Dr. Brown has served on the YMCA Board,
Chamber of Commerce Board, Chamber Economic Vision Task Force in 1992, the City of San
Luis Obispo Economic Stability Task Force in 1993, as well as the Targeted Industries Task
Force in 1997. Dr. Brown was honored by the San Luis Obispo Chamber of Commerce as the
2014 Citizen of the Year.

Current term concludes May, 2022



DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL FORM

MEETING DATE: October 23, 2020
AGENDA ITEMS: XIX-A & Band XXIV-C & D
AGENDA TITLE: Consultant & Legal Counsel Reports;

Receive, Approve and Authorize
Transmittal of Fact Finding Reports, and
receive report by Asst. Legal Counsel.

CONSENT [ ] ACTION [X] INFORMATION [X ]

Staff Summary: It is anticipated that oral or written reports will be presented
at the meeting by Technical Consultants Mr. Wardell and Mr.
McWhorter and DCISC Assistant Legal Counsel Mr. Rathie
concerning items listed or on other matters.

Fact finding reports may be submitted for consideration and comment
by members and consultants since the last public meeting of the
DCISC in July 2020. These reports may be received by the
Committee, approved as to form and content and be authorized

for transmittal to PG&E for its consideration and response. The
Committee reserves the right to revise any fact-finding prior to the
inclusion in an Annul Report. Fact finding reports in their final “as
accepted form” become a part of the next DCISC Annual Report. Fact
Finding Reports and are available for public inspection following their
acceptance by the Committee at a public meeting.

RECOMMENDED COMMITTEE ACTION:

Receive reports by Consultants and Assistant Legal Counsel reports and
provide direction.

Motions to accept Fact Finding Report concerning fact-findings conducted
on July 21-22, August 19-20, and September 9-10, 2020.




DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL FORM

MEETING DATE: October 23, 2020

AGENDA ITEM: XXV-A

AGENDA TITLE: Minutes of July 1-2, 2020,
Public Meeting

CONSENT [X ] ACTION [ ] INFORMATION [ ]

Staff Summary: Attached are the Minutes which have been prepared from the
Committee’s ninety-sixth public meeting held on July 1-2,
2020, as a Zoom webinar due to the coronavirus pandemic.

(Each session was webcast live in real time and is available for
subsequent viewing, archived to the meeting agenda, by visiting
the links on the Committee’s website at www.disc.org or

at www.slospan.org. Meetings are videotaped for later broadcast
on Channel 21 in the San Luis Obispo, CA area, the governmental
access television channel.)

RECOMMENDED COMMITTEE ACTION: Accept the Minutes by motion




AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

MINUTES
of the
DIABLO CANYON INDEPENDENT SAFETY COMMITTEE'S

JULY 1-2,2020 PUBLIC MEETING
[For approval at the October 23, 2020 Public Meeting.]

Wednesday & Thursday
July 1-2, 2020
Conducted Online as a Zoom Webinar

In response to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N.29-20 related to the COVID-19
(coronavirus) pandemic public participation in this DCISC public meeting was by electronic
means only and without a physical location for public participation in compliance with
California state guidelines on social distancing. This meeting was produced by AGP Video Inc.
and webcast “live” on SLO-SPAN at http://www.slo-span.org and through http://www.dcisc.org
as a webinar and was subsequently broadcast on San Luis Obispo local government access
television, Channel 21.

Notice of Meeting

A legal notice of the public meeting and several display advertisements were published in
local newspapers and mailed to the media and those persons on the Committee's service list. The
meeting agenda and the entire agenda packet for the meeting together with the informational
presentations were posted on the Committee's website at www.dcisc.org prior to the meeting and
the meeting agenda contained information on how to access the webinar using a computer or a
telephone

Agenda
I CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL

The July 1, 2020, public meeting of the Diablo Canyon Independent Safety Committee
(DCISC), the ninety-sixth public meeting of the Committee, was called to order by Committee
Chair Dr. Peter Lam at 9:00 A.M. Dr. Lam stated he hoped the Committee might resume
holding meetings in person with members of the public when the pandemic situation has
improved. He briefly reviewed the professional backgrounds and appointment to the DCISC for
each of the other DCISC Members, Dr. Robert J. Budnitz the appointee of the California
Attorney General, and Dr. Per F. Peterson the appointee of the Governor of California, and Dr.
Lam introduced himself as the appointee of the California Energy Commission and current
serving DCISC Chair. Dr. Budnitz briefly reviewed Dr. Lam’s professional background.

Present: Committee Member Robert J. Budnitz

Committee Member Peter Lam
Committee Member Per F. Peterson

B.9-1



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Absent:  None
IT INTRODUCTIONS

Dr. Lam introduced the Committee's Technical Consultants Mr. Richard D. McWhorter
Jr. and Mr. R. Ferman Wardell and DCISC Assistant Legal Counsel Robert W. Rathie. Dr. Lam
then introduced Mr. Thomas R. Baldwin PG&E’s Director of Generation Business Planning,
and Diablo Canyon Power Plant (DCPP) Chief Nuclear Officer Support Manager Mr. Hector
Garcia, who acts as the principal liaison with the DCISC. Dr. Lam observed Mr. Baldwin and
Mr. Garcia play key roles on behalf of PG&E in working with the DCISC in coordinating
activities, providing information and facilitating its public meetings and the frequent fact-finding
visits to DCPP conducted by a single member and one technical consultant.

I11 PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Chair invited any members of the public present who wished to address remarks to
the Committee on items not appearing on the agenda for the public meeting to do so at this time
by using Zoom’s “raise your hand” feature and he briefly reviewed the advice from the agenda
concerning items or issues which are brought to the attention of the DCISC by the public during
public meetings. There was no response to his invitation.

Mr. Rathie reported a change to the agenda for the following day’s session due to the
cancellation of Item XXIV C.5 “Causes and Corrective Actions for the February 2020 Unit 2
Forced Outage” due to the DCISC’s receipt of recent information from DCPP. Instead the item
concerning “Recent Human Performance Issues” will be presented during the following day’s
morning session.

v APPROVAL OF MINUTES

This item concerned approval of the Minutes of the Committee’s February 12-13, 2020,
public meeting held in Avila Beach, California. A draft of the February 2020 Minutes was
included in the public agenda packet for this meeting. The Members and Consultants reviewed
the Minutes and provided corrections and substantive changes to certain references which will be
included in the final version of the February 2020 Minutes. The Members and Technical
Consultants discussed some of the follow-up actions to be taken, provided clarification
concerning typographical errors and the accuracy of certain references in the Minutes and made
editorial comments and changes concerning the draft of the February 2020 Minutes.

Minutes of the Committee’s public meetings in their accepted form become part of its
Annual Reports on Safety of Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant Operations (Annual Report).
On a motion by Dr. Peterson, seconded by Dr. Budnitz, the Minutes of the Committee’s
February 2020 public meeting were accepted subject to inclusion of the changes provided to the
Committee’s Assistant Legal Counsel. The February 2020 Minutes will become a part of the

B.9-2



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Committee’s 30th Annual Report.
\% ACTION ITEMS

A. Update on Financial Matters and Committee Activities During 2020. The Chair called
upon Assistant Legal Counsel for a report on this topic. Mr. Rathie reported unspent funds

provided for the DCISC’s operations by PG&E’s ratepayers for calendar year 2019 have been
remitted to PG&E for credit to the ratepayers. The Committee has now remitted unspent funds
for several years in succession. Two payments under the 2020 grant of operating funds have
now been received. Mr. Rathie reported the PG&E bankruptcy filing has had no effect on
funding provided for the operations of the Committee. He also reported that the recent approval
by the California Public Utilities Commission of PG&E Advice Letter 5797-E-A has resulted in
an increase in the Members’ hourly compensation rate from $250 to $260 per hour. Mr. Rathie
directed attention to the green sheets in the Agenda packet which Consultant Ferman Wardell
prepared and which list the dates for fact findings, public meetings and key dates.

B. Discussion of Issues on Open I[tems List.

Dr. Lam requested Consultant Wardell lead a review of items on the Open Items List,
which he described as a very important tool used by the Committee to track and also to follow
issues, concerns, and information requests identified for subsequent action or receipt during fact-
finding and public meetings. Mr. Wardell stated newly added or changed items on the Open
Items List are shown in red italics and certain items are being identified for closure.

Items discussed or concerning which action was taken included the following!:

Item Re: Action Taken

CO-10 Mispositioning Errors Next Action Contingent on
7/20 FF Review

CO-13 CAISO Load Following Policy Next Action 3/4Q21 FF

HP-1 Human Performance/Behavior Next Action 3Q/20 FF

EP-2 Delayed August 2020 Emergency Drill Next Action TBD

EP-3 Emergency Preparedness-Decommissioning Close to DEC-4

RA-5 Non Seismic PRA Program Reviews Next Action 3/4Q20 FF

RA-6 Seismic Fragility Analysis ~Next Action 3/4Q20 FF

NS-5 NSOC Meetings Next Action 11/19/20 FF

! Key to some of the abbreviations used: PG&E Nuclear Safety Oversight Committee

(NSOC), Probabilistic Risk Assessment (PRA), Public Meeting (PM), Quarter (Q), Fact-finding
(FF), To Be Determined (TBD), Dr. Robert J. Budnitz (RJB), Dr. Per F. Peterson (PFP), and Mr.
R. Ferman Wardell (REFW), Mr. Richard D. McWhorter (RDM), Mr. Robert W. Rathie (RWR).

B.9-3



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Item Re: Action Taken
OM-4 Review Outage Safety Plan Next Action 4Q20 FF and 2/21 P.M.
SEC-4 Review Cyber Security Program Next Action 3Q/21 FF w/RJB
0-2 COVID-19 Response Expand/Extract Topical Areas from
RJB List
10/18 PM-16 Post-shutdown role for DCISC Close Here & Move to New [tem
02/20PM-2  Second Restated Charter Close & Follow in DEC-3
RWR to provide wording
02/20PM-7  Use of Social Media Expand to Include Role/Issues
02/20PM-12 Emergency Siren Batteries/URI Next Action 8/20 FF
02/20PM-13 Status of NRC Cross-cutting Issues Hold Open

02/20PM-17 Observe Performance Review Meeting Close

Items identified on the list and not included in the above were identified by Mr. Wardell for
closure and were so approved. Mr. Wardell then called the Committee’s attention to Page 11 of
the Open Items List which tracks the dates on which system and component reviews were
completed or are scheduled. Items identified for review were adjusted as follows:

DCPP Systems/Components Periodic Review

System or Component Date/Action
Chemical & Volume Control System/Expanded TBD
Nuclear & In-Core Instrumentation & Rod Control & Indication TBD
Trending Analysis Include w/

Performance Improvement

C. Nomination and Election of DCISC Chair and Vice-Chair
for the July 1. 2020 - June 30, 2021 Term.

On a motion made by Dr. Budnitz, seconded by Dr. Peterson, the Committee
unanimously reelected Dr. Lam to the position of DCISC Chair and on a motion made by Dr.
Peterson, seconded by Dr. Lam, Dr. Budnitz, who abstained from vote, was elected to the
position of DCISC Vice-Chair for respective terms of office from July 1, 2020 through June 30,
2021.

A short break followed.
VI COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS AND DISCUSSION

A. Public Outreach. Site Visits and Other Committee Activities:

B.9-4



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

The Members contfirmed public meetings of the DCISC for October 22-23, 2020
[changed from September 30 - October 1, 2020], February16-17, and June 23-24, 2021, and the
Members and Consultants then scheduled a public meeting for October 19-20, 2021. Mr. Rathie
observed the DCISC public meetings may continue to be held remotely using Zoom for as long
as the Governor’s Executive Order requiring social distancing protocols remains in place.

Fact-finding visits were confirmed and scheduled as follows:

[2020] July 21-22 PFP/RFW [w/observation of evaluation/assessment meeting on July 30];
August 19-20 PL/RDM; September 9-10 RJIB/RFW; November 9-10 RIB/RDM [w/observation
of NSOC exit meeting on Nov. 19]; December 8-9, 2020 PFP/RFW [w/observation of
evaluation/assessment meeting on December 3]; and

[2021] January 27-28, 2021 PL/RDM; March 17-18 RJIB/RFW; April 20-21 PL/RDM; May 11-
12 PFP/RFW; July 14-15 PFP/RDM [w/observation of NSOC exit meeting on July 15]; August
18-19 PL/RFW; September 22-23 RIB/RDM.

The July, August and September fact-findings and the October 2020 public meeting are all
expected to be conducted using remote technology due to the coronavirus pandemic. A decision
will be made at the October 2020 public meeting concerning the conduct of future fact
finding and public meetings. Mr. Rathie observed that the Committee has continued to fulfill
all its previously scheduled activities during the coronavirus pandemic and there have been no
cancellations of DCISC activities as a result of the pandemic.

B. Documents Provided to the Committee:

The Chair observed that a list of documents received by the DCISC since its last public
meeting in February 2020 was included in the public agenda packet for this meeting and Dr. Lam
remarked the Committee strives to always conduct its business in a transparent fashion. Mr.
Rathie reported that correspondence sent to or from the Committee is available through the Legal
Counsel’s office and is made a part of each Annual Report.

VII  TECHNICAL CONSULTANT & LEGAL COUNSEL REPORTS & RECEIVE,
APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL OF FACT FINDING REPORT TO PG&E

The Chair requested Consultant McWhorter to report on the March 17-18, 2020, fact-
finding with Dr. Budnitz. Due to the coronavirus pandemic and the need to maintain social
distancing and to observe DCPP protocols to protect plant personnel this fact-finding was
conducted remotely using WebEx. He stated the DCISC fact-finding team (FFT) appreciated
PG&E’s leadership and support in working through the requirements of conducting the fact-
finding remotely. Mr. McWhorter reviewed the topics discussed with PG&E during the March
17-28, 2020 fact-finding as follows:

B.9-5



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

> Meeting with NRC Senior Resident Inspector - Mr. McWhorter reported the two NRC
resident inspectors are now present on the site two days each week and they alternate days to
afford them protection from COVID-19. The inspectors now have access with full cyber
security protections to the DCPP computer network including major plant status parameters and
to contact Control Room personnel from the resident’s homes to assist them in their
observations. Dr. Peterson remarked there is much to be learned from the response to the
pandemic including certain practices that are likely to continue after the pandemic
concludes and this is one such aspect which is worthwhile for the DCISC to review during a
future fact finding. The NRC inspectors continue to have concerns about human performance
issues at the plant and Dr. Budnitz stated the DCISC shares those concerns.

> Human Performance - Mr. McWhorter stated the DCISC’s initial interest in this topic
was broad and was based upon three station level events within a six-month period. Prior to
those events DCPP had not experienced a station level event since 2014. Station level events
represent significant human performance issues that meet specific criteria established by the
Institute of Nuclear Power Operations (INPO). He reported numerous notifications® were made
and reviewed by the FFT. Additional corrective actions were initiated in early 2020 and
reviewed by the DCISC representatives and found to be appropriate. Mr. McWhorter
recommended based on this and prior reviews that the Committee should continue its
review of human performance issues at future fact finding or public meetings. Mr.
McWhorter stated the FFT concluded that significant trends have been identified in Operations
Department human performance and the effectiveness of the corrective actions taken should be
evident over the next few months.

> Attend Notification Review Team Meeting - Mr. McWhorter reported the meeting which
is held daily was conducted as a conference call to review all the notifications that come to the
station each day. Notifications are initially reviewed by the work control and shift managers
during each operating shift to ensure there are no immediate actions required and then the
previous day’s notifications are reviewed by the Notification Review Team using multi-user
collaborative software for assignment of appropriate corrective actions in advance of the
Notification Review Team’s meeting and the results of these individual reviews are returned to
and compiled by the meeting’s facilitator. Mr. McWhorter stated the DCISC team found the
process to be generally good and the meetings to be run effectively and efficiently.

> Auxiliary Saltwater System (ASW System) - Mr. McWhorter stated the purpose of the
ASW System is to provide the heat sink for the plant, that is, to transfer heat from the Reactor
Coolant System (RCS) both during shutdown, during operations and in accident conditions
through the Component Cooling Water System (CCW System) and then ultimately the Pacific
Ocean. The ASW System consists of four pumps and two trains for each unit and is backed up

2 A notification is the document used at DCPP to enter an issue into the plant’s
Corrective Action Program.

B.9-6



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

by electrical power from the emergency diesel generators (EDGs). ASW System health was
rated Green® with no major issues. He reported two issues are being followed for the ASW
System including failure of a pump motor in November 2018 when the pump was replaced with
a spare which had not been rebuilt according to the new procedures for rebuilding the motors
Corrective actions included changes to procedures for rebuilding the pump motors and the motor
which was replaced in 2018 is scheduled to be replaced in the next planned refueling outage. In
September 2019 a pump failed to start due to a breaker’s failure to close due to linkage
degradation. Other breakers were inspected but no similar degradation was found and corrective
actions are still in progress. Mr. McWhorter reported on the effect of the present trend of higher
ocean water temperatures on the ASW System which has seen ocean water temperatures as high
as 68.2°F., with a technical specification limiting conditions for operations of 70°F. Dr. Peterson
observed this has broader implications than just the safety of the plant as it correlates with
measurements showing that temperatures are increasing and this is a serious concern. Mr.
McWhorter reported analysis has been done to understand what the limiting conditions due to
ocean temperature rise are for the ASW System and a prompt operability assessment would be
performed to take advantage of some of the margin provided in buried pipe calculations to justify
continued operation. Dr. Budnitz expressed his opinion that the current licensing analysis
supporting the 70°F. operating limit is conservative and there is likely extra margin that would
involve a more realistic calculation. Mr. McWhorter observed after the plant is scheduled to
cease generating electricity in 2025, the ASW System will still be required for spent fuel cooling
until such time as an alternate system is approved or until all fuel is removed from the spent fuel
pools. He reported the Decommissioning Group at DCPP continues to review issues with long
term systems required after shutdown and the permits necessary for their operation. Dr. Budnitz
remarked as the fuel cools in the spent fuel pools there is gradual radioactive decay and less heat
is produced each year thereafter and this creates additional margin between the heat generated
and the ASW System’s capacity to remove it. Mr. McWhorter stated the FFT concluded the
ASW System continues to be healthy with no major issues.

> Environmental Qualification Program - Mr. McWhorter reported the Environmental
Qualification Program ensures safety-related equipment will operate when subjected to abnormal
environmental conditions such as temperature, pressure, or radiation present in a post-accident
scenario. The program maintains documentation in separate files regarding the individual
equipment qualifications based upon the adverse environmental conditions due to the
equipment’s location is located and the time period during which the equipment is required to be
operable. The program owner tracks all documentation and a self-assessment is performed after
every second scheduled refueling outage. The FFT found the 2018 self-assessment to be
satisfactory with no major issues identified. Mr. McWhorter briefly discussed an issue identified

3 Ona scale of Green indicating a healthy performance and White indicating that

achievable action plans are in place to return performance to healthy status. A Yellow rating
would indicate the indicator shows deficient performance and needs improvement and Red
would indicate unsatisfactory performance.

B.9-7



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

in that self-assessment, which was completed just prior to an NRC inspection, when a cable
routed to the pressurizer power operated relief valve solenoid was found to lack a drip loop
which would allow water to drain and ensure the water could not get into the head of the
solenoid. This condition resulted in DCPP receiving a non cited violation (NCV) and DCPP
performed a programmatic review which found that in addition to the four power operated relief
valve solenoids the condition also affected four main steam isolation valve solenoids. The
condition has now been corrected except for three of the main steam isolation valve solenoids
which will be addressed during the next scheduled refueling outage. An industry issue with
transmitters not having been properly qualified for self-generating heat was found not to be
applicable to DCPP after a review of all potentially affected transmitters.

> Auxiliary Feedwater System - Mr. McWhorter reported the Auxiliary Feedwater System
(AFW) is used to provide feedwater to the steam generators during shutdown, start-up, low
power and accident conditions when heat is being removed from the Reactor Coolant System.
He reported the FFT found the AFW System to be in Green status for both units and concluded
there were no significant issues with the final replacement of the chemical addition skids at
various points with the AFW System now concluding, and very small check valve back-leakage
experienced which Mr. McWhorter reported was within the plant’s technical specifications.

> Unit 2 Forced Outage - this forced outage occurred during the period February 13-16,
2020, when Unit 2 was required to shut down by technical specifications due to a problem with
shutdown bank B control rods deviating from demand positions during rod testing. Mr.
McWhorter stated the issue did not affect the safety function of the control rods. Investigation
found a failed circuit card and a root cause evaluation was initiated. Mr. McWhorter reported a
more recent issue was also identified that did not require the plant to shut down and the root
cause evaluation has been reopened. During the shutdown Mr. McWhorter stated the valve
positioner for the feedwater regulating valves displayed major oscillation and an alarm for stator
cooling water sounded which was found not to be indicative of a problem and these issues are
also under review. The FFT concluded the Unit 2 forced outage was appropriately handled
but the DCISC should continue to review the event to find the cause of the rod control
problems and to assess the corrective actions.

> Special Protection System - Mr. McWhorter stated the Special Protection System (SPS)
was the subject of recent review due to it having caused a unit trip. The FFT reviewed the logic
used by the SPS to determine which unit will be tripped and found there were three types of
situations: (1) if two or all three of the 500kV power lines are in a certain configuration such that
Unit 1 has no path to the grid, Unit 1 is tripped; (2) if two or all three of the 500kV power lines

B.9-8



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

are in a certain configuration such that Unit 2 has no path to the grid, Unit 2 is tripped; and (3)
regardless of which two 500kV lines are down and both units maintain a connection to the grid
then the plant computer system determines which unit gets tripped. The FFT also reviewed a
reduction in power for Unit 1 in December 2019 that was initially identified as an SPS issue but
which was subsequently found to be related to an alarm received while Unit 2 was being brought
up to full power after its last refueling outage. As DCPP’s power output reached 1,700 combined
megawatts power was backed off for Unit 1to troubleshoot the alarm. Investigation found there
were no issues with the SPS but rather an incorrect wiring of the alarm circuit due to an incorrect
drawing. This issue was reviewed by the PG&E Transmission organization for any effect
elsewhere in the transmission system and Dr. Budnitz observed an inquiry might be
warranted into the mis-wiring extent of condition report. Mr. Garcia confirmed the root
cause evaluation was shared with Electric Operations and Mr. Garcia promised to check and
ensure that the Root Cause Evaluation for the mis-wired condition was or will be provided
to the DCISC for its review if it was not already provided as part of the monthly document
packages. Mr. McWhorter stated the FFT concluded actions taken in response to the December
2019 event were appropriate.

> Steam Generator System - Mr. McWhorter described the FFT review as a routine
examination of the primary and secondary side* inspections performed on the steam generators
(SGs). The primary side inspection activities involve eddy current testing of each tube to look for
wall thinning or defects. The secondary side inspection activities include sludge lancing to find
and remove debris and foreign material. Following the primary side inspection a quantitative
and qualitative operational assessment is performed for SG operability and reliability for the next
three operational cycles after which the SGs will again be inspected. Following refueling outage
1R19 there were eight tubes plugged due to anti-vibration bar wear which Mr. McWhorter stated
was an unexpected result as the wearing was found at the top of the Unit 1 SGs. On the
secondary side, 23 pounds of sludge were removed from the Unit 1 SGs. The next SG inspection
was of Unit 2 on the secondary side only when 12.5 pounds of sludge were removed. The
inspection during 2R21 of all four Unit 2 SGs found no tubes that requiring plugging and 35
pounds of sludge were removed. Mr. McWhorter stated these results represent excellent
performance for the DCPP SGs since the replacement of the SGs in 2008 and 2009. The
inspection of Unit 1 SGs during the next refueling outage will be the last inspection for Unit 1 as
three operational cycles will take Unit 1 to its planned retirement. DCPP is performing an

* Primary and secondary side refer, respectively, to the Reactor Coolant System, which is
used to remove heat from the nuclear reactor and the Main Steam and Feedwater Systems which
provide cooling to the Steam Generators and generate and provide steam to the Turbines.

B.9-9



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

evaluation to consider seeking to change the inspection interval for the secondary side
inspection from three to six cycles and, if granted, no further secondary side inspection for
the Unit 1 SGs would be necessary. The FFT recommended the DCISC conduct a fact-
finding review of the evaluation when it is completed. In response to Dr. Peterson’s inquiry
Mr. McWhorter stated the Committee should also review whether sludge lancing would
still be performed for Unit 1 if the inspection interval were changed. Unit 2 has four more
operational cycles remaining before its planned retirement and unless approval is received from
the NRC to allow an inspection interval of four cycles, one more SG inspection would be
required for Unit 2 prior to its retirement. DCPP is presently doing an analysis and intends to
seek NRC approval to extend the inspection interval to four cycles. Mr. McWhorter stated the
DCISC representatives concluded the SGs have been performing well with no major issues and
testing has shown them to be in good condition.

> Pandemic Response Planning for the COVID-19 Coronavirus Threat - this was the first
review following the coronavirus pandemic of the actions taken by DCPP which commenced on
February 27, 2020. The DCISC representatives inquired so as to assess the continued
operational safety of the power plant and as to the plant’s ability to respond to an emergency.
Mr. McWhorter reported that, in general, DCPP’s response was found to be well developed and
thorough with actions supporting safe operation and continued emergency response capabilities.
Emergency response personnel who are now working from home continue to have their
emergency response assignments as a priority over the pandemic. Activities have been reduced
for the Operations Department and certain noncritical work has been deferred with all critical
work continuing to be performed and all technical specifications continue to be met. Mr.
McWhorter reported that future fact-findings have considered DCPP’s response to the
pandemic and he stated the FFT during the March 2020 fact-finding found DCPP’s
response to the coronavirus pandemic to be appropriate and he recommended that the
DCISC continue to monitor the plant’s response as the pandemic continues.

> Future Spent Fuel Management - Mr. McWhorter reported the study being conducted on
spent fuel risk was not completed at the time of the March 2020 fact finding. The FFT reviewed
with DCPP the requirements of the mitigating strategies for beyond design basis station blackout
contained in B.5.b. of the NRC’s Interim Compensatory Measures Order issued after the accident
to the Fukushima Dai-Ichi Nuclear Power Plant in Japan. In order to cope with a postulated loss
of cooling in the spent fuel pools a mix of cold and hot fuel assemblies is required within the
pools with four cold assemblies surrounding each hot assembly such that if water inventory is
lost the cold assemblies would serve to gather and dissipate radiant heat given off by the hot
assemblies and this increases the time to respond to restore the water inventory in the spent fuel
pools. Mr. McWhorter reported replacing a cold assembly with a “dummy” would thermally

B.9-10



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

serve to absorb heat but the dummy material would become highly activated and create more
highly radioactive waste to be disposed of through storage. Dr. Peterson remarked it was his
view that the result would be low level waste rather than high level waste but the logic remains
the same as to generating additional waste for this particular purpose. Dr. Peterson remarked
there are also issues regarding the mix of assemblies for placement in dry storage canisters and
also of having a sufficient number of older assemblies available after shutdown. Mr. McWhorter
stated that with reference to the B.5.b. requirement any change would require NRC approval and
would need to also be integrated into the thermal limits for dry storage casks and a change to the
mix of old and new fuel would likely only be justified if the overal! fuel plan demonstrated that it
would facilitate a more rapid unloading of all fuel from the spent fuel pools.

> Mode Change Sequence Following Refueling Outage 2R21 - Mr. McWhorter reported
due to 2R21 being a very long duration refueling outage because of refurbishment of the main
generator DCPP planned to start up the reactor to perform physics testing and then to stay in
Mode 3° while waiting for the secondary side work to be performed. However, after entry into
Mode 3 there was an need to shut down due to unexpected main steam isolation leakage which
had the potential to heat up the condenser and affect work on the turbine and the main generator
as well as issues concerning running electrical and reactor coolant pumps for long periods in
Mode 4 and a decision was made to return to Mode 5. During that evolution human performance
errors occurred. Mr. McWhorter reported while all the actions he described were appropriate
and there was no direct correlation to the human performance errors those errors did result in
adding complexity to the outage. Mr. McWhorter stated the FFT reviewed the probabilistic risk
assessment calculations made prior to entry into Mode 4.

> Meet with DCPP Officer - Dr. Budnitz and Mr. McWhorter met with DCPP Site Vice
President Paul Gerfen to discuss items reviewed during the fact finding.

Following Mr. McWhorter’s presentation Ms. Sherry Lewis, a representative of San Luis
Obispo Mothers for Peace, was recognized. In response to Ms. Lewis inquiry concerning DCPP
workers who are now working from home Mr. McWhorter reported that certain DCPP
organizations including Engineering, Regulatory Services, Administration and some portion of
the Maintenance staff have been able to work from their homes during the pandemic and in
some cases rotational work assignments have been implemented. Operations Department

> For Westinghouse pressurized water reactors: Mode 1 is power operation, Mode 2 is
startup, Mode 3 is hot standby, Mode 4 is hot shutdown, Mode S is cold shutdown, and Mode 6
is refueling.

B.9-11



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

personnel continue their regular shift work although operating crews are isolated from each other
and Dr. Budnitz reviewed the shift turnover procedures which have now been implemented
which are now in place to separate and prevent contact between the crews coming on shift and
the crews being relieved. Critical maintenance is being conducted, while some noncritical work
was deferred early in the pandemic and is now being addressed. Mr. Baldwin reported that not
all DCPP workers are tested for COVID-19 but screening criteria includes checking temperatures
and interviewing for recent contacts and for potential illness symptoms. Masks are required and
social distancing protocols are employed whenever possible within the power plant and extra
measures are being taken to ensure the cleanliness of DCPP’s facilities. Mr. Baldwin reported
DCPP has contingency plans in place should it experience positive COVID-19 cases but those
plans have not to date been necessary.

Mr. David Weisman was recognized to address remarks to the Committee. With respect
to Mr. Weisman’s question as to whether DCPP seeking to change the SG inspection interval
from three cycles of operation to four cycles, Mr. McWhorter replied there is an industry
initiative for extending the interval from three to four operational cycles based upon inspection
results which are finding fewer and fewer defects. Mr. McWhorter stated the industry initiative
is expected to be approved by the NRC during 2021, following which DCPP would submit its
request. Mr. McWhorter and Dr. Budnitz observed that with a generic approval the NRC follows
a process that is in the public domain. Mr. Baldwin stated that prior industry initiatives of this
type have been public and public comment was allowed. He remarked DCPP would have to
submit documentation for its request for an interval extension for Unit 2 and those documents
would be subject to public comment. Neither Mr. McWhorter nor Mr. Baldwin could comment
on Mr. Weisman’s inquiry as to whether the generic industry initiative would be limited to steam
generator inspection interval extension or might include other matters. Mr. Weisman observed
that in the past with generic industry initiatives the process for approval has been a public
process and includes publication in the Federal Register. Dr. Budnitz stated he believes that
would be the case with the initiative under discussion as it would necessarily include an
exemption from an accepted code standard. Dr. Budnitz suggested that an answer may be
available concerning the procedure for an exemption during the presentation later in the meeting
on NRC regulatory matters.

Dr. Budnitz and Mr. Rathie called Mr. Weisman and the public’s attention to the
Committee’s website where all the informational presentations for this public meeting were

posted and available prior to the meeting.

Dr. Peterson having been temporarily called away from the meeting, approval of the
March 2020 Fact Finding Report was deferred until after the lunch break.

B.9-12



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

The Chair requested Assistant Legal Counsel Rathie to report on administrative,
regulatory and legal matters.

Mr. Rathie reported on the process used to set up this public meeting which due to the
coronavirus pandemic is the first such meeting to be conducted using Zoom remote meeting
connectivity. He expressed his appreciation for Mr. Baldwin and Mr. Garcia’s participation and
cooperation in the process and in the mock meeting conducted to test the technology and its
application to the Committee’s public meeting format. Mr. Rathie mentioned that but for the
pandemic a tour with members of the public had been planned for this public meeting and the
Committee may need to review the future viability of conducting tours of the power plant with
members of the public.

Mr. Rathie reported the Committee’s Webmaster was forced to close her business due to
a family medical situation and SunStar Media of Monterey, California was engaged to assist in
posting items to the website for this meeting and to complete the posting of the 29th Annual
Report to the Committee’s website. He commented that SunStar has offered several ideas for
improving and reorganizing the website. He reported, in addition to posting the Annual Reports
on the website, the Committee continues to publish its Annual Reports in both a print version as
well as on compact disk and USB media and he inquired about whether the Members wants to
continue providing the report as a CD and as a USB drive as many computers now do not have
CD rom drives and the report is principally accessed through the website and is provided in two
bound volumes to the Governor, the Attorney General, the California Energy Commission and
the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). He confirmed that the 30th Annual Report
will be published in all the usual formats and the office of the Committee’s Legal Counsel and
Consultant Wardell retain copies of all the annual reports’ component files. Dr. Budnitz
suggested including an inquiry as to the utility of the CD in the cover letter which
accompanies each CD. Mr. Rathie reported that to date in 2020 the Committee’s website has
averaged 671 unique visitors each month with the greatest number of visitors coming from the
United States, the Russian Federation, Saudi Arabia, Great Britain and the Ukraine in that order.

Mr. Rathie reported at the Committee’s direction during the February 2020 public
meeting the proposed Second Restatement of the Committee’s Charter was provided to Mr.
David Zizmor in the CPUC Energy Division. The Second Restatement as proposed and
approved by the Members at the February 2020 public meeting would provide for a post-
shutdown role for the DCISC to continue to review nuclear fuel-related issues until all fuel was
safely moved from the spent fuel pools to the Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation
(ISFSI). He reported that Mr. Zizmor was unable to provide any information on the progress of
consideration of a Settlement Agreement which would provide for a post-shutdown role for the
DCISC in the 2018 Nuclear Decommissioning Cost Triennial Proceeding (2018 NDCTP).

B.9-13



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Mr. Rathie reported that the Governor’s appointment of a member of the DCISC is
pending and Dr. Peterson and Dr. Michael Quinn have been approved by the President of the
CPUC for consideration for that position which would be for the July 1, 2020-June 30, 2023
term.

In concluding his presentation, Mr. Rathie observed that Governor Newsom’s Executive
Order which relaxed certain requirements of the Bagley Keene Open Meeting Act to allow state
bodies to use remote technology to meet during the pandemic emphasized that transparency must
remain uppermost in a body’s consideration when holding a public meeting using remote
technology and the Committee’s Legal Counsel’s office has done its best to adhere to that advice
in setting up, providing notice and in conducting this public meeting.

VIII  ADJOURN MORNING MEETING
The Chair adjourned the morning meeting of the DCISC at 12:30 P.M.
IX RECONVENE FOR AFTERNOON MEETING

The afternoon meeting of the DCISC was convened by the Chair at 1:30 P.M.
X COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

There were no comments from any Members at this time.

Upon a motion made by Dr. Budnitz, seconded by Dr. Lam, the March 17-18, 2020 Fact
Finding Report was accepted by the DCISC and its transmittal to PG&E was authorized. The
report will become a part of the Committee’s 30th Annual Report.

Dr. Peterson remarked that his audio connection to the meeting was not the best quality
and the dial-in telephone number(s) given in the agenda were available to anyone who wished to
connect to this meeting by telephone.

XI PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Dr. Lam invited members of the public to address the Committee on matters not on the
agenda for this meeting.

B.9-14



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Mr. John Geesman was recognized. Mr. Geesman reported that he had a very good
connection to the meeting and could hear the discussion quite well.

XII  INFORMATION ITEMS BEFORE THE COMMITTEE

The Chair requested PG&E Director of Generation Business Planning Mr. Thomas
Baldwin to introduce the first of the informational presentations for this public meeting. Mr.
Baldwin introduced Station Director Mr. Cary Harbor. Mr. Baldwin reported Mr. Harbor has
held a Senior Reactor Operator License and has led many DCPP organizations including serving
as Director in the Maintenance, Quality Verification, Quality Services, Generation Compliance,
and Risk and Business Planning organizations. Mr. Harbor holds a degree in Nuclear
Engineering from the University of California at Santa Barbara and a management certification
from Stanford University’s executive business program.

Presentation on the State of the Plant including Key Events, Highlights, Organizational Changes.
and Station Activities since the DCISC’s February 2020 Public Meeting.

Mr. Harbor stated he appreciated the opportunity to again make a presentation to the
DCISC and reported both Unit 1 and Unit 2 continue to operate safely at 100% power with no
threats or risk to generation or safety. All NRC Performance Indicators are in Green status and
the DCISC will receive a separate presentation on these Performance Indicators later during this
public meeting. Mr. Harbor reported the coronavirus pandemic has been a challenge for the
nuclear industry as well as all other industries and he reported DCPP continues to weather the
pandemic well and safety performance and reliability have improved.

Unit 2 shut down on February 13, 2020, due to rod control equipment problems. Mr,
Harbor reported a logic card on the Rod Control System indicated an error during testing and the
plant was conservatively shut down to troubleshoot and identify the issue. The logic card was
replaced but subsequently there were further challenges to Unit 2's rod control and further
troubleshooting identified a resistance termination which was corrected and the rod control was
returned to operable status.

Mr. Harbor reported the Institute for Nuclear Power Operations (INPO) reaccredited all
twelve DCPP training programs after a large INPO team visited DCPP to review all aspects of
training.

Mr. Harbor stated Unit 1 is in the midst of preparations for refueling outage 1R22 which

is expected to take place during the coronavirus pandemic and will require a good team effort.
Unit 1 operations were curtailed to 50% in May 2020 to support routine tunnel and condenser

B.9-15



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

cleaning of ocean debris and this provided an opportunity to put in place actions related to
protection of personnel during the pandemic. Mr. Harbor stated this was a successful curtailment
and was completed without injury or human performance events and in accordance with the
duration established by the DCPP Business Plan.

Mr. Harbor reviewed two graphs showing the daily load profiles for both units during
2020 and for the last twelve months. He observed both units operated reliably and have
performed very well over those periods and he remarked that during the Unit 2 refueling outage
the generator stator was replaced and the generator performance has been exemplary since the
replacement.

Mr. Harbor commented on station organizational changes and reported the previous
Quality Verification Director, Mr. Ken Cortese, has now retired and was replaced in that position
by Mr. Ken Johnson who has been in the DCPP organization for 25 years.

Mr. Harbor reported the PG&E bankruptcy has had no impact on DCPP’s safe operations
and he reported all major facets of the bankruptcy matter have been resolved or are very close to
resolution with the bankruptcy court and with the other parties and the reorganization plan has
been accepted by the bankruptcy court and PG&E expects te soon fully exit from bankruptcy.
Mr. Harbor stated PG&E takes full accountability for the recent wildfires and is looking to
improve its operations and move forward.

Mr. Harbor reviewed upcoming station activities including the NRC’s Problem
Identification and Resolution inspection scheduled in August 2020 and the twenty-second Unit 1
Refueling Outage (1R22) commencing in October 2020.

In response to Dr. Lam’s request Mr. Harbor stated that up to the present time, when
PG&E is anticipating receipt of confirmation from the bankruptcy court, there has been no
impact to DCPP operations and support for DCPP from senior leadership has been unchanged.

Mr. Baldwin introduced Emergency Planning Manager Michael Ginn and asked Mr.
Ginn to make the next informational presentation to the DCISC. Mr. Baldwin stated Mr. Ginn
has more than 35 years of experience in the energy industry and in that time Mr. Ginn has held
leadership roles in public safety and the DCPP Emergency Response organization.

Diablo Canyon Power Plant’s Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic Including Impacts on
Operations, Maintenance and Emergency Planning. Training, Long-term Projects, and Staffing.

B.9-16



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Mr. Ginn reported station updates on COVID-19 response actions and prevention
measures taken were provided to DCISC during fact-finding meetings conducted on March 18,
April 16, and May 13, 2020. He remarked his presentation would provide an overview of the
actions taken throughout the response. Mr. Ginn stated the current status relative to COVID-19
at DCPP remains in the monitoring stage for essential personnel required for continued safe and
reliable operations at the station. An Emergent [ssue (EI) Team, a multi-organizational team,
was established as of February 27, 2020, and is managed by Mr. Ginn to address business
continuity challenges as a result of the public health emergency and to date more than 100 site-
specific actions have been implemented.

Mr. Ginn described and discussed some of the categories and the key actions taken in
each category as follows.

Operations Control Room:

> Limited access to only critically required personnel;

> Shift briefs and turnovers performed remotely;

> Control Room work areas are sanitized each shift and during turnovers;

> Employment of additional sanitation crews with sole purpose of cleaning high exposure

areas; and
Additional hand sanitizers added at entry points for required use.

\/

In response to Dr. Peterson’s query as to how shift changes in the Control Room are conducted
remotely and concerning some of the actions described by Mr. Ginn, Mr. Ginn reported the daily
plan of the day meetings held each morning and evening are conducted by telephone and
whenever a face to face pre-job briefing is required face coverings and social distancing
protocols are observed. The operating crew going off a shift sanitize and cleanse the Control
Room and this sanitation and cleansing is again performed by the crew coming on the next
operating shift. Operating crews also keep logs for every shift to ensure documentation is
provided in support of the shift turnover. Mr. Ginn reported DCPP is using WebEx remote
meeting technology extensively and personnel are also working from home. In response to Dr.
Budnitz’ question Mr. Ginn stated there have been no specific challenges in any department and
absenteeism is closely monitored to ensure the plant retains the ability to adequately staff
contingency situations and new standards have been established for the use of face coverings,
while coaching is done to communicate and reinforce expectations. In response to Dr. Lam’s
inquiry Mr. Ginn confirmed the Information Technology organization prefers the use of WebEx

B.9-17



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

and Microsoft Teams to the use of Zoom for remote meetings.

Employee Protection Measures:

>

Implemented rigorous health screening including, temperature and symptom checks
before arriving at work, and following necessary quarantine guidelines;

Face coverings and physical distancing requirements established for all departments with
coaching leadership in the field enforcing the new standards;

Suspended all non-essential site access, business travel and offsite meetings;
Closed fitness facilities and cafeteria dining with no communal food; and

Implemented additional sanitizing routines, with staged supplies including for use
of company vehicles;

Critical Qualification Monitoring;:

>

>

Implemented critical qualification monitoring for all license required personnel;

Established department specific monitoring and action plans for Operations,
Security, Maintenance, Engineering, Chemistry & Radiation Protection, and DCPP Fire
Protection organizations; and

Established plans to deepen pool of available critical qualifications if needed with action
triggers for absenteeism including, if necessary, reactivation of licenses in order to
increase availability of licensed personnel.

Supply Chain & Critical Supplies:

>

Implemented daily review of critical supplies and built margins to support eight weeks of
isolated operations;

Established four weeks of onsite food supply and procured additional contingency
supplies for station isolation planning;

Engaged vendors and contractors on potential for sequestered onsite support; and

B.9-18



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

> Donated ~1 million N95 and surgical masks to California Healthcare professionals.

In response to Dr. Lam’s inquiry Mr. Ginn cited chemicals, supplies needed for sustained
operations and personal protective equipment as critical supply items. In response to Dr.
Budnitz’ inquiry Mr. Ginn stated there have been no budget concerns regarding the procurement
of these critical supplies, however, the federal government at one point placed a hold on personal
protective equipment but this was resolved on the basis that nuclear facilities are critical
infrastructure.

Remote Work Strategy for Approximately 500 employees working from home or remotely:
> Implemented remote work strategy for all non-essential personnel;

> Information Technology (IT) key part of EI Team;

> Established self-service depot for IT equipment and employee resources; and

> Home office ergonomic assessments being tracked and implemented to support all
remote workers.

In response to Dr. Budnitz’ query Mr. Ginn stated that essential and nonessential employees are
monitored for the contacts they may have to determine if they could be in any way impacted by
COVID-19 including through travel, family or other contacts and quarantine would be required
for anyone so impacted. In response to Dr. Lam’s inquiry about an employee with a spouse in
the medical field Mr. Ginn stated that self-screening questions are utilized and staffing levels
have not been impacted.

Industry Interface & Outreach:

> Conducting weekly NRC Sentor Resident Inspector briefings on station COVID-19
response;

> Participating in weekly Nuclear Energy Institute (NEI) COVID-19 industry coordination
calls and benchmarking;

> Maintaining daily communications and interface with San Luis Obispo County Public
Health and Emergency Services; and

> Conducting bi-weekly coordination calls with Federal Emergency Management

B.9-19



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Agency(FEMA) Region IX, NRC Region IV, and the State of California Emergency
Services. Outreach has also been made to the San Luis Obispo County Office of
Emergency Services.

Fall Outage Preparation & Planning:

> Outage COVID-19 Planning Team established;

> Industry benchmarking and lessons learned reviewed from stations with Spring outages;
> In-processing contingency plans established; and
> Employee and contractor personnel communications and updates being developed on

outage specific protective measures for site access, employee screening, social
distancing, and other logistics.

Lessons Learned & Critiques:

> Emergent Issue Team critiques are currently in progress and benchmarking is taking
place with others;

> Critiques are focused on COVID-19 policies, standards and response areas including
alignment with PG&E corporate guidance and industry best practices; and

> Goals established to ensure lessons learned are captured in the corrective action program
and the DCPP pandemic response policy and guidance are updated in a timely manner.
The Daily Brief newsletter goes to every employee and focuses on safety, alignment and
the status of the plant.

In response to Consultant Wardell’s inquiry Mr. Ginn reported an early focus was placed
on the Emergency Response Organization (ERO) to ensure personnel understand that their roles
are essential. The ERO conducted drills through March 12, 2020 and opportunities remain to
maintain proficiency of emergency responders using tabletop drills where social distancing can
be employed and ERO personnel are briefed remotely. The ERO continues to benchmark with
its peers in the industry. The next full scope ERO drill is scheduled for December 2, 2020, and
DCPP is working with San Luis Obispo County, FEMA and the NRC to reschedule the August
2020 exercise. In response to Dr. Budnitz’ question as to any compromises or a decrease in

B.9-20



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

effectiveness due to lack of personal interaction including when personnel changes are made
which involve groups Mr. Ginn stated that for initial qualifications, verifications and
walkthroughs these continue to be conducted in a face to face setting. Continued training is
more susceptible to being conducted remotely but small group training for the ERO where social
distancing is possible is sometimes necessary to ensure continued proficiency. He reported there
is still a process for adding new employees or newly qualified individuals to the watch bills. In
response to Dr. Budnitz’ inquiry as to how one monitors effectiveness of these measures Mr.
Ginn stated there is an abundance of such metrics including safety performance and the ability to
monitor trends in performance and to take swift action upon any indication of a decline in
performance.

Ms. Linda Seeley was recognized following Mr. Ginn’s presentation. Ms. Seeley stated
it was her impression the contract workers brought in for work at DCPP during refueling outages
were risk takers by nature and she believed that might make them less interested in maintaining
social distancing and following other protocols and she questioned how DCPP will know
whether its contract personnel are conforming to COVID-19 safety protocols. Mr. Ginn replied
the Outage Pandemic Team has implemented measures such as separation of employee entrances
and pre testing of personnel and continues to reinforce social distancing requirements and he
reported refueling outages conducted by other nuclear power plants have been benchmarked and
were found to have successfully implemented COVID-19 safety protocols. Mr. Ginn stated
major outage window work activities are coordinated through the Outage Coordination Center
senior leadership team that monitors site standards for all employees and supplemental personnel
and he remarked all workers are nuclear professionals and are expected to adhere to health
protection measures. Testing of personnel is being evaluated as part of the planning for outage
1R22. Mr. Ginn, in response to Ms. Seeley, clarified that the preference is for workers to
maintain six feet of distance whenever possible and to use face coverings at all times when
unable to maintain that distance.

At the Chair’s invitation Mr. Baldwin introduced the DCPP Director of Risk and
Compliance Mr. Russ Prentice to make the next presentation. Mr. Baldwin reported Mr. Prentice
was licensed as a Senior Reactor Operator and has been at DCPP for more than ten years in
positions as a Shift Manager in the Operations Department. In his present assignment Mr.
Prentice oversees the generation, regulatory and risk programs including for DCPP.

B.9-21



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Update on the Status of NRC Performance Indicators. Licensee Event Reports. NRC Inspection
Reports and Notices of Violation and [ssues Raised by NRC Resident Inspectors and Major
Regulatory Issues (Open Compliance and License Action Requests).

Mr. Prentice stated the goal of his presentation was to provide a perspective on
DCPP as seen from a regulatory standpoint. Mr. Prentice stated the plant has been operating
safely and effectively. He remarked his presentation would cover approximately four months of
NRC inspection activity involving ~1,800 hours of inspection time. During this period DCPP
met all Green performance expectations for each of the NRC Performance Indicators. One
violation of very low safety significance was issued by the NRC since the last DCISC meeting in
February 2020.

Mr. Prentice reviewed and briefly discussed some of the 16 Performance Indicators
reviewed for both DCPP units and used to collect data by the NRC and concerning which data is
collected daily and he described each as being currently within Green® status, with margin
remaining, as follows.

> Unplanned Scrams per 7000 Critical Hrs.

Unplanned Power Changes per 7000 Critical Hrs.

Unplanned Scrams with Complications.

Safety System Functional Failures.

Mitigating Systems Performance Index, Emergency AC Power System.
Mitigating Systems Performance Index, High Pressure Injection System.
Mitigating Systems Performance Index, Heat Removal System.
Mitigating Systems Performance Index, Residual Heat Removal System.
Mitigating Systems Performance Index, Cooling Water Systems.
Reactor Coolant System Activity.

Reactor Coolant System Leakage.

YYYY Y Y Y VYV VY

Drill/Exercise Performance.

6 The safety significance characterizations used for the Performance Indicators as either
Green (very low), White (low to moderate) Yellow (substantial) or Red (high). A Green non
cited violations (NCV) indicates very low safety significance, with no impact to public health
and safety.

B.9-22



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

ERO Drill Participation.
Alert & Notification System.
Occupational Exposure Control Effectiveness.

VYVYVY

Radiological Effluent Occurrence.

Mr. Prentice reported that since the last meeting of the DCISC in February 2020, Mr. Hossein
Hamzehee the previous Director of Risk and Compliance for DCPP has moved on to the STARS
(Strategic Teaming and Resource Sharing) joint utility organization. Mr. Baldwin subsequently
reported Ms. Hamzehee remains a PG&E employee but is serving as the functional area manager
for the STARS group. Mr. Prentice reported on the one non cited violation (NCV) issued by the
NRC for the period February 2020 through June 2020 as follows:

> Non Cited Violation (Green) - both Unit 2 Containment spray pumps rendered inoperable
in Mode 4 during the Unit 2 refueling outage. (Cross-cutting aspect H/S Work Management.)

Mr. Prentice stated no licensee event reports have been issued since the last public
meeting of the DCISC and he reviewed inspection activities since the last meeting of the DCISC
in February 2020 as follows:

> Open Phase Condition Industry Initiative Inspection Report (2020-011, 4/08/2020);
> Ist Quarter 2020 Integrated Inspection Report (2020-01, 4/16/2020).

Mr. Prentice reported the Intake Structure reclassification License Amendment Request
(LAR) was approved by the NRC in March 2020 under the 10 CFR 50.54 process and was fully
implemented on June 5, 2020. This LAR reclassified the Intake Structure from a protected area
to an owner controlled area and thereby allowed the plant to further enhance its security focus
upon vital areas.

In response to Consultant Wardell’s query as to the public process involved in the
relaxation of the steam generator inspection interval to go from three operational cycles to four
cycles Mr. Prentice stated he expects this change will need to be submitted as an LAR and public
comment would be a part of the process. In response to Consultant McWhorter’s request
Mr. Prentice and Mr. Garcia stated that for future presentations on DCPP regulatory
performance a matrix will be presented that tracks the present status of identified cross-
cutting aspects including the numbers that are open or approaching the margin which

B.9-23



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

would trigger additional NRC inspection activity. Mr. Prentice, in response to Consultant
McWhorter’s request, also agreed to provide for future presentations on regulatory
performance a list of potential future LARSs. In response to Consultant Wardell Mr. Prentice
confirmed that the final correspondence on NRC Generic Safety Issue 191 concerning the
Containment sump has now been closed. In response to Dr. Budnitz’ inquiry concerning NRC
activities with regard to the coronavirus pandemic Mr. Prentice reported regular communication
is maintained with the NRC resident inspectors through meetings and with communication to the
NRC Region IV office and the NRC resident inspectors now have full remote access to DCPP
Corrective Action Program data as well as to the logs and other data and the NRC resident
inspectors continue to maintain an onsite presence two days each week with precautions taken to
minimize exposure between the two resident inspectors. DCPP provides frequent reports to the
NRC concerning its COVID-19 precautions.

XTI TECHNICAL CONSULTANT REPORTS & RECEIVE, APPROVE AND
AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL OF FACT FINDING REPORTS TO PG&E

The Chair requested Consultant Wardell to report on the April 15-16, 2020, fact-finding
with Dr. Lam. Due to the coronavirus pandemic and the need to maintain social distancing, this
fact-finding was conducted remotely using WebEx. He reviewed the topics discussed with
PG&E during the April 15-16, 2020 fact-finding as follows:

> Meeting with NRC Senior Resident Inspector - The DCISC fact-finding team (FFT) met
with NRC Senior Resident [nspector Mr. Christopher Newport. Mr. Wardell reported Mr.
Newport will have a new assignment from the NRC in September or October of 2020 as part of a
regular rotation of resident inspectors. Resident Inspector Mr. John Reynoso has also been
reassigned as of June 2020. Mr. Prentice confirmed that a Senior Resident and a Resident
Inspector have been named to replace Messrs. Newport and Reynoso. Mr. Wardell reported the
FFT discussed with Mr. Newport the protocols described during Mr. Prentice’s presentation to
address the coronavirus pandemic and the dangers posed by COVID-19 and the deferral of some
noncritical maintenance. DCPP is doing selective testing of its personnel and to date there have
been no positive tests. The DCISC representatives also discussed the Unit 2 forced outage in
February 2020 and the UCLA Spent Fuel Risk Study with the NRC Senior Resident as well as
the LAR concerning the change in classification for the Intake Structure.

> Unit-2 Forced Outage - Mr. Wardell referred to Mr. McWhorter’s report earlier at this
public meeting and he confirmed that a Westinghouse circuit logic card was not functioning

B.9-24



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

properly and was replaced. Other cards were tested and the results were pending at the time of
the fact-finding. Visual inspections and tests will be performed during the next Unit 2 refueling
outage. Mr. Wardell reported when Unit 2 was returned to power operation that all rod control
systems were working correctly and the FFT found DCPP’s actions to be appropriate.

> Quality Performance Assessment Report (QPAR) - Mr. Wardell described the QPAR,
which is issued three times each year, as determining DCPP’s demonstrated overall White
performance which he described as acceptable but not desirable for the long-term. The
Operations Department performance was determined by the QPAR to be in stable Yellow status
with one issue being control status in alignment of components. All other departments were
classified as being in White or Green status. The DCISC representatives concluded the QPAR
was comprehensive and factual.

> Quality Verification Audits and Nuclear Industry Evaluation Program - Mr. Wardell
described the scheduled audits for 2020 as being typical and the audits reviewed by the FFT were
well done. Items from a 2019 audit of cyber issues have now been satisfactorily resolved and
closed. The Nuclear Industry Evaluation Program (NIEP) looks at the Quality Assurance
Program from an outsider’s viewpoint and found the development, documentation and
implementation of the Quality Assurance organization’s function to be effective with three
deficiencies from the previous evaluation having been satisfactorily resolved. The 2020 NIEP
evaluation identified seven new deficiencies which Mr. Wardell stated were not major and
concerned qualifications in the plant’s welding program which represent administrative problems
and no welds have been found to be defective or questionable. The NIEP evaluation for the
Quality Assurance Program also identified the Director position as a program strength.

> Final Spent Fuel Risk Analysis - the FFT reviewed the spent fuel risk analysis performed
by the B. John Garrick Institute for the Risk Sciences at UCLA under contract with PG&E which
compared the risks of four spent fuel storage options for transfer of spent nuclear fuel from the
spent fuel pools to the Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation. Mr. Wardell reported the
smallest risk was determined to be associated with early movement from the spent fuel pools
following Unit 1's shutdown and prior to Unit 2 shutting down. He reported the Committee will
receive a presentation on this topic later during this public meeting.

> Component Cooling Water (CCW) System - Mr. Wardell reported the FFT selected the
CCW System as the topic for a periodic system review as part of a regular practice of system

B.9-25



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

review and not because of any perceived issues with the system. He stated the CCW System is a
safety-related system which removes heat during normal operations and in accident situations by
transferring heat to the Auxiliary Saltwater System and to the Pacific Ocean, which serves as the
plant’s ultimate heat sink. The system engineer provided information, drawings, diagrams and
criteria for the CCW System and the FFT found the system to be in Green health and operating
as designed.

> DCISC Member Meeting with PG&E Chief Nuclear Officer - Dr. Lam met with Senior
Vice President and Chief Nuclear Officer Mr. James Welsch to discuss the COVID-19
management and protective activities at the site and the parallel priorities of protecting plant
personnel and continuing safe operations. Dr. Lam described DCPP’s efforts in these aspects as
being firmly implemented yet flexible with most of the anticipated contingencies having been
actively considered.

> Online Maintenance Update - Mr. Wardell reported that while a great deal of
maintenance is accomplished during refueling outages, online maintenance performed while the
plant is operating saves outage time and improves equipment reliability. He reported online
maintenance activities are selected and implemented based on a risk assessment and only those
maintenance activities are performed that are required to maintain reliability and that can be
undertaken with the number of components taken out of service at any one time minimized and a
prior risk analysis performed. The FFT concluded the procedures were satisfactory and the risk-
based decision making was a good practice.

> Integrated Risk Assessment Update - Consultant Wardell reported the Integrated Risk
Assessment process is a systematic approach for identifying and addressing risk and is applicable
to outage and non outage work at the station. The assessment is performed either through
analysis or through the use of probabilistic risk assessment tools or pre-job briefings. Mr.
Wardell described it as a good program which keeps the risk of various activities and evolutions
low and under control.

> Operations Department Update - Mr. Wardell reported the Operations Department, as he
reported earlier, is in Yellow status which means its performance is not meeting expectations due
to status control or component mispositioning events. A presentation will be made later during
this public meeting by the Operations Director. Mr. Wardell reported an action plan to
return Operations to Green status has been implemented and he stated this plan appears
promising and the DCISC should continue to monitor this issue.

> Observe Licensed Operator Training - Mr. Wardell reported the WebEx presentation did

not allow the FFT to view the video of the training which was for periodic training of licensed
operators and concerned the natural circulation of the Reactor Coolant System (RCS) when the

B.9-26



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

RCS pumps were not in operation which he described as an important function whereby water is
circulated to remove heat from the reactor core and transfer it to the steam generators. Mr.
Wardell reported during normal shutdown, and some off-normal conditions, the RCS pumps are
either shut off or they trip off but water flow is still required for cooling. He reported the
geometry of the RCS at various elevations is very conducive to natural circulation and the
purpose of the training was to re familiarize operators with the phenomena and to ensure they
understood the conditions and procedures necessary for achieving natural circulation. Mr.
Wardell stated the FFT found the instructor to be well prepared with active participation from the
operators but the inability to view the video hampered the FFT’s review.

> DCPP Coronavirus Update - Consultant Wardell reported the DCISC representatives
received an update on the coronavirus precautions taken by DCPP and found them to be
appropriate with no adverse effect on nuclear safety.

Dr. Lam reported that Drs. Garrick and Wakefield will be making a presentation on the
Spent Fuel Risk Study and Dr. Budnitz will also be providing his personal evaluation of that
study later in this public meeting.

Following Mr. Wardell’s report Ms. Linda Seeley was recognized. Ms. Seeley
commented on the color rankings for the various DCPP organizations in the QPAR and inquired
whether there was a concern on the part of the DCISC with the White and Yellow conditions
identified. She also inquired as to the other issues identified in the NIEP evaluation. Mr.
Wardell replied the deficiencies identified in the NIEP evaluation all pertained to qualifications
in the welding program which addressed administrative or technical issues with the qualifications
of the welders and although the issue was significant there were no issues concerning any welds
as a result of the NIEP’s findings. Drs. Lam and Budnitz remarked the consequences of these
issues were not major but Ms. Seeley’s concern was well placed and the DCISC’s concern is
based upon the elimination of the issue so it does not become an on-going concern. Mr. Wardell
reported the QPAR is an intense and intrusive look into issues and the quality function of
DCPP’s organizations and is intended to provide a tough, comprehensive review. He
commented White is acceptable in the short-term but not for the long-term and an action plan is
put in place to achieve Green status. A Yellow rating for Operations indicates unacceptable
performance and more stringent actions are required and more follow-up is called for and
the Fact Finding Report makes this recommendation to the Committee to follow this issue
at every succeeding fact-fining visit until a resolution is achieved and the matter is on the
agenda for this and future public meetings.

Upon a motion made by Dr. Budnitz, seconded by Dr. Peterson, the April 15-16, 2020

Fact Finding Report was accepted by the DCISC and its transmittal to PG&E was authorized.
The report will become a part of the Committee’s 30th Annual Report.

B.9-27



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

XIV  ADJOURN AFTERNOON MEETING

The Chair observed the evening meeting of the Committee would be convened at 5:30
P.M. and he adjourned the afternoon meeting of the Committee at 3:30 P.M.

XV RECONVENE FOR EVENING MEETING

Dr. Lam reconvened the evening meeting of the DCISC at 5:30 P.M.
XVl  COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

There were no comments by Members at this time.
XVII PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS

There were no comments by members of the public at this time.
XVIII INFORMATION ITEMS BEFORE THE COMMITTEE (Cont’d.)

Dr Lam asked Mr. Baldwin to introduce the next presentation. Mr. Baldwin stated the
next presentation would be made by Dr. B. John Garrick, an experienced and distinguished
member of the risk assessment community and a recognized authority on the application of risk
science to complex systems both natural and man-made. Dr. Garrick is the founder of the B.
John Garrick Institute for Risk Sciences at the University of California Los Angeles and he was a
founder of P.G. Incorporated. Dr. Garrick served under administrations of Presidents Bush and
Obama as an advisor on nuclear waste issues and has served as Chairman of the NRC’s Advisory
Committee on Nuclear Waste. Mr. Baldwin stated Dr. Donald J. Wakefield is also present and
would address the Committee. Dr. Wakefield has more than 40 years’ experience in all areas of
nuclear risk analysis and he served for twelve years as the Chairman of the Low Power and
Shutdown Risk Probabilistic Risk Assessment Risk Writing Group.

B. Informational Presentations Requested by the Committee of The B. John Garrick Institute
for Risk Sciences - UCLA Engineering, and of PG&E.

Spent Fuel Risk Study: Presentation on the Background and Results of the Study by the B. John
Garrick Institute: Presentation by DCISC Member Dr. Robert J. Budnitz on Dr. Budnitz’
Evaluation of the Spent Fuel Risk Study, and a Presentation by PG&E on Future-oriented
Perspectives of the Risk Study and Results, and Comments on Plans for Procurement of New
Spent Fuel Dry Storage Canisters.

B.9-28



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Dr. Garrick provided an overview of the presentation and stated the primary goal of the
Spent Fuel Risk Study (Study) was to compare the risks, that is, the probabilities and
consequences of four different spent nuclear fuel (SNF) off-load scenarios from the plant’s spent
fuel pools (SFPs) to the Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI). The Study was
also undertaken to gain insight into the overall risk to the off-site public. Assessing the spacing-
timed dynamics of different handling operations, different source terms, different locations, and
types of equipment also represented a major challenge in meeting the rigorous requirements
normally associated with a probabilistic risk assessment (PRA). Dr. Garrick stated the focus was
on severe events, that is, events that might result in off-site consequences including beyond
design basis events and the effort was assisted by using surrogates for consequences, thereby
reducing the scope to activity that bounds the risk of the total off-load scenario and avoiding
duplicating analyses that have already been performed by the NRC and the Electric Power
Research Institute (EPRI). Dr. Garrick stated cesium was used as the consequence surrogate in
the Study and as the process steps for all off-load scenarios were the same they were only
analyzed once and it was concluded that spent fuel handling activities were bounded by the off-
load scenario risks. All initiating events were evaluated and all but two were screened out, both
by the frequency and the consequence of the events. The two initiating events analyzed in the
Study were a dropped cask in the spent fuel pool and a very severe, beyond design basis,
earthquake.

Dr. Garrick reported the Study concluded the risks of serious off-site consequences from
a severe accident in any of the four off-load scenarios are very low when compared to the NRC’s
Quantitative Health Objective (QHO). He stated there are differences in risk among the four
scenarios but the differences are not great considering the uncertainties involved. He further
commented there is considerable evidence that the issue of the number of equivalent cores in the
spent fuel pools that may be involved in an extremely severe accident is in fact much less in the
cooled capacity. Dr. Garrick then asked Dr. Wakefield to continue with the presentation.

Dr. Wakefield reported the complete Study is approximately 160 pages and would be
summarized here, including the project task, its scope, some highlights of the approach and some
insights from the analyses.

Dr. Wakefield reported the project task was broken into three parts: (1) development of a
PRA methodology for nuclear power plant on-site spent fuel handling and storage activities for
four fuel off-load scenarios; (2) demonstration of the PRA methodology by assessing the risks to
public health while comparing the results to the NRC’s safety goals and QHO, two public health
risk measures were compared one being the probability per year of prompt fatalities and the
second being the probability per year of latent cancer fatalities; and (3) comparing the risks of
four proposed off-load scenarios using a surrogate risk metric which Dr. Wakefield stated

B.9-29



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

comprised the major part of the project’s analysis efforts. He reported the Study does not
address the risk of transporting the fuel assemblies off the site or the cost of implementing any of
the four proposed oft-load scenarios nor did the study assess off-site land contamination except
as it impacted the two public health risk measures.

Dr. Wakefield displayed a photograph of DCPP and pointed out the location of the SFPs,
the on-site fuel handling facilities and the ISFSI and he described process of how SNF is moved
from wet storage in the two SFPs to the [SFSI.

Dr. Wakefield then described the four offload scenarios as follows:

> Transfer all SNF after reactor shutdown and complete in seven years with the SFPs
emptied in August 2032. Transfer to dry storage completed sequentially with one or several
campaigns. Delaying the time before the start of the final campaign reduces occupational
exposures (identified as Scenario 1).

> Transfer some SNF before and remainder after reactor shutdown and complete seven
years after reactor shutdown with the SFPs emptied in August 2032. This scenario allows for
reduced fuel assembly inventory prior to permanent reactor shutdown while retaining enough
cold spent fuel assemblies (SFAs) to complete the final campaign as quickly as possible
(identified as Scenario 2).

> Transfer some SNF before and remainder after reactor shutdown and complete five years
after reactor shutdown. The SFPs would be emptied in August 2030. This scenario allows for
reduced fuel assembly inventory prior to reactor shutdown. This scenario results in the earliest
date to fully empty the SFPs while retaining enough cold SFAs to facilitate transfer campaign for
last fuel cycle (identified as Scenario 3).

> Transfer some SNF before and remainder after reactor shutdown at the earliest times
considering multipurpose cannister (MPC) heat generation limits and Unit 1 outages. The SFPs
are emptied in January 2034. This scenario delays the time to empty due to heat load
management strategy and provides the largest reduction in SFP inventory prior to permanent
reactor shutdown. (identified as Scenario 4).

Dr. Wakefield displayed and described a graph plotting the time-dependent number of
fuel assemblies in the Unit 2 SFP for the calendar years for the four offload scenarios described
above.

Dr. Wakefield stated the goal of quantification of the comparative risks to public health
of four off-load scenarios for transferring the SNF from the SFPs to the DCPP ISFSI for dry
storage and reported a risk framework provides the structure to answer three questions: (1) what
can go wrong (accident sequences); (2) how likely is it (probability of frequency); and (3) what
are the consequences (accident sequence end states). He stated answers are obtained to these

B.9-30



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

questions through the process of developing a list of accident sequences, evaluating their
frequencies of occurrence while accounting for the uncertainties involved, and assigning
consequences to each accident sequence. To compare the off-load scenarios use was made of an
intermediate metric consisting of the frequency of fuel damage at each location. Dr. Wakefield
stated this metric was used to screen out risk insignificant accident sequences. Some accident
sequences were only considered qualitatively during this screening process including fuel
handling activities and time spent in dry storage in the ISFSI, as the initial assessment was that
these sequences present relatively low risk significance. This left the risk from storage of SNF in
the SFP as dominating the public health risk.

To compare oft-load scenarios a specialized risk metric was defined to compare the
probability of an SFP severe accident weighted by the amount of cesium that may be released
due to fuel overheating and summed over all times that SNF is in the SFP. Dr. Wakefield
remarked the effect of time-weighting of a cesium release can be thought of as an assessment of
the average consequence. This metric accounts for the consequences based on the time-
dependent amount of fuel in the SFP.

Dr. Wakefield described additional aspects of the Study’s approach as including
extensive reliance on typical pressurized water reactor (PWR) studies of spent fuel risks,
especially those prepared by NRC and EPRI, and the use of DCPP specific procedures, designs,
and safety analyses information where applicable. Other key insights came from the studies of
the risks from reactor operation at DCPP especially those focused on the seismic hazard.

Dr. Wakefield then described some areas of emphasis of the study’s approach:

> Accountability of time-dependent SNF amounts stored and the effects on amount of
radionuclides released in a severe accident.

> Screening of low-risk accidents, and quantifying the risk significant sequences associated
with the SFPs.

> Comparison of severe accident risks with NRC’s QHO.

> Assessment of comparative risks between off-load scenarios while neglecting risks which

are the same in each offload scenario.

> Consideration of beyond design basis events, especially seismic events, that may lead to
large offsite releases capable of impacting public health. Actual public health dose
calculations were not computed; the amount of cesium released is used as a surrogate for
the consequences.

B.9-31



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Dr. Wakefield reported the uncovering of water over the SNF stored in a SFP can result
in the fuel overheating and the release of its radioactive fission products. Two general categories
of fuel uncovery are: (1) accidents resulting in a loss of active spent fuel pool cooling, or (2) a
loss of coolant. The former would also include a loss of coolant due to boiling. It was necessary
to hypothesize threats beyond those considered in the design basis for licensing the SFPs for
there to be noticeable differences in risks between the different off-load scenarios.

Dr. Wakefield stated public health risk acceptance was based upon the NRC’s nuclear
safety goals” QHO. The DCPP SNF intermediate risk results are consistent with NRC’s SNF risk
studies. A beyond design basis seismic event for DCPP having the potential to uncover fuel in
the SFPs and enable a large cesium release was assessed to have a recurrence interval of about
once every 57,000 years. The public health risks each year of DCPP SFP operation were found
to be well below the NRC safety goal’s QHO.

Dr. Wakefield described the third part of the project’s task as comparing the risk between
the four off-load scenarios using the specialized risk metric. The rankings from lowest to highest
risk were:

Scenario 4 - pre-Shutdown Earliest Offload (.036).
Scenario 3 -pre-Shutdown 5-Year Offload (.056).

Scenario 2 - pre-Shutdown 7-Year Offload (.065).
Scenario 1 -post Shutdown 7-Year Offload (.067).

Dr. Garrick sated it was important to understand the reasons the Study included beyond
design basis events was not only to keep focused on events which might result in consequences
off the plant site but also because in the design basis domain the differences would not be well
manifested.

In response to Dr. Peterson’s question as to how important were the differences relative
to more frequent events that are within the design basis, Dr. Garrick replied the Study was
intended to provide insight into off-site health effects and although there are many events that
could occur within the design basis that have some sort of consequence, those consequences may
be only a schedule delay or damage to equipment, etc., with no threat to off-site health. Dr.
Wakefield observed that although beyond design basis events were a focus of the Study the
Study also reviewed less than design basis seismic risk including 16 different seismic
acceleration intervals less than the design basis as well as some that were above the design basis.

Dr. Wakefield commented that ranking the off-load scenarios according to risk while
providing a range of possibilities of different assumptions is only one input in a decision making
process that will be used to determine how DCPP will proceed in the next several years relative
to SNF due to other considerations such as plant operational needs which will evolve over that
time period.

B.9-32



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Dr. Wakefield stated the study concluded that the public health risk of each of the off-
load scenarios is small and well within the QHO of the NRC’s safety goals. There is limited
variation in the risk metrics comparing the four off-load scenarios with the lowest off-load
scenario risk being 46% lower than the highest. The earliest offload scenario (Scenario 4)
provides the largest reduction in risk but it is not substantially lower than the others. The risk
contribution from dry storage (which contains many more fuel assemblies than the SFPs) is a
small fraction of that from the SFP in terms of frequency of events that could lead to fuel
damage, though risks at both locations are small. Seismic capacity of the SEPs is robust, even
for large seismic events.

In response to Dr. Lam’s inquiry Dr. Garrick confirmed the study’s conclusion that dry
storage for SNF is safer than wet storage as it is decay dependent and dry storage assumes the
cask cooling is adequate and dry storage does not require the active cooling absolutely required
to prevent SFP overheating and therefore the greater risk is associated with the SFPs and this is
consistent with the NRC’s conclusion.

In response to Dr. Peterson’s inquiry, which Dr. Peterson stated he understood was a
classic questions within the PRA context as to how one characterizes or compares risks that are
characterized as important in the beyond design basis situation where all the number are small
and there are other risks such as the economics of decommissioning as well as the economic
eftects of the current pandemic, Dr. Garrick replied context is important and in his view that
relative to the risks identified in the Study while they would not be within the 100 top risks the
State of California faces there is some uncertainty associated with what could happen with
respect to the threshold at which auto-ignition could take place although the boundaries of the
ranges above and below its occurrence are known. Dr. Garrick reported the focus of the Study
was to explicitly focus on information that will enhance PG&E’s decision making process with
respect to the off-loading strategy that best serves the issue of public safety.

Dr. Peterson observed the risks associated with SNF in the SFPs changes after
approximately six to eighteen months as the heat generation from the off-loaded fuel drops
sufficiently such that it cannot credibly reach temperatures that would cause oxidation of the
fuel’s zirconium cladding and accordingly the risks associated with loss of coolant in the SFPs
are changed. Dr. Peterson stated he was not entirely sure there is a substantive difference in the
risk associated with SFP off-loading because the closure dates for both DCPP units are fixed and
the time needed for cooling the off-loaded fuel such that it cannot overheat is the same regardless
of the scenario in terms of the cadence of off-loading the fuel. Drs. Garrick and Wakefield stated
they considered the issue raised by Dr. Peterson as a function of time after the most recent off-
load and of the time between refueling intervals as a function of the fuel removal process as well
as well as of ongoing heat decay. Dr. Peterson commented and Dr. Wakefield agreed that in
quantitative terms the heat generation of freshly off-loaded fuel exceeds all of the heat generated
from all of the other SFAs in the SFPs but the heat load drops off rapidly over six to twelve
months such that the necessity of having water in the SFP essentially disappears from the

B.9-33



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

perspective of being able to reach temperatures that could cause oxidation of zirconium. Dr.
Wakefield commented most of the immediately off-loaded fuel from a refueling outage is
returned to the reactor while approximately 80 assemblies remain in the SFP and he reviewed
how heat generation differs between the four offload scenarios. Dr. Peterson observed that the
issues is not the total heat generation but the heat generation of the freshly off-loaded SFAs, as
those are the only assemblies with the potential for reaching temperatures where oxidation might
occur and the important metric therefore would be the rate of heat load drop off for freshly off-
loaded fuel which is not dependent on any of the four scenarios described in the study.

Dr. Peterson stated he was not convinced there is any difference in terms of risk
associated with any of the four scenarios as in all four cases the freshly off-loaded fuel behaves
exactly the same in terms of the rate at which it cools. Dr. Wakefield stated he largely concurred
with Dr. Peterson’s statement but he observed the issue is a very complex two-part function with
one part being the concern of reaching an air ignition temperature and starting an exothermic
reaction which adds greatly to the heat generation and the second being the fuel itself for
different power levels may still overheat and this is dependent on how much total heat removal
from the SFP is available and during a station blackout event as after a seismic event the plant
might not have the capability for forced removal of heat through the ventilation system. Dr.
Wakefield stated there is an issue as to how much heat removal one can achieve as a function of
the temperature of the fuel which is itself depends upon time and the individual assembly power
levels and a table of assumptions after shutdown is included in the Study which uses data on
heat-up analysis done for the first 100 days or less of an outage and this was used to assess two
categories of severe accidents, the first being simple boil-off of the SFP water inventory with no
leaks from the SFP and the second being for the case where a SFP leak occurs and causes a
relatively rapid loss of inventory.

Dr. Peterson stated there is a threshold where the air can effectively cool the assembly
such that it will not reach a temperature where zirconium will start to exothermically oxidize and
provide additional heat but it is a very complex problem to understand where that happens and
this is a key uncertainty as to when an accident may become more severe. Dr. Peterson stated
the issues are complex but he agreed with the Study’s general approach and the conclusions
reached. Dr. Wakefield observed Figure 811 of the Study shows how the risk metric varies with
changes in the models for when the fuel is assumed to overheat which he stated is largely
assessed by how many of the previous reactor off-loads are involved in overheating and
sensitivity studies were undertaken assuming all the fuel overheats, and also for overheating of
only the fuel from the most recent offload at certain times after its initial entry to the SFP, and
the four different off-load risk metrics are a function of those assumptions. Dr. Peterson
described this as a sound approach which would provide on a good understanding of the most
likely consequences. Dr. Wakefield observed that while the rank order of the metrics for the off-
load scenarios are the same, the degree of difference definitely changes depending on the
assumption he described. Dr. Peterson commented the Study having looked comprehensively
and deeply across all the different physical phenomena, characterizing them, and performing

B.9-34



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

sensitivity studies gives him confidence. Dr. Garrick remarked he and Dr. Wakefield spent an
enormous amount of time trying to represent the dynamics of the whole problem including
assessing the air cooling capability under a 3.G spectral acceleration earthquake with respect to
the damage which would be expected to the Fuel Handling and Auxiliary Buildings which would
impact their ability to provide passive air flow and accordingly the air cooling.

Dr. Wakefield stated accident sequences initiated by seismic events much larger than the
design basis represent 95% of the SFP risk. Dr. Garrick stated this is very different from core
damage frequency as here seismic is the primary contributor. Dr. Wakefield called Dr.
Peterson’s attention to the Study’s conclusion that it is unlikely that more than two reactor core
equivalents of fuel assemblies (i.e., ~400 fuel assemblies) would overheat following fuel
uncovery for any of the four offload scenarios. Dr. Peterson commented this conclusion makes
sense as it points to the importance of the factor of how long has it been since the fuel was
offloaded and the small differences between the risk in the four scenarios and he commented it
may be better to base decisions concerning which of the four scenarios should be implemented
upon other considerations such as the cost or the logistics involved for completing
decommissioning.

Dr. Lam stated his impression was the same as Dr. Peterson’s, that is, there is really no
single scenario that comes out to be the one of choice and other parameters will come into
PG&E’s consideration of choosing a scenario for DCPP. Dr. Wakefield agreed and stated that
licensing issues will also play a role in deciding what off-load scenario to use as it will be
necessary to maintain a certain configuration of SNF in the SFP, as well as to understand the
kind of MPC that will be used. He reported Scenarios 1-3 were postulated on the use of a MPC
with 32 assemblies while Scenario 4 was determined for a MPC with 37 assemblies which
reduce the number of trips needed by a factor of ten and provides different limits on the heat
generation allowed for each MPC. He remarked PG&E has stated the use of a 32 ora 37
capacity assembly MPC would be independent of the chosen oft-load scenario.

Dr. Wakefield described takeaways from the study and some of the study’s primary
uncertainties as including human performance, the extent of cesium release given fuel uncovery,
and the seismic capacities of the SFPs and the Fuel Handling and Auxiliary Buildings which
enclose the SFPs and the degree to which those structures might fail. Dr. Garrick remarked the
issue of decay time between cesium 134 versus cesium 137 becomes critically important when
cesium is used as a surrogate and Dr. Wakefield commented on the activity when the fuel first
comes out of the reactor as compared to five years later when the decay of cesium in each fuel
assembly has reduced the activity so even if the same amount of fuel assemblies were to overheat
the amount of cesium activity released would be lower.

Dr. Peterson commented that the uncertainty over human performance is an important
issue and after the accident at the Fukushima Dai-Ichi Nuclear Power Plant in Japan, the nuclear
industry adopted the FLEX Program which involves providing training, equipment and
resources, as well as the responsibility and authority, to plant staff so that staff will have the

B.9-35



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

capability to diagnose and respond effectively to beyond design basis conditions. He remarked
the principles embodied in the FLEX Program are important aspects in reducing the risks in
response to disasters of all types and have wider validity in areas outside nuclear such as the
current coronavirus pandemic. He inquired as to how best to understand and integrate human
behavior into a risk assessment so as to be able to best provision necessary resources and he
described this as one of the single most important variables that today we have the capability to
effect such as is being done through the FLEX Program.

XIX INFORMATIONAL PRESENTATION BY A COMMITTEE MEMBER AND
DISCUSSION BY MEMBERS AND TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS

The Chair asked Dr. Budnitz to make the next presentation.

Presentation by DCISC Member Dr. Robert J. Budnitz
on Dr. Budnitz’ Evaluation of the Spent Fuel Risk Study.

Dr. Budnitz reported he performed a detailed evaluation of the Spent Fuel Risk Study
(Study) and would in this presentation provide his first overview. He commented the Study was
first-rate in every way given that time limitations that were imposed by external conditions and
Dr. Budnitz extended his congratulations to Drs. Garrick and Wakefield on the thoroughness of
the Study which Dr. Budnitz remarked should be taken seriously as an important contribution to
the overall decision concerning spent fuel off-load.

Dr. Budnitz commented he learned much about understanding risk and the crucial import
of understanding the uncertainties from Drs. Norm Rasmussen and Saul Levine and also from
Drs. Garrick and Stan Kaplan. He confirmed the crucial questions were as presented by Dr.
Wakefield, that is, what can go wrong, what is the likelihood of occurrence, and what are the
consequences. Dr. Budnitz stated his view that it is crucial to understanding risk to understand all
of the important accident sequences that lead to the undesired endpoint and there have been
numerous past studies concerning accidents involving spent nuclear fuel (SNF). Once identified,
certain sequences can be screened out based on importance due to their a very low frequency or
consequence, or perhaps the sequence is dominated by another almost identical sequence in
which case the lesser can be screened out. Dr. Budnitz stated screening in and screening out is a
crucial step to complete before getting to an analysis of each remaining sequence. He
commented this analysis is not just of the physical phenomena but also of the sequence of events
and it requires quantification of the frequency with which each sequence occurs as well as the
frequency of the initiating event that commences the sequence and finally of the frequency of the
occurrence of the undesired endpoint. For the Study of SNF risks the consequence of interest for
the bulk of the analysis involved the uncovery of the fuel in the SFP and mechanical damage to
the fuel in the dry cask area as to how cooling could be lost and the endpoint was a radiological
release. The endpoint consequences are further weighted by the differences in a radiological

B.9-36



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

release.

Dr. Budnitz commented it is identifying, understanding, and weighing the uncertainties
that populate these analyses which determines how much confidence one can have in them so as
to use the results as the basis on which to make a decision.

Dr. Budnitz reported he spent a great deal of time in his evaluation reviewing the
identification of all the sequences identified in the Study and in this effort he had the benefit of
other studies performed by the NRC and the industry. He stated he concurred with each
sequence that was screened out and he concluded there was nothing screened out of the Study
that should have been retained. For the phenomena and actions for each sequence of events
analyzed in the Study Dr. Budnitz reviewed each in detail and, based on his extensive
professional experience, he reported their identification and quantification in the Study was
thorough. Dr. Budnitz stated the conclusion in the Study that to take credit for air cooling of the
fuel would take much more work than the technical basis and resources available to Drs. Garrick
and Wakefield, and would likely require an entirely separate study, was sound and therefore the
Study does not take as much credit for air cooling as it might have had a separate study been
done. This means that some of the radiological phenomena are more pessimistic that they might
have otherwise been but Dr. Budnitz reported the difference is not important to the rankings of
the four scenarios identified in the Study but would have made a difference in the numerical
values of the analysis.

Dr. Budnitz reported he reviewed the approach and methodology in the Study, the use of
some approximations and estimates, the expression and implications of the uncertainties and
concluded these were all handled admirably.

Dr. Budnitz reported the Study’s conclusions concerning the SFP that earthquakes
dominate the risk, with the frequency of other scenarios not involving earthquakes being very
low, makes perfect sense. He reported the seismic hazard at DCPP, although better understood
than at most sites, has a lot of uncertainty due to the lack of large earthquakes to produce better
data for large seismic events. Dr. Budnitz stated that to reduce this uncertainty and better
understand the numerical value of the sequences one would have to have a civil
engineering/structural engineering analysis of earthquake damage to the SFPs and the resulting
possibility of leaks from the SFPs. He reported the Study relied on an approximation and he
remarked that with more resources or an engineering study the Study could have been refined.
Dr. Budnitz referred to the assumption in the Study that for identical components located in
proximity to each other that an earthquake would damage both and he characterized that as, in
his opinion, a pessimistic assumption as there are more refined methods to analyze the
correlations used. Dr. Budnitz commented that above a certain earthquake level there is the
probability that human error will increase substantially and above the level of 3.5G or 5 herz
spectral the Study takes no credit at all for operator actions and Dr. Budnitz commented this was

B.9-37



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

another pessimistic assumption as there may be several hours for operators to take certain actions
to mitigate the effect of the earthquake. He stated the analysis of air cooling in a loss of SFP
water inventory situation is dependent upon the heat load and thermal properties of the fuel and
this represents a very complicated problem. Dr. Budnitz stated that in its entirety the Study and
its results, including the understanding of uncertainties made good sense and provides a sound
basis for decision-making.

With reference to the transport of SNF Dr. Budnitz observed this involves many activities
and mechanical and various operations but the undesired endpoint is mechanical damage to the
fuel. He reported the Study concludes all of the scenarios that matter have such low frequencies
that they do not affect the risk very much and Dr. Budnitz stated he agreed with that conclusion.
As for the ISFSI and the dry storage SNF casks the cooling is entirely passive and again
earthquakes are of concern in that a cask could be tipped over or a landslide could cover a cask
such that air-cooling is impeded. Dr. Budnitz reported the analysis here is also difficult but he
stated he was satisfied with the Study’s conclusions that the risk to the dry cask facilities was
only a small fraction of the risk to the SFP and the risk of a radiological release from the dry cask
is very low as compared to the risk from a large earthquake. Dr. Budnitz commented that in his
professional opinion the analysis was robust even though uncertainties remain.

Dr. Budnitz stated his belief that the Study identified all of the accident sequences of
concern, screened out many of them appropriately, and adequately quantified the frequencies and
applied a sensible hierarchy to the risks for the SFP, in the transportation of the SNF, and at the
ISFSI. He stated the consequences identified in the Study if something other cesium 134/137 as
a surrogate was used would probably produce some differences but the differences would not be
important in structuring the four scenarios.

Dr. Budnitz identified internal fires and flooding causing loss of equipment as important
contributors to core damage frequency and these were admittedly ignored in the Study. Dr.
Budnitz stated that upon reflection he believes this does not make much differences as the
likelihood is small of having a fire or flood cause an equipment failure as compared to a large
seismic event due to the time which would be available, absent a concurrent seismic event, to
address internal fire or flooding and the probability of a successful recovery is very high.

Dr. Budnitz concluded his presentation by observing that in his judgment one of the four
scenarios is safer than the others but for all of them the risk is really low compared to other risks
that matter such that making a decision between the four scenarios shouldn’t be driven by the
fact that one is lower as there are other factors to consider. Dr. Peterson observed it is interesting
that a dominant risk involves uncertainty about the level of structural damage from seismic
events and uncertainty regarding human performance because there is a set of simple things
people at DCPP can do to mitigate the risk and increase the time for operators to respond to an
event including the emphasis brought by the DCISC on workplace seismic safety for personnel,

B.9-38



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

as protecting personnel should have the same level of importance as protecting structures and
equipment. Dr. Budnitz agreed and further observed that an earthquake in excess of 3.5 G for
which no credit was taken in the Study for human performance has never occurred in recorded
history.

Dr. Lam requested Mr. Baldwin to introduce the next speaker. Mr. Baldwin introduced
Mr. Philippe Soenen, Manager of Decommissioning Environmental and Licensing at DCPP. Mr.
Baldwin reported Mr. Soenen has employed at DCPP for 17 years and he holds a Mechanical
Engineering Degree and has led a number of projects in the Licensing Department as well as for
the DCPP and Humboldt Bay Power Plant spent fuel licenses.

Mr. Soenen reported the Spent Fuel Risk Study (Study) was conducted based on feedback
provided by PG&E’s Diablo Canyon Decommissioning Engagement Panel and input from the
California Energy Commission and two of the four scenarios evaluated in the Study were
proposed by the California Energy Commission which had the opportunity to review the
proposed technical evaluation of the criteria for the new multi-purpose cannisters (MPCs).

Mr. Soenen reported all four scenarios considered have a cooling time that is less than
what is currently allowed. At present, approximately ten years of cooling is required before a
SFA can be loaded into a MPC and removed to the ISFSL

Mr. Soenen reported that at the end of March 2020 a request for proposals was issued to
interested vendors to provide a design and licensable system with the lowest spent fuel inventory
scenarios which would allow commencement of implementation prior to shutdown of Unit 1.
Consistent with the proposed Settlement Agreement in the 2018 Nuclear Decommissioning Cost
Triennial Proceeding (NDCTP) the request is for a design that would allow a period not to
exceed four years of cooling time for each unit after shutdown, that is, by November 2028 and
August of 2029 respectively. Responses are expected to be received from vendors this month
and will be reviewed. Mr. Soenen stated the criteria are split into commercial and technical
sections and the California Energy Commission will have an opportunity to review the technical
section of the proposals. He reported the financial health of the vendors, as part of receiving
assurance that the selected vendor will be available to support the new design in the future, as
well as NRC licensing criteria and time frame will all be part of the commercial section of the
proposals. The technical section will include evaluation of the shielding capacities of the systems
proposed as well as their heat load capabilities.

Mr. Soenen reported DCPP is responding at the present time to questions from the
vendors and management input should be received in October 2020 and negotiations with the
finalists will then commence and are expected to take approximately one year. Mr. Soenen
stated PG&E is now expecting to be in a position to issue a contract sometime in the first quarter
of 2022 and the whole process will inform the 2021 NDCTP which is due for filing at the end of

B.9-39



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

2021. He reported two years following the contract signing is expected to be required for
designing, licensing and permitting the new casks and then off-loading the fuel is expected to be
implemented just before or around the time of permanent shutdown. In response to Dr. Budnitz
query Mr. Soenen stated the request for a four-year time frame with respect to thermal capacity
of the MPCs is unique to DCPP as is the design which must have special seismic capacities and
there is no “off the shelf” product available at this time.

Following Mr. Soenen’s presentation Mr. John Geesman representing the Alliance for
Nuclear Responsibility was recognized to address remarks to the Committee. Mr. Geesman
stated he found much good material in the Spent Fuel Risk Study and the Alliance for Nuclear
Responsibility is a party to the Settlement Agreement in the 2018 NDCTP. He remarked the
Alliance litigates issues at the state agency level but does not litigate at the federal level and has
not litigated the issue of whether wet storage is safe enough, instead the Alliance takes the
position that dry storage represents a qualitative improvement in risk. Mr. Geesman stated that
Dr. Peterson has expressed the opinion that federal taxpayers will pay for all dry storage due to a
breach of contract committed by the Department of Energy in 1998 and the federal judgment
fund which pays those costs is not a part of the federal budget, so effectively the cost to do so
does not count against the federal deficit. Mr. Geesman stated in his view the choice PG&E and
California state agencies are confronted with is a relatively low cost decision, choosing amongst
four very capably outlined options with the risk spread between the four scenarios in the study
being 41% of a small number. But Mr. Geesman observed the public would expect a response
based on the least risk and the most cost effective approach to resolving this problem. He agreed
with the Committee and with the Study’s conclusion that seismic considerations drive the risk
but he remarked that many persons would find the risk of a terrorist act to have a greater
recurrence factor than 57,000 years and most national policies in the past 20 years have been
based on a significantly enhanced appraisal of that risk and it is virtually an impossible risk to
quantify and is therefore difficult to compare to seismic risk.

Mr. Geesman remarked that in his opinion the Study would have been better had it more
productively engaged with the National Academy of Sciences and the Academy’s engineering
critiques of the NRC assessment issued in 2013 and he observed that if PG&E does anything
other than chose the accelerated transfer to dry cask scenario the criticism of the NRC’s
approach will be a constant issue and will be raised. In response to a query from Dr. Peterson to
clarify the which scenario completes the offload at the earliest time Dr, Wakefield replied that
during his presentation he referred to “earliest offload” as the scenario that moves the most fuel
assemblies out of the SFP before permanent shutdown while in Mr. Soenen’s presentation Mr.
Soenen referred to “earliest offload” as the scenario that completes the offload at the earliest
point in time. Dr. Wakefield commented even though his reference to the earliest offload
scenario maintained fuel in the SFP for an overall longer duration, the Study’s assessment of the
potential for overheating in later years was that the fuel would not overheat as there is
insufficient decay heat in the SFPs and represented the scenario with the fewest numbers of fuel

B.9-40



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

assembilies in the SFP late in the transfer process and also fewer numbers of fuel assemblies in
the SFP prior to permanent shutdown. The scenario with the earliest total of emptying the SFP
had the next lowest risk.

Mr. Geesman stated the NRC’s Quantitative Health Objectives (QHO) assessments are
now somewhat dated after 30 years and have also received considerable criticism both within
and outside the NRC. Mr. Geesman credited the authors of the Study for including the chart
with NUREG 2161 and the scenario by the NRC to soften the out-datedness of the QHO is
important to the state agencies and to PG&E to assess what the consequences of a SFP accident
could be and while no state agency has jurisdiction over radiological safety property damage is a
very serious economic concern that the studies by the NRC in 2013 at least made an attempt to
address.

Dr. Budnitz responded to Mr. Geesman’s remarks and Dr. Budnitz stated he was aware of
the criticism by the National Academy of Sciences of the NRC’s methodology for SFP risk
analysis mentioned by Mr. Geesman but it was Dr. Budnitz’ belief that methodological criticisms
about that analysis have largely been overtaken by events. He further commented that terrorism
considerations are simply outside of the DCISC’s remit except as to the extent a certain terrorism
event could produce a certain result. Dr. Lam commented the NRC now has a position that
terrorism is a matter of national security and attacks on a nuclear facility are not to be considered
outside that context. Mr. Weisman commented the Alliance for Nuclear Responsibility spent
considerable time reviewing the National Academy of Sciences criticism and the NRC responded
to this criticism and in 2016 the National Academy repudiated the NRC response.

Mr. Geesman added to his remarks by observing the recommendation of the California
Energy Commission in 2008 called for utilities to reduce the density in their SFPs and that
somehow this has become interchangeable with the issue and semantics of accelerated transfer of
the fuel. He stated his view that PG&E should choose among the scenarios and select the
scenario that would best restore customer confidence and trust in PG&E’s decision-making.

Ms. Jane Swanson representing the San Luis Obispo Mothers for Peace was recognized.
Ms. Swanson stated that in her opinion the NRC’s public safety standards relative to the
Quantitative Health Objectives (QHO) do not set an absolute standard as the NRC overuses
terms such as “adequate” and “ALARA” (as low as reasonably achievable) in context of safety
which represent compromises that cannot be quantified. Dr. Peterson stated there is a
quantitative basis for both the NRC’s QHO and for ALARA and he explained for the QHO the
risk must be less than one in a thousand of all the other health risks that affect people in the area
of a nuclear power plant and for ALARA one looks at the cost to implement measures to reduce
worker dose or dose in general which is a quantitative measure for risk and then a decision is
made based on the cost which is a common method of managing risk. Dr. Wakefield observed
the QHOs were finalized in 1987 and included two goals, the first being the prompt fatality and

B.9-41



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

the second the cancer fatality. The Study concludes that due to DCPP’s surroundings there
would be no prompt fatalities no matter the size of the cesium release (the same conclusion was
reached for the similar Peach Bottom Atomic Power Station in Pennsylvania) and this leaves the
cancer fatality quantitative to both objectives and the goal is to limit probability to 2 per year
for an individual within ten miles of the plant and the results of the Peach Bottom calculation
provide the conditional probability of latent cancer fatalities given a release of the magnitude
under review in the Study for DCPP of 0.4% of the QHO for the scenario with the greatest risk.
Dr. Waketfield directed Ms. Swanson’s attention to CONSECY-13-0030 for the NRC’s analysis
to SEP risk for different plants which includes a cost-benefit tradeoff versus the expected health
risk to the public and the conclusion for all nuclear power plants in the U.S. was the latent cancer
risk is less than 1% of the objective which was determined from a frequency of fuel uncovery
event of around 37 which is approximately half the frequency found by the Study. He remarked
that ALARA is also mentioned in the CONSECY study.

Dr. Lauren Brown, a Member of the Diablo Canyon Decommissioning Engagement
Panel, was recognized. Dr. Brown stated he found the presentations made to the Committee to
be excellent and they are complimentary to the work of the Decommissioning Engagement
Panel. He inquired of the DCISC Members whether it would be correct to say the DCISC does
not believe there to be a great deal of difference in the risk among the four scenarios identified in
the Study and, if so, is it reasonable for PG&E to base its decision on other factors such as the
cost to the ratepayer in terms of the total cost of decommissioning or perhaps the time needed to
ultimately empty the SFPs. Dr. Budnitz responded and he stated the opinions he expressed
during his presentation were his own and the DCISC has not taken a position as a body on the
matters he discussed.

Dr. Lam stated he was not prepared to enter into a debate as to whether or how to choose
between the four scenarios in the Study and commented it was in his view too early to think
about which scenario to select as there remain significant issues concerning the selection, design,
manufacture, and licensing of new casks and he believes there are significant procedural and
policy barriers in that regard. Dr. Budnitz remarked the Committee’s concern is with safety and
if all the scenarios are safe enough such that other considerations are going to be involved the
Study provides the analysis for such a conclusion that each scenario is safe enough.

Ms. Jill ZamEk was recognized to address remarks to the Committee. Ms. ZamEx
inquired as to how the determination of a large earthquake occurring every 57,000 years was
made and she inquired whether casks which would be capable of achieving an offload of the SFP
in less than ten years exist at the present time. She also inquired concerning the percentage
difference in the risk scenarios which she gave as 46% and how that can be considered to be a
small number. In response to Ms. ZamEKk’s inquiries Dr. Wakefield stated the 57,000-year
interval was determined as a result of the assessment of different seismic acceleration levels,
each of which has a different frequency of occurrence, and given an earthquake in a particular

B.9-42



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

interval of acceleration occurs there a conditional probability of the seismic impact on the
structures and equipment such that the earthquake results in fuel uncovery and that analysis was
done by the Study for each range of the sixteen different earthquakes that were assessed and the
data compiled which yielded a 1.748 probability for which the inverse is 57,000 years. Dr.
Garrick stated the question as to the percentage difference in the risks was a good question and
he explained that when risks are one thousand times below the threshold of acceptance, a change
in the result by a factor of even ten is not particularly relevant and the percentage cited by Ms.
ZamEXx is an artifact of the theory of extremely small numbers. He stated risk numbers are
usually presented within a distribution to indicate the level of confidence and if one plotted a
curve of each of the four scenarios identified in the Study their curves would overlap
considerably and this would demonstrate the differences are not significant. Dr. Budnitz
confirmed information presented by Mr. Soenen that at the present time there are no casks in
existence that are designed or accepted to accommodate the off-loading of the SFPs at DCPP.

Mr. David Weisman of the Alliance for Nuclear Responsibility was recognized and
remarked that in February 2018 vendors were invited to give public presentations and none of
the vendors who presented at that time raised any issues concerning the relatively short time
available to get the new casks licensed. Mr. Weisman stated he would make a video of that
meeting available to the DCISC. Mr. Weisman described the design of the SFPs and inquired
whether the SFPs have a drain in the bottom of the pool, as the top of the assemblies in the pool
are below the surface of the surrounding land and the pipes used to fill or drain the SFPs are
approximately six feet above the tops of the fuel assemblies. He inquired whether there might be
a situation where to enhance air cooling of the assemblies it would be better not to have a partial
amount of water covering the assemblies and if so how might the water be drained from the
SFPs. Dr. Budnitz responded to Mr. Weisman’s question by stating the SFPs do not have drains
and Dr. Wakefield stated there could be a leak high or low in a SFP wall or possibly no leak at
all and only if the water were to leak or boil-out down so as to uncover the bottom of the inlet
plenum to the fuel assemblies would air cooling be sufficient to provide adequate flow down the
colder sections of the fuel assemblies and up through the hottest assemblies and in order for a
cladding fire to occur the same situation would need to occur. If the water were to be half-way
up the assembly there would be no air cooling but there would also not be a reaction of the
cladding but what would occur in that situation is a steam reaction with the cladding. Dr.
Garrick stated Mr. Weisman’s question was a good one in that it addressed conditions under
which good convection cooling might and might not be achieved and there is a situation where
having some water is not good with respect to enhanced air circulation.

Dr. Budnitz expressed the thanks of the Committee to Drs. Garrick and Wakefield for an
excellent presentation and discussion.

XX ADJOURN EVENING MEETING

B.9-43



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

The Chair adjourned the afternoon meeting of the Committee at 8:15 P.M. and advised
those present that the Committee would reconvene at 9:00 A.M. on the following day.

XXI RECONVENE FOR MORNING MEETING

The July 2, 2020, public meeting of the Diablo Canyon Independent Safety Committee
was called to order by its Chair, Dr. Peter Lam, at 9:00 A.M. Dr. Lam welcomed those persons
present in the audience and watching the proceedings on live streaming video. Dr. Lam requested
any of the members of the Committee who wished to make remarks to do so at this time.

XXII COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

Dr. Peterson remarked concerning the presentation on the Spent Fuel Risk Management
Study and he observed the risks associated with the different scenarios described in the Study are
very small and required an analysis of extremely rare or infrequent events and consequently the
overall impact on safety from selecting between the four scenarios is very small and it is quite
reasonable and appropriate for other criteria as to which scenario to select to enter the decision.
Dr. Peterson stated one such criterion might be the amount California ratepayers will pay
for decommissioning DCPP and Dr. Peterson stated the DCISC should speak to the
significance of the differences in safety in context of cost to the ratepayers. Dr. Budnitz
remarked the Committée might start by trying te come to a consensus about the relative
risk of the activities described in the Study compared to the risk when the plant is
operating and generating electricity and he observed this is clearly within the DCISC’s
expertise and its remit from the CPUC. The Members agreed that, with the delegation to
the Consultants to develop and agenda, a discussion during the next public meeting of this
topic would be appropriate and the discussion could lead to a conclusion or a
recommendation by the Committee as to the approaches that might be used to manage the
off-loading SNF from the SFPs.

Consultant McWhorter observed the Diablo Canyon Decommissioning Engagement
Panel is scheduled to hold a remote meeting on the topic of spent fuel on September 9, 2020,
which is the first day of a scheduled DCISC fact-finding to be conducted remotely by Dr.
Budnitz and Mr. Wardell and the DCISC representatives may want to plan to listen to Panel’s
meeting and to note the input received by the Panel from members of the public. Mr. Wardell
commented the Committee may want to inquire of PG&E as to the plans for the Study and
perhaps the Committee should wait and review PG&E’s decision and any action to be taken. Dr.
Budnitz remarked the Committee as a whole has yet to take a formal position on the risks
identified in the Study.

XXIII PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATION

B.9-44



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

The Chair reviewed the invitation to address the Committee on matters not on the agenda
for this public meeting and invited any comments from members of the public who wished to
address the Committee to do so now.

Mr. David Weisman, a representative of the Alliance for Nuclear Responsibility, was
recognized. Mr. Weisman directed the attention of the Committee to the PowerPoint
presentation made by DCPP’s Mr. Tom Jones at last meeting of the Diablo Canyon
Decommissioning Engagement Panel during which Mr. Jones provided information on the time
lines with evaluation of vendor proposals expected to be completed by September 2020, to be
followed by requests for bids and he observed that the DCISC having access to the information
developed in those contexts would greatly help to inform the Committee’s discussion in October
2020. Mr. Weisman confirmed Dr. Peterson’s observation that there is a nexus between safety
and financial considerations and while he acknowledged Dr. Budnitz’ observation that some of
the funds for decommissioning will come from federal taxpayers, he stated his belief that some
funds will also come from California’s ratepayers. Dr. Peterson directed that a fact-finding be
held to review the information cited by Mr. Weisman with, if necessary, appropriate
protection for proprietary information so that the information would be available at the
October 2020 DCISC public meeting. Dr. Lam remarked the process of manufacturing and
licensing a cask for use is not as expeditious as has been forecast and includes numerous
technical and policy barriers and he stated he has serious concerns about what he described as an
optimistic schedule and believes the Committee has time to make its assessment. Mr. Wardell
observed and Dr. Lam agreed the risk Study and the decision on spent fuel storage casks are not
necessarily directly related and the Study involves the timing of when the fuel is removed from
the SFPs and removal of the fuel could be accomplished with the same type of casks which have
been used by DCPP in the past without making a decision on the use of a new cask. Dr. Budnitz
remarked if the plant were to start a new spent fuel loading campaign during continuing
operations the DCISC needs to be concerned with any interface, positive, negative or neutral
with safety. Dr. Lam observed the reality is that at the present time DCPP has no inventory of
casks available with which to conduct a loading campaign.

Mr. Weisman commented that since 2008 the idea was to lower the density of the spent
fuel in the SFPs and he observed the ability to continue to conduct spent fuel loading campaigns
was unilaterally aborted by PG&E without consultant with the California Energy Commission.
He remarked it was the Alliance for Nuclear Responsibility having filed an Order to Show Cause
against PG&E’s attorneys for why they had abrogated the agreement with and responsibility to
the California Energy Commission which provided the impetus for the Spent Fuel Risk Study
discussed at this public meeting and not as Mr. Soenen had claimed the input from the Diablo
Canyon Decommissioning Engagement Panel. Mr. Weisman remarked the Alliance for Nuclear
Responsibility would again address these issues in the 2021 Nuclear Decommissioning Cost
Triennial Proceeding.

B.9-45



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

XXIV INFORMATION ITEMS BEFORE THE COMMITTEE (Cont’d.)

Mr. Rathie reported that the next informational presentation was a change in the order of
the agenda and the item on the agenda for a presentation on the Unit 2 forced outage has been
deferred due to recent information on that event received from DCPP.

The Chair requested Mr. Baldwin to introduce the next presenter. Mr. Baldwin
introduced the DCPP Director of Operations Mr. Denis Petersen and stated Mr. Petersen has
been with PG&E for 33 years, holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Aeronautical Engineering
and has held a license as a Senior Reactor Operator and has held senior leadership positions as
Director of the Quality Verification, Outage Management, [.earning Services and Nuclear Work
Management organizations at DCPP.

Recent Human Performance Issues in the Operations Department:
Causes and Corrective Actions.

Mr. Petersen described the current performance of the Operations Department as very
good with resources supporting that success including the ability to effectively leverage and
monitor the use of performance improvement tools. Operating crews on the day shifts
participate in crew management review meetings with senior plant leadership and the plant
manager and review a database of feedback and insights provided by operating crews over the
past five-week cycle. He reported recent scheduled plant power level changes have been
executed very well including for circulating water pump tunnel cleaning and for turbine valve
testing. Both were done safely and error free. Mr. Petersen stated the Operations Department
has partnered with the Training Department to improve performance and COVID mitigation
measures have minimized Operations Department personnel unavailability. Mr. Petersen
reported Performance Shift Manager Mr. Stan Williams is now serving as interim Operations
Manager.

Mr. Petersen stated the Operations Department has now recovered from a shortfall in
performance and a new Excellence Plan has been implemented as a key driver to eliminate those
shortfalls by effecting a transition from the prior plan which was focused on status control and to
strengthened leader engagement. Mr. Petersen commented the new Excellence Plan was
benchmarked from the Chevron Corporation and the only action remaining to be completed is an
effectiveness review of the Operations Department’s Excellence Plan.

Mr. Petersen reported the 2018 nuclear reactor operator license class completed in March
2020 with a 100% pass rate and the personnel from that class are now assigned to operating
crews. The 2019 license class with 24 students is the largest in Mr. Petersen’s experience, with
half the class now training with operating crews and the other half training in the classroom and

B.9-46



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

in the Simulator Facility (a full-scale mock-up of the Unit 1 Control Room). The 2019 class is
scheduled to take the NRC examination in February 2021. A class for non licensed nuclear
operators commenced in March 2020 with 11 students and the class is progressing well with a
few delays due to COVID strategies impacting the training programs and remote learning
opportunities. That class is scheduled to complete in November 2020. Mr. Petersen reported the
attrition rate in the Operations Department is lower than forecast and hiring has been conducted
in advance of the forecast attrition to ensure a staffing margin is maintained. In response to Dr.
Budnitz’ query Mr. Petersen replied that most of the members of the non licensed nuclear
operator class were not persons already employed at DCPP. Dr. Lam remarked and Mr. Petersen
agreed it was good, although DCPP is scheduled to shut down in a few years that the plant still
retains a significant capacity to recruit and retain well qualified personnel. Mr. Petersen
remarked that his predecessors had carefully considered attrition rates and worked with senior
leadership on achieving alignment, as it does take a significant amount of time to train and
qualify licensed operators.

Mr. Petersen commented on a plant status control issue which occurred in November
2019 which was the subject of the NRC’s fourth quarter 2019 report involving what he described
as a premature mode change due to human error made by a team of operators. He stated that
following the event a focus was placed on operator fundamentals, that is, the essential
knowledge, skills and practices that individuals and crews must exhibit to operate the plant
effectively. He displayed a slide showing the operator fundamentals which include the
following attributes:

Monitoring closely,

Controlling precisely,
Maintaining a conservative bias,
Effective teamwork, and

Plant knowledge.

YYVYVYY

Small commemorative disks have been made identifying each of these fundamentals and disks
are awarded to operating crews who demonstrate above and beyond performance of a particular
attribute and Mr. Petersen described this as an effective tool in developing advocacy of operator
fundamentals among operating crews.

Mr. Petersen concluded his presentation by reporting that trends in the Operations
Department are now solidly within the excellent category and his organization will continue to
focus on low-level error in order to sustain this excellent performance. In response to Consultant
Wardell’s inquiry Mr. Petersen stated the effectiveness review will focuses on performance and
on ensuring that all of the drivers to identified gaps in performance have been addressed and in
the event of a recurrence, that additional actions are taken if needed. Mr. Petersen remarked

B.9-47



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

two Operation Department quick-hit assessments should be completed in August 2020 and
Mr. Wardell stated these might be a topic for a future fact-finding possibly in September
2020.

Mr. Baldwin next introduced DCPP Outage Manager Mr. Matt Coward and stated Mr.
Coward holds a degree in Mechanical Engineering and is a registered Professional Engineer.
Mr. Coward began his career in the Engineering Department and then moved on to the
Operations Department and holds a license as a Senior Reactor Operator and has led DCPP’s
operations crews. Mr. Coward subsequently moved into positions as Operations Planning
Manager and then to Outage Manager.

Plans for the 22nd Refueling Outage for Unit 1 (1R22)

Mr. Coward stated refueling outage 1R22 is scheduled to commence on Sunday, October
4,2020, and is scheduled for a duration of 30 days. He described and discussed with the
Committee the major scope items for 1R22 as follows:

> Steam Generator Eddy Current Testing - Mr. Coward stated this testing is required by
DCPP’s license from the NRC and is performed every third refueling outage and 1R22 will be
the final outage eddy current testing will be done on either unit. In response to Consultant
McWhorter’s inquiry as to whether a decision has been made to defer the secondary side
inspections, Mr. Coward confirmed that secondary side inspections will not occur during 1R22
unless something is detected by the eddy current probes on the primary side. Due to the minimal
amounts of sludge produced in the past by the new steam generators DCPP is not planning to
address the secondary side of the steam generators. Mr. Coward reported some main condenser
tubes will be inspected along the periphery and feedwater heater eddy current inspections will be
done. He stated the only scope item still in question involves the In-core Neutron Detector
System thimble tubes. Mr. Coward remarked the COVID-19 pandemic has caused some
uncertainty as to the availability of supplemental personnel to be assigned to the Radiation
Protection organization and this is a factor in the planning for 1R22.

> Reactor Hot Leg Nozzle Ultrasonic Inspection - to be performed by Westinghouse, is
conducted under water and includes use of a robotic machine that ultrasonically tests for flaws in
the hot leg nozzles.

> Reactor Coolant Pump Seal Replacements - in response to Consultant Wardell’s inquiry,
Mr. Coward confirmed the seals being replaced during 1R22 are the Westinghouse shut-down
seals that were installed four refueling outages ago and which function to seal off the Reactor
Coolant System and these seals are very effective in addressing probabilistic risk assessment as
well as the plant’s response to loss of AC power. Mr. Coward reported the schedule is to replace

B.9-48



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

the seals after four cycles of operation based on time and preventive maintenance considerations
and this replacement should be the last for Unit 1.

> Refueling Manipulator Crane Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) Replacement - part of the
ongoing effort to improve fuel handling equipment reliability.

> Polar Crane Overspeed Trip Modification - to address problems experienced during
1R21.
> Refueling Cavity Upender Bushing Replacement - these bushing are located in the lower

reactor cavity and during a prior outage some wear was identified. Mr. Coward described this as
a radiologically significant job, akin to eddy current testing, and plans and vendor support are in
place.

> Low Pressure Turbine “C” Removal and Inspection - part of ongoing inspection
activities and Mr. Coward stated this should be the last inspection for Low Pressure Turbine “C.”
In response to Dr. Budnitz’ query Mr. Coward confirmed this was a routine outage activity and
three of the six low pressure turbines have been inspected with no issues of significance
identified.

> Circulating Water Pump (CWP) 1-1 Motor Overhaul.

> Intake Cooling Water Heat Exchanger 1-1 Tube Bundle Replacement - to address
problems experience with heat leakage.

> 4 kV and 480V Vital Bus H Maintenance - no modifications are planned. In response to
Dr. Budnitz’ inquiry Mr. Coward reported that a vital bus is allowed to be cleared after the upper
internals of the reactor are removed but the work will remain as a part of the critical path and the
challenge has been to hire persons with the necessary qualifications and he commented the 4kV
to 480V transformer has an internal spacer that is installed for seismic purposes and it is
sometimes found during inspection to have become misaligned.

> 230 kV tower replacement - Mr. Coward stated the 230kV Tower serves as a common
tower for both units and the tower is located outside the plant’s protected area. He reported this
is a project of PG&E’s Transmission organization not DCPP and the tower is to be replaced by a
similar tower.

> 500 kV Tower Insulator Replacements - the 500k V towers are located outside the
protected area and all insulators on the first-off tower from Unit 1 will be replaced. As with the

B.9-49



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

230kV tower, as a project of PG&E’s Transmission organization.

Mr. Coward reviewed the critical path for 1R22 as follows:

Cool Down and Depressurize.

Reactor Disassembly —Upper Internals Removal.
Vital Bus H Outage.

ECCS Valve Interlock Testing.

Reload the Reactor.

Reactor Reassembly.

Plant Heat Up and Testing.

Reactor Startup and Physics Testing.

Roll Main Turbine and Parallel to the Grid.

YYVYVYVYYYVY

Mr. Coward discussed the first time evolutions to be performed during 1R22 including
the 230 kV tower replacement which will requires a site 230 kV outage and require Unit 2 to
enter a 72-hour shutdown action based upon inoperable start-up power as a result of the tower
replacement. Mr. Coward stated a considerable amount of work has been performed pre outage
to identify where the rebar is located in the tower’s foundation. Technical evaluations and
contingency planning are being performed in case of vendor support impacts. Mr. Coward
reported DCPP benchmarked the spring outage experience of other nuclear power plants
including Canadian plants and the experience of the Sizewell Nuclear Power Stations in Suffolk,
England and found there were some minor impacts to activities at those plants due to the
coronavirus. He reported DCPP has learned from its contacts with those plants that there needs
to be some sort of screening for workers, whether it is self-screening or temperature screening at
the Security building, that training facilities need to be separated, and there need to be clear
expectations, including implementing and reinforcing those expectations as site standards,
concerning the use of personal protective equipment for COVID-19 protection. He reported
COVID contingency planning for 1R22 includes:

> Social distancing protocols well developed. These include in-processing as well as
outage implementation. Approximately 600 supplemental contractor personnel will be brought
on site for 1R22 including from the Siemens firm for the low pressure turbine project and from
Westinghouse for fuel handling assistance and reactor disassembly. A high-speed connection
may be set up for analysts working on the eddy current inspections. In response to Dr. Budnitz’
comment that a member of the public at this meeting expressed concern that supplemental
workers brought on the site for IR22 might not be inclined to follow coronavirus prevention
protocols, Mr. Coward replied the nuclear industry is a rule-based industry and it is very good at
enforcing those rules and personnel coming on the site for 1R22 will be nuclear professionals. In

B.9-50



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

response to Dr. Peterson’s question Mr. Coward stated encouraging workers not to report for
work should they feel ill needs to be a part of the communication effort. In response to
Consultant McWhorter’s query Mr. Coward confirmed that supplemental workers brought on the
site recently for tunnel cleaning were not badged for plant access and accordingly were able to be
processed separately from regular plant personnel. He reported DCPP is reviewing staggering
shift times so as to reduce putting too many personnel through the Security train at one time and
supplemental workers who will not receive an access badge during 1R22 will not go through the
Security train.

> Positive case protocols for vendors are being developed for refueling outage application.

> An Outage COVID team of senior leaders has been implemented to make strategic
decisions such as concerning the use of thermal cameras for the Security building and other
concerns regarding pandemic impacts, with the focus being on protecting workers and ensuring
plant reliability and operation for the next fuel cycle. Mr. Coward reported the plan is to
complete the full scope of work for 1R22 but if resources should prove to be constrained
technical evaluation would be applied to identify items in the scope that DCPP might elect not to
perform. In response to Dr. Lam’s inquiry Mr. Coward stated that at the present time a testing
protocol requirement has not been finalized and personnel reporting to DCPP are being asked to
self-screen.

Mr. Coward identified DCPP’s major partners during 1R22 as Westinghouse for the hot
leg nozzle inspections, fuel handling, and reactor coolant pump seal replacements, with
approximately 30 Westinghouse personnel expected to be on the site with some of them being
cross-trained; and Siemens for the Low Pressure Turbine “C” inspection and Main Turbine valve
overhaul work.

Following Mr. Coward’s presentation Mr. Rathie announced that as of 9:00 A.M.. this
morning AGP Video reported 116 persons were viewing the meeting on livestream video and 58
persons viewed the portion of the meeting held last evening.

XXV TECHNICAL CONSULTANT REPORTS & RECEIVE, APPROVE AND
AUTHORIZE TRANSMITTAL OF FACT FINDING REPORTS TO PG&E

The Chair requested Consultant McWhorter to report on the May 12-13, 2020 fact-
finding with Dr. Peterson. He reviewed the topics discussed with PG&E via WebEx during the
May 12-13, 2020 fact-finding as follows:

> Meet with NRC Senior Resident Inspector — the DCISC fact-finding team (FFT)
discussed the planned rotation of resident inspector assignments which will have both resident
inspectors replaced this year and Mr. McWhorter reported one of the two new resident inspectors
was previously assigned to DCPP on an interim basis.

B.9-51



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

> History of Variable Frequency Drive Modifications to Containment Polar Cranes — the
FFT reviewed the history of modifications to the variable frequency drives of the polar cranes
and the issues experienced during previous refueling outages. Mr. McWhorter commented
variable frequency drives are relatively rare in the nuclear industry as most pumps and other
equipment tend to run at constant, fixed, speeds. The polar cranes require the ability to operate at
slow speed and to make precise movements and they use a DC overdrive and an AC generator
that produces the variable frequency to drive the motor at variable speeds. Problems were
identified with the DC motor drive cards in the late 2000’s that caused some unreliability and
resulted in refueling outage delays. The FFT reviewed the design change package assembled and
implemented by a specialized vendor in 2012 and 2013 to replace the motor generator sets with
solid state variable frequency drives. Mr. McWhorter reported the variable frequency drives are
installed on the ground level of Containment so as to be easily accessible and quick disconnects
are employed to permit the drives to be taken out of Containment for maintenance and to allow
one unit’s variable frequency drive to serve as a spare for the other unit during refueling outages.
Mr. McWhorter reported the variable frequency drives on the manipulator cranes are also in the
process of being changed and this has been done for Unit 2 and will be done for Unit 1 during
1R22. He reported the spent fuel pool cranes also use variable frequency drives. The FFT
concluded the modifications were properly implemented and controlled appropriately.

> Training Programs During COVID-19 Pandemic — the FFT reviewed the context of
conducting the plant’s training programs during the coronavirus pandemic. Mr. McWhorter
reported after a two week delay in March, which was adjusted later in the schedule, the licensed
operator training program has been continued during the pandemic without the need for any
exemptions to NRC regulations. WebEx remote meeting technology is used for classroom
training and candidates were on the site for training at the Simulator Facility, with sanitation and
risk minimization techniques utilized, and for examination. Initial licensed operator training was
shifted to use WebEx and some in-plant and Simulator Facility training was deferred but has
now commenced with risk minimization techniques employed to protect the trainees and the
operating crews they are paired with. Non licensed operator training candidates reported to
DCPP the week the pandemic commenced and were processed as necessary and then instructed
to undertake generic on-line training from home. The non licensed candidates have now been
brought back to the PG&E Education Center auditorium where social distancing protocols are in
place to conduct in-person training sessions Mr. McWhorter reported Maintenance training was
delayed by the pandemic but at the time of the FFT visit in May Maintenance training was close
to restarting. The FFT concluded training appeared to have been successfully continued during
the coronavirus pandemic.

> Emergency Diesel Generators (EDGs) — Mr. McWhorter reported the EDGs are used to
provide power during shutdown or in accident situations when the plant has experienced a loss of
oft-site power. The EDGs for both units were in Green health status at the time of the FFT visit
and Mr. McWhorter reported that at least since 2013 this has not been the case. He reported the

B.9-52



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

governors for certain EDGs are scheduled for replacement with upgraded governors to address
an obsolescence concern and all three Unit 1 EDGs will have had their governors replaced by
October 2020. Only one of Unit 2’s EDGs will have its governor replaced due to cost over-run
issues and material from the change-out of the governors for the four EDGs will serve as
available spares for the two Unit 2 EDGs for which the governors will not be replaced. Mr.
McWhorter stated the system engineer reported the governor replacement allows a small
improvement in governor response time but the old governors had an adequate response time and
should continue to be effective in preventing the EDGs from over-speeding and this will
continue to be demonstrated through load rejection testing. The FFT found the plans to replaced
four of the six EDG governors to be appropriate. One Unit 1 EDG has a slight oscillation in
frequency which is being monitored and has not exceeded the EDG’s specifications and this
oscillation is expected to be remedied after replacement of the governor. Mr. McWhorter
reported the goal to improve EDG reliability and reduce unavailability and component failures
has been completed and the plan to do so is now closed. The FFT found significant progress has
been made for the EDGs in dealing with long-standing issues.

> Process Control System - Mr. McWhorter reported this was a routine review of the
digital Process Control System which serves various functions in the Reactor Coolant System
such as controlling pressure and charging water flows, volume control tank levels and auxiliary
feedwater runout protection. The Process Control System fulfills both safety-related and non
safety-related functions and the portions of the system that are safety-related are isolated from
the non safety-related portions. The Process Control System for both units was in Green health
status and demonstrating good performance with no major issues and appropriate corrective
actions in place. In response to Dr. Budnitz’ inquiry concerning any compromise to the
separation of the safety-related and the non safety-related portions of the Process Control System
Mr. McWhorter reported that DCPP has not experienced those types of issues and he stated the
Process Control System has a great deal of redundancy and its failures have a very low impact on
operability.

> Meet with DCPP Director — the FFT met with Station Director Mr. Cary Harbor and
discussed items reviewed during their visit.

> Attend Plant Health Committee Meeting — the DCISC representatives listened to a
conference call meeting of the Plant Health Committee which is responsible for regularly
reviewing system and program health issues. The Committee reviewed the Fire Protection
System, which was found generally healthy, and the 4kV electrical distribution system which has
experienced recent events. The FFT concluded the conference call format worked well and the
Plant Health Committee meeting was conducted effectively and efficiently.

> Margin Management Program — Mr. McWhorter described the Margin Management
Program as designed to monitor the design or operating margins that are present in systems to
ensure those margins do not become degraded over time and result in the system being outside

B.9-53



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

the design basis. He reported the Margin Management Program has recently been eliminated
and replaced with the Margin Management Process in accordance with an initiative by the
Nuclear Energy Institute. The initiative’s recommendation was based upon the functions of the
Margin Management Program having largely been performed by other existing programs such as
the Design Control Process, System Health Monitoring, and the Corrective Action Program. The
FFT reviewed the changes and found them to be appropriate. There is still a process owner for
the Margin Management Process to monitor and identify issues that may be related to a
degrading margin on a system or process and a Margin Management Review Team meets to
review issues as needed and DCPP maintains a top margin issues list. The FFT reviewed the
margin issues list and found several items previously on the list have now been resolved
including those related to Containment fan cooler unit differential pressure, boric acid transfer
pump differential pressure, and Containment leakage rate. Mr. McWhorter reported two open
issues on the margin issues list concern the Auxiliary Saltwater System regarding the increase in
ocean water temperature and the Auxiliary Building Ventilation System charcoal filter test
margin. In general, the FFT concluded the Margin Management Process was effective and
Mr. McWhorter reported the DCISC representatives recommended this as a program to
be regularly reviewed by the DCISC.

> Auxiliary Building Ventilation System — Mr. McWhorter reported the systems serves to
cool, heat and filter air supplied to personnel and equipment, including safety-related equipment,
in the Auxiliary Building. The Ventilation System also filters air and exhaust in accident
conditions such that if there is any radioactive gas it is captured by sets of charcoal filters before
air is released to the environment. Mr. McWhorter reported the Auxiliary Building Ventilation
System is a Tier 2 system such that there is no formal health report but there is a system engineer
assigned who is responsible for the system and who briefed the FFT. The condition of the
system was described as fair and improving but over the last two years the Auxiliary Building
Ventilation System has had a significant number of NRC Maintenance Rule functional failures
with three such issues on Unit 1 and seven issues for Unit 2 and accordingly the system is in A-1
status which is the Maintenance Rule’s designation for a system with a high number of failures.
Mr. McWhorter reported corrective actions have been put into place and a cause evaluation
found inadequate periodicity of maintenance to have been a cause commencing in 2015 when the
maintenance period was extended from six to twelve months. He reported most of the actions
have now been completed and the system is in monitoring status and the FFT
recommended the DCISC review the Auxiliary Building Ventilation System again during
2021 to assess the effectiveness of these corrective actions. Mr. McWhorter reported a
charcoal filter batch sample for Unit 2 failed a surveillance test and as a result that batch was
required to be replaced within 24 hours which was successfully accomplished. Review of this
issue found the charcoal was able to degrade faster than anticipated and Unit 1 was reviewed for
this issue and was found to also have low margin and the charcoal filters for the Auxiliary
Building Ventilation System for Unit 1 are schedule to be replaced during 1R22 and the issue is
on the margin management list for this purpose. The FFT concluded the Auxiliary Building

B.9-54



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Ventilation System was in fair health and should be reviewed to assess corrective actions in
about one year. Dr. Budnitz observed and Mr. McWhorter agreed that issues with the Auxiliary
Building Ventilation System were last reviewed by the DCISC in 2017 and perhaps given the
number of functional failures the DCISC should have increased the frequency of its review.

> Status of Responding to the COVID-19 Pandemic — Mr. McWhorter observed the DCISC
received a report on this topic during this public meeting and there was nothing further to report
at this time. In response to Dr. Lam’s inquiry Mr. McWhorter commented that it is his
understanding the U.S. Naval Academy is processing its incoming class of approximately 1,000
midshipmen in a fashion similar to that DCPP is planning to use for personnel engaged for the
upcoming refueling outage, that is, by separating incoming personnel into groups and using
testing and temperature monitoring protocols.

Following a motion by Dr. Budnitz seconded by Dr. Lam the May 12-13, 2020 Fact
Finding Report was accepted by the Committee and will become part of its 30" Annual Report.

XXVI ADJOURN MORNING MEETING
The Chair adjourned the morning meeting of the Committee at 11:15 A.M.
XXVII RECONVENE FOR AFTERNOON MEETING

The July 2, 2020, afternoon session of the Diablo Canyon Independent Safety Committce
was called to order by its Chair, Dr. Peter Lam at 1:00 P.M. Dr. Lam welcomed those persons
present in the audience and those watching the proceedings on live streaming video. Dr. Lam
requested any of the members who wished to make remarks to do so at this time.

XXVIII COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
There were no comments by Members at this time.
XXIX PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATION

The Chair reviewed the invitation to address the Committee on matters not on the agenda
for this public meeting and invited any comments from members of the public who wished to
address the Committee to do so now. Ms. Sherry Lewis was recognized.

In response to Ms. Lewis queries concerning spent fuel Dr. Budnitz explained that each
radiologically hot assembly in the spent fuel pools is required to be surrounded by four cold
assemblies in checkerboard pattern such that a cold assembly may absorb heat from more than
one hot assembly. Dr. Budnitz explained the rationale for not using dummy assemblies in place
of cold assembilies is based upon not creating more low or intermediate radioactive waste that
would otherwise not exist.

XXX INFORMATION ITEMS BEFORE THE COMMITTEE (Cont’d.)

B.9-55



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Dr. Lam requested Mr. Baldwin to introduce the next presentation. Mr. Baldwin
introduced the Assistant Director of Nuclear Maintenance and Planning at DCPP Mr. Jeff
Bryant. Mr. Baldwin reported Mr. Bryant has been at DCPP for ten years and has held positions
as Site Manager for Power Services, in the Outage Management Department and now in his
present role as the Assistant Director of Nuclear Maintenance and Planning. Mr. Baldwin stated
Mr. Bryant’s entire career has been focused on industrial construction and maintenance with a
constant focus on safety and process improvement.

Integrated Risk Assessment Process

Mr. Bryant stated the purpose of the Integrated Risk Assessment Program is to provide a
systematic approach to identifying and addressing each risk exposure to ensure all areas are
addressed in a timely and appropriate manner and thereby to ensure a conservative decision
making process is achieved that supports the station’s overall safety plan. He stated that each
event of maintenance or testing results in changes to the base line risk of nuclear power plant
operation and presents opportunities to calculate, quantify and mitigate any potential impacts on
the station.

Mr. Bryant summarized the risk management process as follows:

Identifying the potential risks,

Assessing the risk,

Preventing and mitigating the risk,
Implementing risk management strategies, and

YYVYVYY

Learning and Adapting.
He described the various areas of risk assessment as including.

Industrial Safety — what can physically injure individuals?

Nuclear Safety — what equipment manipulations can harm the plant?

Radiological Safety — what is the impact on the community?

Chemistry and Environmental Safety — what are the impacts on the station or the public?

VYVYVYY

Regulatory Compliance and plant operations - what is the guidance from the NRC or
another regulator?

Mr. Bryant stated the Integrated Risk Review Team is composed of subject matter
experts from the Operations (Senior Reactor Operator), Maintenance (Instrument & Control,
Mechanical and Electrical), Radiation Protection, Chemistry & Environmental, Safety, Security,
Engineering, Emergency Planning, Planning, and Work Control organizations. In response to
Consultant Wardell’s inquiry Mr. Bryant stated personnel from the Probabilistic Risk
Assessment organization are brought in to review work that is regulatory challenging but they
do not participate as part of the formal every day review process.

B.9-56



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Mr. Bryant stated the “T minus *x” work week process (with “T” being the work and the
number being the number of weeks prior to when it is planned to be carried out). is used to
timely identify potential risks and the work scope is identified during T-28 work week window
and at T-7 the expectation is that all risk has been identified for every activity and the process of
risk review meetings is then commenced. Any work added to the scheduled between T-7 and T-
8 requires an additional process and scope addition approval from various levels of management.
Clearance tagout risk commences between weeks T-4 and T-3 and at that point the Operations
Department validates the schedule and the risk to ensure the maintenance or testing activity will
not impact operational considerations, plant status or grid conditions that would limit
permissions necessary to carry out the work.

Mr. Bryant described and discussed the four risk levels for which the Integrated Risk
Assessment Process provides guidance. In response to Dr. Budnitz’ inquiry Mr. Bryant
confirmed the risk could be to the worker or to plant safety or to the public. He described the
risk levels as follows:

> Low Risk - No Additional mitigations required. Workers and supervisors self-brief on
the risk and follow site standards and appropriate localized mitigations are made.

> Medium Risk - Work documents are reviewed for any required pre-planning and
mitigating actions. Workers are briefed on the risk of any increase in personal or industrial safety
challenge Procedural guidance is provided in writing together with the use of the Site Standards
handbook. Pre-job briefings are conducted. Mr. Bryant commented there are not many activities
at DCPP classified as Medium Risk..

> High Risk — Work documents are reviewed for any required pre-planning and mitigating
actions. A complete risk management plan is prepared and included in all work documents.
Workers are briefed on the risk and post job critiques after the work is complete are held for
lessons learned. For high risk activities a Risk Challenge Board is convened composed of
directors, Operations and key stakeholders, typically from Maintenance and Planning, to verify
that the plan will allow for successful completion of the elevated risk work activity. Mr. Bryant
stated a template is used by the Board to address prevention, detection and correction in terms of
risk. Prevention being the mitigation actions, detection being the unintended consequences, and
correction being what actions might be taken if direction were given. These three elements are
required to be addressed for all high and very high risk work. In response to Consultant
Wardell’s inquiry Mr. Bryant stated the risk classifications are listed by risk levels on any
scheduling documents and in the plan of the day.

> Very High Risk — Mr. Bryant stated the actions are similar to those for high risk work and
include review of work documents for any required pre-planning and mitigating actions for
infrequently performed tasks or evolutions such as might occur during refueling outages.
Completion of a risk management plan and performance of contingency planning which goes

B.9-57



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

through an additional Risk Challenge Board review. The risk management plan is included in all
work documents. A manager and direct oversight sponsor are assigned to ensure subject matter
and managerial oversight is afforded for each high risk work activity and they conduct their
oversight in the field. Workers are briefed on the risk and post job critiques after the work is
completed are held for lessons learned. In response to Consultant McWhorter’s inquiry Mr.
Bryant reported when the units are online very high risk activities are very infrequent with two
having been performed to date in 2020 both associated with the rod control system. High risk
activities are performed approximately every two weeks typically revolving around nuclear
safety and sometimes industrial safety.

Mr. Bryant reviewed implementation of risk management strategies and reported the
primary supervisor and the workers involved review the risk level and mitigation actions during
the pre-job briefing and ensure all work documentation has the risk level documented. A
summary list is included of all high and very high-risk activities scheduled during the next 24
hours in the published daily schedule. The responsible work groups then report out on the risk
management plan for any high or very high-risk activity scheduled for the day at the routine
daily plant meeting. The Risk Challenge Board is convened before starting work and the Board
verifies that the conditions have not changed sufficiently that the risk assessment is now
inadequate. Mr. Bryant reported procedures in the Site Standards handbook requires validation
that there are no changes in the conditions encountered in the field.

In concluding his presentation Mr. Bryant stated the most important activity to be
performed after the work is complete relates to learning and adapting. For low and medium risk
activities, any risk challenges are documented as is anything learned in completing the work
order. Post-job critiques are conducted upon the completion of high or very-high risk evolutions
and high and very-high risk evolutions are reviewed during a T+1 meeting. He reported the final
step is to identify successes and opportunities to continue to learn and grow as an organization.

In response to Consultant Wardell’s query Mr. Bryant confirmed the first line workers
understand the integrated risk assessment process and for high or very high risk activities the
first line supervisors and craft are brought into the risk discussion meetings to obtain a better
understanding of the mitigations and protections being afforded and to allow them to serve as
subject matter experts. Mr. Bryant and Mr. Baldwin confirmed the Phoenix/Safety Monitor risk
determination program is used as an online risk monitoring tool as part of the work planning and
work control processes and serves as an entry point for elevating the risk significance of a job if
something were to cause the online risk metric to enter Yellow status and they confirmed a
numerical probabilistic risk assessment does play a role in the risk assessment process. All
components are also classified with respect to risk significance with high risk components
specifically identified. Mr. Bryant confirmed Dr. Budnitz’ observation that the equipment
outage management plans used when the plant is operating establish a time by which the
equipment must be returned to service and this is based upon a probabilistic risk assessment and
Mr. Bryan reported when 50% of the scheduled time is reached the mitigation piece of the

B.9-58



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

integrated risk assessment process comes into play and the primary mitigation action is to then
activate the Outage Command Center. In response to Dr. Budnitz’ inquiry Mr. Baldwin stated
that in the development of the Integrated Risk Assessment Process DCPP reviewed similar
processes used by other nuclear power plants but he could not say how widespread the
implementation of similar programs was but in the nuclear industry good practices spread very
rapidly and are shared among plants. Mr. Wardell and Dr. Budnitz reviewed a meeting of the
Plant Health Committee they attended during a previous fact-finding visit during which washing
of the insulators on the S00kV lines was reviewed in a process very similar to that described by
Mr. Bryant during his presentation with two groups participating, one being the team that was
going to perform the work and the other the team that had done the risk analysis. Dr. Lam
commented he previously attending a meeting of the Risk Challenge Board and his impression at
that time was it represented a good practice.

XXXI CONCLUDING REMARKS & DISCUSSION BY COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF
FUTURE DCISC ACTIVITIES

Mr. Rathie reported the next public meeting of the Committee is scheduled to be held on
October 22-23, 2020, and will likely again be conducted using Zoom and a future meeting was
scheduled during this meeting for October 19-20, 2021. In response to Dr. Budnitz’ question,
Mr. Garcia confirmed the 1R22 refueling outage is scheduled to commence on October 4, 2020,
and is scheduled to occupy 39 days and Dr. Budnitz and Mr. McWhorter have a fact-finding
scheduled for November 9-10, 2020. Mr. Garcia confirmed DCPP will be able to support the
fact-finding. Mr. McWhorter reviewed possible agenda items for the October 22-23, 2020 public
meeting including an update on the status of decommissioning planning, the request for
proposals for the new spent fuel casks, the cause and corrective actions for the actions on the
Rod Control System, the latest activities of the Diablo Canyon Decommissioning Engagement
Panel, and a topic concerning the Committee’s consideration of a recommendation regarding
transfer of SNF. Mr. Wardell reported a schedule was provided for the July 21-22, 2020 fact-
finding with Dr. Peterson and he briefly reviewed the schedule for completing the Committee’s
30" Annual Report on the Safety of Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant Operations. Dr.
Budnitz commented the Emergency Preparedness organization has a drill rehearsal scheduled for
July 22, 2020, and he inquired whether the drill might be cancelled due the postponement of the
evaluated emergency exercise because of the coronavirus pandemic. Dr. Budnitz reported with
Consultant McWhorter he is planning to attend the fourth day of the Nuclear Safety Oversight
Committee’s (NSOC) visit when the NSOC is expected to report on the results of its visit to
senior DCPP management. Dr. Budnitz observed that the evaluations by the NSOC, like those of
the Institute of Nuclear Power Operators (INPO), are confidential and the DCISC in order to be
afforded the opportunity to attend and receive information is committed to maintaining what it
learns in these meetings in confidence. Dr. Budnitz observed the DCISC’s observation of these
meetings is very helpful as some of the reviews are not very different from the scope of the
reviews conducted by the DCISC.

B.9-59



AGENDA PACKET / ANNUAL REPORT SECOND DRAFT VERSION

Drs. Budnitz and Peterson commented the conduct of this meeting remotely using Zoom
technology has worked very well and the meeting has been productive and was conducted
effectively within those limitations. Mr. Rathie expressed his appreciation to Messrs. Baldwin
and Garcia and to the PG&E presenters for their cooperation and assistance in making the
meeting productive and to Mr. Bob Lloyd and Technician Travis of AGP Video for facilitating
the webinar. On behalf of the Committee Dr. Lam expressed thanks to PG&E’s Director
Thomas Baldwin and Manager Hector Garcia and to AGP for their help and assistance with this
public meeting.

XXXII ADJOURNMENT OF NINETY-SIXTH PUBLIC MEETING

There being no further business the ninety-sixth public meeting of the Diablo Canyon
Independent Safety Committee was then adjourned by its Chair, Dr. Peter Lam, at 2:27 P.M.

B.9-60



